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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®RE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”) of
Universe International Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”), |
hereby present the 2015/2016 annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 30th June 2016
(the “Year”).

The Group is principally engaged in securities brokerage and margin
financing, money lending, leasing of investment properties and securities
investment, video distribution, film distribution and exhibition, licensing
and sub-licensing of film rights, trading, wholesaling and retailing of
optical products, watches and jewellery products.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$141.9 million for
the year ended 30th June 2016 (“Year”), as compared with a net profit
of approximately HK$160.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2015.
The significant loss was principally attributable to (i) the fair value loss
arising from the investment securities of approximately HK$143.6 million
during the Year. For the year ended 30th June 2015, the Group recorded
a fair value gain arising from the investment securities of approximately
HK$229.9 million; (i) the impairment loss of goodwill of approximately
HK$29.9 million (2015: Nil) and (iii) the impairment loss of investment in
associate of approximately HK$18.4 million (2015: Nil).

During the Year the Group has successfully acquired two new
businesses, namely, (i) Winston Asia Limited (“Winston”), which are
principally engaged in trading, wholesaling and retailing of watches and
jewellery products in July 2015; and (ii) Win Fung Securities Limited
(*Win Fung”), a company licensed under the SFO to carry out Type
1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated
activities in November 2015. The principal activities of Win Fung are

provision of brokerage services and securities margin financing to clients.

It is the intention of the Group to leverage on the expertise of the
management in Win Fung to further develop the securities brokerage
and margin financing and money lending business of the Group. To
better reflect the Group’s direction of future development, the Group
has changed its English company name from “Universe International
Holdings Limited” to “Universe International Financial Holdings Limited”

=

and changed the secondary name in Chinese from “& F B[R A% A R

AR, to “BFEERESRIERABMR AR by passing a special resolution
on 29th June 2016.
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Following the roll-out of Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect Program in
October 2014, a connectivity test and market rehearsals for Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Stock Connect will be arranged in October and November
2016 for exchange participants to verify their readiness to participate
in Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect. It is expected that Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Stock Connect Program will be launched soon and cross-
border investment activities will be further encouraged. In view of these
favorable policies, we are optimistic about the development of the
securities brokerage, margin financing and money lending business in

the future.

The Group intends to strengthen its existing businesses and will continue
identify different investment opportunities in other business sectors with
enormous potentials to further diversify its business and broaden the
income sources to maximise the return to the shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would also like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere thanks and gratitude to my fellow directors and our staff for their
dedicated efforts and contributions to the Group in the past year. | would
also like to thank all our customers and shareholders for their trust and
support.

By Order of the Board
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th September 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Overall group results

The Group is principally engaged in securities brokerage and
margin financing, money lending, leasing of investment properties
and securities investment, video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights, trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products, watches and
jewellery products.

During the year ended 30th June 2016 (the “Year”) the Group
has successfully acquired two new businesses, namely, (i)
Winston Asia Limited (“Winston”), which are principally engaged
in trading, wholesaling and retailing of watches and jewellery
products in July 2015; and (ii) Win Fung Securities Limited
(“Win Fung”), a company licensed under the SFO to carry out
Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 4 (advising on securities)
regulated activities in November 2015. The principal activities
of Win Fung are provision of brokerage services and securities
margin financing to clients.

It is the intention of the Group to leverage on the expertise of
the management in Win Fung to further develop the securities
brokerage and margin financing and money lending business
of the Group. To better reflect the Group’s direction of future
development, the Group has changed its English company
name from “Universe International Holdings Limited” to “Universe
International Financial Holdings Limited” and changed the
secondary name in Chinese from “EF B IER AR AR, to “B
FEBR S RIZERAER Q" by passing a special resolution on
29th June 2016.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$141.9 million
for the Year, as compared with a net profit of approximately
HK$160.9 million for the year ended 30th June 2015. The Board
attributes such loss mainly to (i) the fair value loss arising from
the investment securities of approximately HK$143.6 million
during the Year. For the year ended 30th June 2015, the Group
recorded a fair value gain arising from the investment securities
of approximately HK$229.9 million; (i) the impairment loss of
goodwill of approximately HK$29.9 million (2015: Nil); and (iii)
the impairment loss of investment in associate of approximately
HK$18.4 million (2015: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s revenue for the Year from continuing operating
was approximately HK$151.0 million, representing an increase
of approximately 114.8% as compared to the revenue of
approximately HK$70.3 million for the same period last year.
The increase in revenue was mainly due to the completion of
the acquisition of 79.99% equity interest of Winston, which
are principally engaged in trading, wholesaling and retailing of
watches and jewellery products, in July 2015 and the completion
of the acquisition of 100% equity interest of Win Fung, which are
principally engaged in securities brokerage and margin financing,
in Nov 2015. The Group recorded revenue from Winston and
Win Fung of approximately HK$54.3 million and approximately
HK$16.1 million respectively during the Year.

Films distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights

Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$56.2 million, representing an increase
of approximately 36.7% as compared to approximately
HK$41.1 million in the same period last year. It accounted
for approximately 37.2% (2015: approximately 58.5%) of the
Group’s revenue from continuing operation during the Year.

The growth of revenue from this business segment was mainly
due to the increase in the number of new titles of films/television
series distributed in various videogram formats during the Year.

The performance of this segment improved. Segmental profit of
approximately of HK$8.6 million was recorded during the Year
against a segmental loss of approximately HK$9.6 million for the
same period last year, which is mainly due to (i) the increase in
the number of new titles of films/television series distributed in
various videogram formats during the Year and (ii) higher gross
contribution from film exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights business as a result of the stringent production cost
control implemented during the Year.

Due to high production, advertising and distribution cost and
keen competition, the business environment of this segment
is more challenging than before and the Group will continue
to adopt a cautious and prudent approach to identify new
opportunities and streamline the cost structure of this business
segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

Trade, wholesale and retail of optical, watches
and jewellery products

Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$61.7 million (2015: approximately HK$0.6
million), which included the revenue of approximately HK$7.4
million (2015: approximately HK$0.6 million) from trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical products from 2 optical retail
shops under the name of “/% & AR # Hong Kong Optical” in Hong
Kong and the revenue of approximately HK$54.3 million (2015:
Nil) from Winston, which are principally engaged in trading,
wholesaling and retailing of watches and jewellery products
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”). It
accounted for approximately 40.9% (2015: approximately 0.9%)
of the Group’s revenue from continuing operation during the
Year.

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 26 May 2015
in relation to the acquisition of 79.99% of the share capital of
Winston, the then market conditions in both Hong Kong and the
PRC showed positive signs, with increasing value index of retail
sales of jewellery, watches and clocks, and valuable gifts in Hong
Kong, as well as rising retail sales of consumer good in the PRC.

However, according to the latest statistics released by the
National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC, (i) the accumulated
gross domestic product of the PRC has been growing in a slower
pace, from a year-on-year growth of approximately 9.80% for
the second quarter of 2013 to that of approximately 7.24% for
the second quarter of 2016; and (ii) the accumulated total retail
sales of consumer goods (retail trades) has also experienced
deceleration, with a year-on-year growth of approximately 13.3%
for July 2013 to approximately 10.2% for July 2016. This reflects
the decreased growth in income of consumers in the PRC and
implies that the retail market in the PRC is following a slowing
growth trend in the first half of 2016.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition, with reference to the Reports on Monthly Survey of
Retail Sales released by the Census and Statistics Department
of Hong Kong in August 2016, the value of total retail sales in
June 2016, provisionally estimated at $33.7 billion, decreased
by 8.9% compared with the same month in 2015. The revised
estimate of the value of total retail sales in May 2016 decreased
by 8.3% compared with a year earlier. For the first half of 2016,
the value of total retail sales decreased by 10.5% compared
with the same period in 2015. Analysed by broad type of retail
outlet in descending order of value of sales and comparing June
2016 with June 2015, the value of sales of jewellery, watches
and clocks, and valuable gifts decreased by 20.4% and optical
shops decreased by 5.5%. The average value index of retail
sales of “jewellery, watches and clocks, and valuable gifts”
was approximately 123.5 for the six months ended 30 June
2016, representing (i) a decrease of approximately 19.1% as
compared with that of approximately 152.7 for the year ended
31 December 2015; and (i) a decrease of approximately 21.1%
as compared with that of approximately 156.6 for the six months
ended 30 June 2015. This reflects a decreasing trend in the retail
sales of those of jewellery, watches and optical products in Hong
Kong in the first half of 2016.

These decreases in recent period reflected an unexpected
change due to a unfavourable market environment in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

As such, revenue of Winston decreased to approximately
HK$21.7 million for the six months ended 30 June 2016, which
represents (i) a decrease of approximately 44.1% as compared
with that of approximately HK$38.9 million for the six months
ended 31 December 2015; and (i) a decrease of approximately
23.8% as compared with that of approximately HK$28.5 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2015. The gross profit margin
of Winston also dropped to approximately 38.7% for the six
months ended 30 June 2016 as compared with that of (i)
approximately 58.84% for the six months ended 31 December
2015; and (i) approximately 49.28% for the six months ended 30
June 2015. Some of the retail point of Winston in the PRC also
recorded net losses for recent period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

Due to the unfavourable business performance of some of the
retail points operated by Winston, the number of retail point in
the PRC and Hong Kong operated by Winston Group have been
reduced from 31 as at 31st July 2015 (the “Completion Date”),
being the date of completion of the acquisition of 79.99% share
capital of Winston, to 16 as at 30th June 2016, and from two as
at the Completion Date to one as at 30th June 2016 respectively.
The decrease in the number of retail point operated by Winston
would decrease the revenue figure and hence profitability of
Winston as stated in the cashflow forecast prepared by the
management of the Company for the valuation of Winston.

As a result, the impairment loss on the goodwill of approximately
HK$24.4 million attributable to Winston was recorded during
the Year. The impairment loss was made with reference to the
valuation of Winston as at 30th June 2016 prepared by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited (the “Valuer”), an independent
professional qualified valuer not connected with the Group,
for the purpose of assessing the value in use of Winston. The
methodology used in the valuation report was income approach
using discounted cash flow method, which was consistently
applied to the valuations as at the Completion Date and 30th
June 2016. The calculation used cash flow projections based
on latest financial budgets approved by the management of the
Group covering a period of 5 years and at a post-tax discount
rate. The cash flow projections during the budget period are
based on the expected profits margins during the budget
period, and are extrapolated using a 3% growth rate beyond the
5-year period, which is the same for both valuations as at the
Completion Date and as at 30th June 2016.

The pre-tax discount rate has changed from approximately
19.2% as at Completion Date to approximately 17.7% as at 30th
June 2016, which is mainly attributable to changes in market
conditions, such as long-term risk free rates in Hong Kong and
market equity risk premium.

Due to (i) the weakening of the retails market in Hong Kong
and the PRC in the first half of 2016; and (ii) the actual
business performance of Winston during the same period, the
management of the Company becomes prudent in the future
performance and lowers its expectation on the gross profit
margin of this business segment, from around 50% as at the
Completion Date to around 42% as at 30th June 2016.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Based on the above, the valuation of Winston as at 30th June
2016 was lowered, resulting in the impairment loss on the
goodwill attributable to Winston during the Year.

Consequently, segmental loss of approximately of HK$24.9
million was recorded during the Year (2015: segmental loss of
approximately HK$32,000). Excluding the goodwill impairment
of approximately HK$24.4 million, the segmental loss before
goodwill impairment is approximately of HK$500,000 during the
Year.

Securities investments and leasing of
investment properties

As at 30th June 2016, the carrying value of the securities
investments (recorded as the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in the consolidated balance sheet) was
approximately HK$247.4 million (30th June 2015: approximately
HK$315.1 million). It included the Group’s investment portfolio
and consists of twelve (30th June 2015: seven) investment
items, all of which are shares of companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Five of the aforesaid investment items held by the
Group, i.e., the shares of (i) Leap Holdings Group Ltd. (“Leap”)
valued at approximately HK$80.3 million as at 30th June 2016;
(i) China Jicheng Holdings Limited (“China Jicheng”) valued at
approximately HK$39.2 million as at 30th June 2016; (jii) First
Credit Finance Group Ltd. (“First Credit”) valued at approximately
HK$36.3 million as at 30th June 2016; (iv) Convoy Global
Holdings Ltd. (“Convoy”) valued at approximately HK$33.1
million as at 30th June 2016; and (v) Jiu Rong Holdings Limited
(“Jiu Rong”) valued at approximately HK$27.9 million as at
30th June 2016, which represented approximately 7.0%,
approximately 3.4%, approximately 3.2%, approximately 2.9%
and approximately 2.4% of the Group’s total asset value as
at 30th June 2016 respectively and approximately 32.5%,
approximately 15.8%, approximately 14.7%, approximately
13.4% and approximately 11.3% of the value of the Group’s
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at 30th June
2016 respectively.

As at 30th June 2016, the total market value of the aforesaid
five investment items was approximately HK$216.8 million,
representing (i) approximately 18.8% of the Group’s total asset
value and (i) approximately 87.6% of the total financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of the Group respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

Leap and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of
foundation works and ancillary services; and construction wastes
handling at the public fill reception facilities managed by the
Government in Hong Kong. As at 30th June 2016, the Group
held 110,000,000 shares of Leap, representing approximately
4.48% of the total issued shares of Leap of 2,456,000,000
shares.

China Jicheng and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
manufacturing and sale of POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas
and umbrella parts such as plastic cloth and shaft to its
customers. As at 30th June 2016, the Group held 191,250,000
shares of China Jicheng, representing approximately 0.3% of the
total issued shares of China Jicheng of 75,000,000,000 shares.

First Credit and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
money lending business. As at 30th June 2016, the Group held
150,000,000 shares of First Credit, representing approximately
4.1% of the total issued shares of First Credit of 3,628,800,000
shares. In connection with the re-focusing of the Group’s
business operations as announced on 25th May 2016, the
Company decided to change the purpose of holding First Credit
from short-term trading to long-term investments. In order to
comply with the accounting standard, the securities investments
of First Credit is included in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as current assets in the consolidated balance sheet
for the accounting purpose despite the purpose of holding is
long-term investment.

Convoy and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
independent financial advisory business, money lending
business, proprietary investment business, asset management
business and corporate finance advisory services. As at 30th
June 2016, the Group held 983,336,000 shares of Convoy,
representing approximately 0.6% of the total issued shares of
Convoy of 14,938,896,000 shares.

Jiu Rong and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) design,
assembly and installation of water meter; and (ii) TV business.
As at 30th June 2016, the Group held 180,000,000 shares of
Jiu Rong, representing approximately 4.7% of the total issued
shares of Jiu Rong of 3,800,000,000 shares.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s recorded fair value loss on changes on investment
securities of approximately HK$143.6 million (2015: fair value
gain of approximately HK$229.9 million) during the Year. Such
loss was mainly attributable to the volatile and unfavourable
market sentiment in the stock market in Hong Kong during the
Year which lead to the substantial decrease in the market price
of the investments of the Group.

The investments in the shares of Jiu Rong, China Jicheng and
Convoy recorded fair value loss of approximately HK$43.2
million, approximately HK$40.4 million and approximately
HK$30.3 million respectively, and together contributed to
approximately 79.3% of the total fair value loss on changes on
investment securities of the Group for the Year.

As at 30th June 2016, the Group’s securities investments
portfolio included the shares of companies listed on the
Stock Exchange and engaged in different industries such as
entertainment, manufacturing, financial advisory business, asset
management, solar energy, money lending, construction, interior
design and improvement, financial printing services, natural
resources trading and forestry and agricultural business etc. The
Group will continue reviewing its investment portfolios, so as to
achieve a better return to the Group.

The overall segment loss of the securities investment segment
was approximately HK$143.6 million (2015: segment profit of
approximately HK$223.7 million) during the Year.

The rental income from leasing of investment properties remained
stable during the Year. The Group recorded rental income of
approximately HK$1.0 million (2015: approximately HK$1.0
million) during the Year.

The overall segment profit of the leasing of investment properties
was approximately HK$812,000 (2015: segment profit of
approximately HK$1.3 million).

BEENWE DT

AEBRAFEARBSREEFSF A FEE
EELNR1436BEEBABL(ZE—RF :2F
BREEL2200E BB L) - ZEBIHIEER
FK&FW%/%H EWMBHMEETERAR
F EYAEERECTEREB TR

RAR - FBEEKEERRD IZE DB
BATERENI2EESIT  H4048 BE
TTRH0IFEET  GREANFERAEERR
BES AT EEZHEEBIELNT9.3% -

ZE-RFRA=ZTH XEBZESHK
EHESBRBRIA EM ARG ZFE QA
ﬁé%ﬁé&x*%t‘ﬁﬁf%%ﬁf'?ﬁfx‘é“?ﬁii‘
ARG ME BE ZTARAREE MK
Eﬂfjllﬂlﬁ%‘E%Eﬂ?f’f%&)ﬁw%ﬁTHE’\]
TE-AEEBFERTEREES EUR
$%IFXEEE¥&°

7’%
H

BHERESENAFEARNZ D EEIBEREL
Bl143EBAL(ZE—RF 5B EFH
223 7EHBEAETT) °

HEREVERAFEAZES BMARTR
E-AKERAFEERESESWALI0R
BET(ZZT—AF:MOBEET) -

+

HABRE MR 2 5 &0 M B R4 /812,000/8
T(ZE—RF: EHEM1.3BEETT) °

B emiERERA

13



f—

14

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

Available-for-sale financial assets

As at 30th June 2016, the available-for-sale financial assets of
the Group of approximately HK$85.8 million (30th June 2015:
approximately HK$88.4 million) consisted of five (30th June
2015: four) investment items in non-listed funds or companies.
One of the aforesaid investment items held by the Group, named
“Hydra Capital SPC — Class A #1 Share” (“Hydra Capital”) valued
at approximately HK$60.7 million as at 30th June 2016 which
represented (i) approximately 5.3% of the Group’s total asset
value as at 30th June 2016 and (i) approximately 70.7% of the
value of the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets as at 30th
June 2016.

Hydra Capital is an exempted company incorporated with limited
liability and registered as a segregated portfolio company under
the laws of the Cayman Islands established for the purpose of
making investments on behalf of its portfolios where its principal
investments are internet related and mobile application in Asia.

As at 30th June 2016, the Group held 5,500 shares in Hydra
Capital, representing approximately 24.6% of the total issued
shares of Hydra Capital of 22,400 shares.

The Group recorded a decrease of the carrying value of the
available-for-sale financial assets of approximately HK$12.3
million (2015: increase in value of approximately HK$8.3 million)
in the other comprehensive (loss)/income during the Year. In view
of the negative trend of the financial market and business outlook
for the available-for-sale financial assets, including factors such
as industry and sector performance as well as operational and
financing cash flow, it was determined that the carrying value of
the available-for-sale financial assets was depreciated.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Money lending business

The Group engaged in money lending business in Hong Kong
during the Year. As at 30th June 2016, the Group had (i) loans
receivable of approximately HK$43.2 million, and (ii) loan to
an associate of HK$5.0 million; totally HK$48.2 million loans
receivable under the money lending business (As at 30th June
2015: approximately HK$37.0 million) and recognised interest
income of approximately HK$8.5 million (2015: approximately
HK$5.2 million). Loans receivable are interest-bearing at
rates ranging from 7% to 12% per annum (2015: 8% to 15%
per annum). It accounted for approximately 5.6% (2015:
approximately 7.4%) of the Group’s revenue from continuing
operation during the Year. There was no default event happened
in respect of the Group’s loans receivable during the Year
(2015: Nil). The segment profit of this business segment was
approximately HK$0.7 million (2015: approximately HK$2.5
million) during the Year. The decrease in segment profit is mainly
due to the increase in selling and administrative expenses to
promote and develope the money lending business as compared
to the same period last year.

It is expected that the money lending market in Hong Kong will
continue to grow in the near future. As disclosed in the report
named “Monthly Statistical Bulletin” published by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority in July 2016, the total loans and advances
of all authorized money lending institutions in Hong Kong
increased from approximately HK$2,467.8 billion in 2006 to
approximately HK$7,534.5 billion in 2015, representing a CAGR
of approximately 13.2%. The increasing trend of total loans and
advances indicates a rising demand in the money lending market
in Hong Kong. Accordingly, the Group intends to continue
to expand the money lending business, including potential
acquisition of listed and unlisted shares of money lending
companies, to effectively utilise the Group’s cash resources and
to increase the income sources of the Group.

Entertainment Business

This segment primarily relate to the artiste and model
management and organisation of concerts. Revenue from this
business segment during the Year was approximately HK$7.6
million (2015: approximately HK$22.4 million). The decrease
in revenue is mainly due to the reduction of the investment in
the organization of concerts during the Year. Segmental profit
of approximately of HK$834,000 was recorded during the
Year (2015: segmental loss of approximately HK$4.2 million).
The performance of this segment improved as a result of the
stringent production cost control implemented during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

Securities brokerage and margin financing

The Group completed the acquisition of 100% equity interest in
Win Fung in November 2015. Win Fung is a licensed corporation
under the SFO with the following regulated activities: (i) Type
1: Dealing in securities; and (ii) Type 4: Advising on securities.
The principal activities of Win Fung are provision of securities
brokerage services and securities margin financing to clients.

Revenue from this business segment during the Year was
approximately HK$16.1 million (2015: Nil). It accounted for
approximately 10.6% (2015: Nil) of the Group’s revenue from
continuing operation during the Year. The segment profit of this
business segment was approximately HK$4.0 million (2015: Nil)
during the Year.

The acquisition of Win Fung during the Year enabled the
Company to diversify its business into the financial services
industry and broaden revenue sources of the Group in the
coming financial period.

As disclosed in the report named “Financial Review of the
Securities Industry” for the year ended 31st December 2015
and the report named “Yearly Financial Review of the Securities
Industry” in relation to the year of 2006 published by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, the total
number of active margin clients in Hong Kong increased from
approximately 80,000 in 2006 to approximately 242,000 in
2015, representing a compound annual growth rate (“CAGR”)
of approximately 13.1% and the amount receivable from margin
clients in Hong Kong increased from approximately HK$20.6
billion in 2006 to approximately HK$145.3 billion in 2015,
representing a CAGR of approximately 24.2%. The upward trend
of both total number of active margin clients in Hong Kong and
amount receivable from margin clients in Hong Kong indicate a
continuous growing market for margin financing in Hong Kong.

Furthermore, Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect Program
will be launched soon and cross-border investment activities
will be further encouraged. The Company is of the view that the
securities brokerage services and margin financing business in
Hong Kong is expected to have a strong growth in the future.

Geographical contribution

In terms of geographical contribution, overseas markets (other
than Hong Kong) accounted for approximately 44.5% (2015:
approximately 37.2%) of the Group’s total revenue during the
Year. More revenue are generated from the trading, wholesale
and retails of watches products in PRC after the acquisition of
Winston in July 2015 during the Year as compared to the same
period last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other income

Other income for the Year increased by approximately 27.5 times
to approximately HK$22.9 million as compared to approximately
HK$834,000 in the same period last year. The increase in other
income was mainly due to the dividend income HK$20.4 million
from the available-for-sale financial assets was recorded during
the Year (2015: Nil).

Selling expenses

Selling expenses for the Year increased by approximately
5.7 times to approximately HK$18.3 million as compared to
approximately HK$3.2 million in the same period last year. The
increase in selling expenses was mainly due to the inclusion of
the selling expense of Winston of approximately HK$12.7 million
in the new business of trading, wholesaling and retailing of
watches and jewellery products during the Year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year increased by approximately
47.0% to approximately HK$72.2 million as compared to
approximately HK$49.1 million in the same period last year.

The increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to
(i) the inclusion of the administrative expense of Winston of
approximately HK$9.3 million in the new business of trading,
wholesaling and retailing of watches and jewellery products
during the Year and (i) the increase of legal and professional fee
of approximately HK$2.4 million which was mainly due to the
acquisitions conducted by the Group during the Year.

Income tax credit

The Group recorded income tax credit of approximately
HK$26.2 million during the Year (2015: income tax expenses of
approximately HK$37.4 million), which was mainly attributable to
the deferred income tax credit of approximately HK$29.4 million
arising from the fair value loss on investment securities during the
Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 12th October 2015, the Group, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with four independent third party vendors
to acquire 51% equity interest of AP Group Investment Holdings
Limited (“AP Group”) for consideration of HK$20,400,000
(subject to downward adjustment in respect of the guaranteed
profit as described in the sale and purchase agreement) (the
“AP Acquisition”). AP Group and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in provision of education and training programs in
relation to self-improvement and self-enhancement in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The AP Acquisition was completed on 14th
December 2015.

During the Year, AP Group contributed approximately HK$10.4
million revenue (2015: Nil) to the Group and incurred a segmental
loss of approximately HK$1.2 million (2015: Nil).

On 18th June 2016, the Group and Lucky Famous Limited (the
“Purchaser”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI") and a wholly-owned subsidiary of GET Holdings Limited
entered into a disposal agreement (the “Disposal Agreement”)
pursuant to sell 51.0% of the equity interest of AP Group at the
consideration of HK$20,400,000 (the “Consideration”) subject to
downward adjustments as described below (the “AP Disposal”’).

As at 30th June 2016, the fair value of the total consideration of
the AP Disposal was HK$9,470,000, which comprised (a) initial
consideration of HK$20,400,000 less (b) potential contingent
consideration payable, which is equivalent to the Adjustment
Amount as defined below, in the amount of HK$10,930,000
based on the best estimation of the directors of the Company
taking into account the unsatisfactory operation result of AP
Group during the Year. Given (a) the carrying amount of the cash
generating unit of AP Group of HK$15,059,000 as at 30th June
2016; and (b) the aforesaid fair value of total consideration of the
AP Disposal of HK$9,470,000, an impairment loss on goodwill
of HK$5,568,000 was provided for during the Year. Please refer
to notes 9, 41 and 45(c) to the consolidated financial statements
for further details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the event that the audited consolidated profit after tax of
the AP Group attributable to owners of the AP Group for the
period from 1st January 2016 to 31st December 2017 (“FY
2016 & 2017”) (which will only include income or gain generated
by activities in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the AP Group) (the “FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit”) is less than
HK$16,000,000, the Group shall pay to the Purchaser (or to its
order) the Adjustment Amount (as defined below) in cash within
fourteen (14) Business Days after the audited consolidated
financial statements of AP Group for the period of FY 2016 &
2017 (“FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts”) are available.

The adjustment amount (the “Adjustment Amount”) will be
determined in accordance with the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000.00 - (NP/2) x 5 x 51%
Where:
“A” means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HK$; and

“NP” means the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit. Where the FY 2016
& 2017 Net Profit is a negative figure, “NP” shall be deemed to
be zero.

The FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts will be prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and audited, at the cost of the AP Group, by an accounting firm
as approved by the Purchaser, adjusted for any non-recurring
items. Further announcement will be made by the Company in
relation to the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit and the Adjustment
Amount when the Adjustment Amount is ascertained.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

Such adjustment mechanism is the same with the adjustment
mechanism in respect of the AP Acquisition from the original
owners. Details of such acquisition are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 12th October 2015.

It is the intention of the Group to re-focus the Group’s business
operations, leverage on the expertise of the management in
the Win Fung to further develop the securities brokerage and
margin financing and money lending business of the Group,
and to dispose of other non-core business for better resources
management.

Notwithstanding the downward adjustment mechanism of the
Consideration depending on the actual performance of the AP
Group for FY 2016 & 2017, with reference to the announcement
of the Company dated 12th October 2015 in relation to the AP
Acquisition, the consideration for the AP Acquisition and the
adjustment mechanism for such consideration are the same
as those under the Disposal Agreement. In the event there is a
shortfall between the FY 2016 & 2017 Net Profit and the target
profit of the AP Group for FY 2016 & 2017 of HK$16,000,000,
the adjustment amount is required to be paid by Very Easy
Limited and City Link Consultancy Limited, being the vendors
under the AP Acquisition, to the Group within seven (7) Business
Days after the FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts are available,
and by the Group to the Purchaser within 14 Business Days after
the FY 2016 & 2017 Audited Accounts are available. Accordingly,
the financial consequence from such shortfall of profit of the
AP Group would not theoretically have any material adverse
influence on the financial position of the Group and return of the
AP Disposal is protected in this regard.

The AP Disposal was completed on 1st July 2016 and therefore

the operation of AP Group was reclassified as discontinued
operation for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ACQUISITION OF 49% EQUITY
INTEREST OF GLORY INTERNATIONAL
ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

On 27th August 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (as varied and supplemented by the supplemental
agreement dated 5th May 2016 and entered by the same
parties) with an independent third party vendor (the “Vendor”),
pursuant to which the Group acquired 49% equity interest in
Glory International Entertainment Limited (“Glory Group”), a
company incorporated in BVI with limited liability at an initial cash
consideration of HK$36,750,000 (the “Initial Consideration”) (the
“Glory Acquisition”). The final amount of the consideration (the
“Final Consideration”) for the Glory Acquisition shall be determined
in accordance with the following revised formula:

FC = NP x (12/15) x 7.5 x 49%
Where:

“FC” means the amount of the Final Consideration subject to a
cap of HK$36,750,000;

“NP” means the net profit of the Glory Group for the Relevant
Period (as defined below) (the “Relevant Period Net Profit”),
being the audited consolidated profit after tax of the Glory Group
attributable to owners of the Glory Group for the period from 1st
July 2015 to 30th September 2016 (“Relevant Period”) as shown
in the audited consolidated financial statements of the Glory
Group (“Relevant Period Audited Accounts”) for the Relevant
Period (which will only include income or gain generated by
activities in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Glory Group).

Where the Relevant Period Net Profit is a negative figure, “NP”
shall be deemed to be zero.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

The Group and the Vendor shall, in good faith, determine the
Final Consideration in accordance with the above formula
within 75 days after the Relevant Period Audited Accounts are
available. Within 10 Business Days after the Final Consideration
is determined, where the Final Consideration is less than the
amount of the Initial Consideration, the Vendor shall pay in
cash (or by way of cheque) to the Group a sum equal to such
difference.

For the avoidance of doubt, where the Final Consideration is
equal to or more than the Initial Consideration, neither the Group
required to pay any additional sum to the Vendor nor is the
Vendor required to refund any part of the initial consideration to
the Group.

Glory Group has well-established business in advertising
production, provision of public relations services, holding and
sponsoring stage performance, concerts, film production and
other culture events in Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC, and
the Glory Acquisition will enable the Group to complement its
existing film production business to similar advertising production
business, as well as provision of public relations services in
relation to, among others, promotion of films through various
events. In addition, the directors of the Glory Group and other
shareholders of the Glory Group have years of experience in the
advertising production, provision of public relations services,
holding and sponsoring stage performance, concerts and film
production, and the close alliance between the Group and the
Glory Group may have synergetic effect which will be beneficial
to the Group. Therefore the Board considers that the terms of the
Glory Acquisition are fair and reasonable so far as the Company
and the shareholders are concerned, and the Glory Acquisition is
in the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The Group recorded the share of profit of the associates from
Glory Group of approximately HK$4.5 million for the Year (2015:
Nil).

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 27th August
2015 and 5th May 2016 for the details of Glory Acquisition.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

An impairment loss of approximately HK$18.4 million was
made during the Year with reference to the valuation of Glory
Group as at 30th June 2016 prepared by the Valuer for the
purpose of assessing the value in use of Glory Group. The
methodology used in the valuation report was income approach
using discounted cash flow method, which was consistently
applied to the valuations as at the date of completion of the
Glory Acquisition (“Glory Completion”) and 30th June 2016. The
calculation used cash flow projections based on latest financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group covering a
period of 5 years and at a post-tax discount rate. The cash flow
projections during the budget period are based on the expected
operation result during the budget period, and are extrapolated
using a 3% growth rate beyond the 5-year period, which is the
same for both valuations as at Glory Completion and as at 30th
June 2016.

The pre-tax discount rate has changed from approximately
22.4% as at Glory Completion to approximately 18.5% as at
30th June 2016, which is mainly attributable to changes in
market conditions, such as long-term risk free rates in Hong
Kong and market equity risk premium.

Due to the unsatisfactory ticket box office of the first
self-produced film of Glory Group called “Kidnap Ding Ding
Don” in Hong Kong which was first released in late June 2016,
the Group has reduced the expected operational result of Glory
Group in the future. Such lowered expected operational result
of Glory Group lead to a decreased estimated future cash flows
and hence a decreased valuation of Glory Group. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$18.4 million attributable to
Glory Group was recognised in the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

NEW/POTENTIAL INVESTMENTS AND
OUTLOOK

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 24th June
2016, the Group and the vendors entered into the sale and
purchase agreement to acquire 100% equity interest of
Ample Capital Limited (the “Ample”) at the consideration of
HK$30,000,000. The Target is licensed under the SFO to carry
out Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. The
Directors considered the acquisition of the Ample as a further
step to strengthen the Group’s foothold in the financial services
industry. The above acquisition is not completed yet as at the
date of this report.

In addition, the Group will continue to identify different investment
opportunities in other business sectors with enormous potentials.
This allows the Group to further diversify its businesses and
broaden the income sources and therefore maximising the return
to its shareholders.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES/LIQUIDITY

The Group’s financial position remained healthy. As at 30th June
2016, the Group had cash balances of approximately HK$101.2
million (2015: approximately HK$102.8 million).

As at 30th June 2016, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$1,150.7 million (2015: approximately
HK$739.6 million).

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 30th June 2016 is 1.77% (2015:
1.63%), which was calculated on the basis of the total debt
(including borrowings, obligations under finance lease and bank
overdraft) divided by total equity of the Group.

Finance cost for the Year is approximately HK$2.3 million (2015:
approximately HK$170,000). The significant increase of finance
cost is mainly due to the increase of the Group’s borrowing
outstanding during the Year for the acquisition and development
of new/current business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In light of the fact that most of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States
dollars, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi. The Group will continue to take proactive measures
and monitor its exposure to the movements of these currencies
closely.

CAPITAL REORGANISATION AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

1. Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 26th
May 2015, Company’s circular dated 24th June 2015
and Company’s prospectus dated 24th July 2015, the
Company proposed to raise not less than approximately
HK$120.55 million and not more than approximately
HK$134.36 million before expenses by issuing not less
than 596,760,614 and not more than 665,160,614 new
shares (“First Rights Shares”) at the subscription price of
HK$0.202 (“First Subscription Price”) per First Rights Share
on the basis of two (2) First Rights Shares for every one
(1) share in issue held on the 23rd July 2015 (“First Rights
Issue”).

The First Subscription Price of HK$0.202 per First Rights
Share represented:

()  a discount of 74.75% to the closing price of HK$0.8
per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
26th May 2015, being the last trading day of the
announcement of First Rights Issue;

(i) adiscount of approximately 49.66% to the theoretical
ex-rights price of approximately HK$0.4013 per share
based on the closing price of HK$0.8 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 26th May 2015;
and

(i) a discount of approximately 72.78% to the average
closing price of approximately HK$0.742 per share
for the last five consecutive trading days immediately
prior to 26th May 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

The First Subscription Price was arrived at after arm’s
length negotiations between the Company and the
underwriter with reference to the market price of the shares
and the prevailing market conditions.

The First Rights Issue was completed on 13th August 2015
and an aggregated of 596,760,614 First Rights Shares
have been issued. The net proceeds from the First Rights
Issue were approximately HK$114.8 million and were used
as following up to 31st August 2016:

BERRBEDKANTDEBHE2ER
2 TERE R MR R FEERME

=
x-°

FE—RHBEER-_ZT—RAFENA+Z=H
SR I B A £ 17596,760,6140% & it
AR D - KRB HE — R R 2 TS RIE
FERHI148BEEBT RBE_Z
—NENA=Z+—HEHARTHAE:

Intended use of proceeds Actual use of proceeds

Approximately HK$114.8
million, of which:

(i) not more than
approximately HK$50.0
million was intended
for the development of
money lending business;
and

not more than
approximately HK$43.4
million for the existing
business of holding
and sponsoring stage

(i

=

performance, concerts
and other cultural
events as well as the
entertainment business
in Hong Kong and PRC.

(iii) not less than
approximately HK$21.4
million for the working
capital of the Group.

The Group has applied as
intended:

(i) approximately HK$50.0
million for the development
of money lending business;
and

(i) approximately HK$43.4
million for the film
production in Hong Kong
and PRC.

(i) approximately HK$16.2
million for the general
working capital of the
Group.

The remaining unutilised
proceeds of approximately
HK$5.2 million will be utilised
as intended.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 26th
May 2015 and Company’s circular dated 24th June 2015,
the Company entered into a placing agreement (the “First
Placing Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company
appointed a placing agent to procure, on a best effort
basis, not less than six placees to subscribe for up to
586,350,000 new shares of the Company (“First Placing
Shares”) at a price of HK$0.3411 per First Placing Share
(“First Placing”). The placing price of HK$0.3411 per First
Placing Share represented:

(i) a discount of approximately 57.36% to the closing
price of HK$0.8 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 26th May 2015, being the last trading
date of the announcement of the First Placing
Agreement;

(i) adiscount of approximately 15.00% to the theoretical
ex-rights price of approximately HK$0.4013 per
share based on the closing price of HK$0.8 per share
as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 26th May 2015
(taking into account the effect of the First Rights
Issue); and

(i)  a discount of approximately 54.03% to the average
of the closing price per share of HK$0.742 as quoted
on the Stock Exchange for the last five consecutive
trading days immediately prior to 26th May 2015.

Assuming the maximum number of the First Placing Shares
was placed, the gross proceeds from First Placing would
be approximately HK$200.0 million and the net proceeds
would be approximately HK$192.5 million. On such basis,
the net issue price would be approximately HK$0.3283 per
First Placing Share.

The First Placing Price of HK$0.3411 was arrived at after
arm’s length negotiations between the Company and the
placing agents with reference to the theoretical ex-rights
price of approximately HK$0.4013 (taking into account
the effect of the First Rights Issue) with a discount of
approximately 15.00%.
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The First Placing Agreement was completed on 28th July
2015 and an aggregated of 586,350,000 First Placing
Shares have been successfully placed to not less than six
placees. The net proceeds from the issuance of the First
Placing Shares were approximately HK$192.5 million and
were used as following up to 31st August 2016:

Intended use of proceeds Actual use of proceeds

Approximately HK$192.5  The Group has applied as
million, of which: intended:

(i) approximately HK$20.0 (i) approximately HK$20.0
million was intended million for the development
for the development of its existing business in
of its existing business trading, wholesale, and
in trading, wholesale retail of watch and jewellery
and retail of watch and products;
jewellery products,
or if the acquisition
of 79.99% of the
enlarged share capital
of Winston Asia Limited
is not approved by the
Shareholders or does
not proceed, for the
money lending business
of the Group;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DT

Intended use of proceeds Actual use of proceeds

(i) not less than
approximately HK$36.75
million was intended for
the possible acquisition
of a target company
principally engaged
in film and advertising
production, provision of
public relations services,
holding and sponsoring
stage performance,
concerts and other
cultural events in Hong
Kong, Taiwan and the
PRC. If such acquisition
does not proceed,
the Company would
seek other investment
opportunities in the
same industry;

(i) approximately HK$36.75

million to acquire 49% of
the issued share capital

of Glory International
Entertainment Limited
principally engaged in film
and advertising production,
provision of public
relations services, holding
and sponsoring stage
performance, concerts
and other cultural events

in Hong Kong, Taiwan and
the PRC as disclosed in the
Company’s announcement
dated 27th August 2015;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

Intended use of proceeds Actual use of proceeds

(ili) approximately HK$55.0
million to Cassia
Investments Limited
Partnership I, with the
option granted to the
Group to subscribe up
to 15.45% of the issued
capital of Cassia Optical
Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability, which
owned 85% equity interest
in a group of companies
which are principally
engaged in the production,
supply and distribution of
frames for eyeglasses and
other optical products as
announced on 5th October
2015;

(iiiy not less than
approximately HK$55.0
million was intended for
the possible acquisition
of a group of companies
principally engaged in
the production of frames
for eyeglasses and
optical products. If such
acquisition does not
proceed, the Company
would seek for other
investment opportunities
in the same industry;

(iv)approximately HK$35.0
million for the development
of money lending business;

for the development of and

money lending business;

and

(ivynot more than
approximately HK$35.0
million was intended

(v) approximately HK$45.75 (v) approximately HK$45.75
million was intended for million as general working
the working capital of capital of the Group.
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

It was the goal of the Group to expand its revenue and
income stream and stabilise its revenue and income
through (i) the acquisition of new businesses, which are
considered to have a relatively stable income stream, from
other parties; and/or (ii) further expansion of the other
existing business segments of the Group. As such, the
Group conducted the First Placing and the First Rights
Issue to finance the acquisition of new business and further
expansion of other existing business segments of the
Group. The Board also considered that the First Placing
and the First Rights Issue represented a good opportunity
to broaden the shareholders’ base and the capital base of
the Company.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 29th
January 2016 and Company’s circular dated 23rd
February 2016, the Company proposed to implement the
reorganisation of the share capital of the Company (“Capital
Reorganisation”) involving (a) the consolidation of every 10
issued and unissued pre-consolidated shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company (“Pre-consolidated
Shares”) into 1 consolidated share of HK$0.10 in the
share capital of the Company (“Consolidated Share” and
“Consolidated Shares” shall be construed accordingly; (b)
the reduction of the issued share capital of the Company
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.09 on each of the issued
Consolidated Shares such that the nominal value of each
issued Consolidated Share will be reduced from HK$0.10
to HK$0.01; and (c) the sub-division of each of the
authorised but unissued Consolidated Shares of HK$0.10
each into 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital
of the Company (“Share” and “Shares” shall be construed
accordingly). The Capital Reorganisation became effective
on 18th March 2016.
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As announced on 23rd March 2016, the Company entered
into a placing agreement (the “Second Placing Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Company appointed a placing
agent to procure, on a best effort basis, not less than six
placees to subscribe for up to 29,625,000 new Shares
of the Company (“Second Placing Shares”) at a price of
HK$0.779 per Second Placing Share (“Second Placing”).
The Second Placing price of HK$0.779 per Second Placing
Share represented:

(i) a discount of approximately 18.0% to the closing
price of HK$0.95 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 23rd March 2016, being the date of the
Second Placing Agreement; and

(i)  a discount of approximately 11.7% to the average
closing price of HK$0.882 per Share (as adjusted as
a result of the Capital Reorganisation) as quoted on
the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive trading
days of the Shares immediately prior to 23rd March
2016.

The Second Placing Price was determined after arm’s
length negotiation between the Company and the placing
agent with reference to, among other matters, the
prevailing market prices of the Shares.

Assuming the maximum number of the Second Placing
Shares is placed under the Second Placing Agreement,
the gross proceeds from the Second Placing will be
approximately HK$23.1 million and the net proceeds
will be approximately HK$22.2 million (after deduction of
commission and other expenses of the Second Placing).
On such basis, the net issue price will be approximately
HK$0.749 per Second Placing Share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Directors are of the view that the Second Placing
can strengthen the financial position of the Group and
provide working capital to the Group to meet any future
development and obligations. The Second Placing also
represents good opportunities to broaden the shareholders’
base and the capital base of the Company. The Directors
consider that the Second Placing is in the interest of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The Second Placing Agreement was completed on 13th
April 2016 and an aggregated of 29,625,000 Second
Placing Shares have been successfully placed to not less
than six placees. The net proceeds from the issuance of
the Second Placing Shares were approximately HK$22.2
million and all such proceeds were utilised for general
working capital for the Group.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 12th July
2016, Company’s circular dated 12th August 2016 and
Company’s prospectus dated 9th September 2016, the
Company proposed to raise not less than approximately
HK$213.3 million and not more than approximately
HK$220.4 million before expenses by issuing not less
than 355,548,184 and not more than 367,399,760 new
shares (“Second Rights Shares”) at the subscription price
of HK$0.60 (“Second Subscription Price”) per Second
Rights Share on the basis of two (2) Second Rights Shares
for every one (1) share in issue held on the 8th September
2016 (“Second Rights Issue”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

The Second Subscription Price represents:

(@ a discount of 25.00% to the closing price of
HK$0.800 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 12th July 2016, being the last trading
date of the announcement of the Second Rights
Issue;

(b) a discount of approximately 24.24% to the average
closing price of HK$0.792 per share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange for the last 5 consecutive trading
days immediately prior to 12th July 2016;

(c) a discount of approximately 25.19% to the average
closing price of HK$0.802 per share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange for the last 10 consecutive
trading days immediately prior to 12th July 2016;

(d) adiscount of approximately 10.04% to the theoretical
ex-rights price of approximately HK$0.667 based on
closing price of HK$0.800 per share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on 12th July 2016;

(e) a discount of approximately 88.56% to the
Group’s unaudited consolidated net asset value of
approximately HK$5.247 per share (“NAV”), based
on the unaudited consolidated net asset value of
the Group of approximately HK$777,318,000 as
at 31st December 2015 as disclosed in the interim
report of the Company for the six months ended 31st
December 2015 and 1,481,490,921 Shares in issue
as at 31st December 2015 taking into account the
effect of Capital Reorganisation.

The Second Subscription Price was determined after
arm’s length negotiations between the Company and
the underwriter with reference to, among others, (i)
the prevailing market price of the Shares prior to 12th
July 2016 and the theoretical ex-rights price; and (ii)
the historical market prices of the Shares which have
represented discounts to the NAV ranging from 77.13% to
89.33% for the recent six months prior to 12th July 2016,
and in particular a discount of approximately 84.75% to
the NAV as represented by the closing price of HK$0.8 per
Share on 12th July 2016; and (iii) the capital needs of the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The gross proceeds of the Second Rights Issue will be
approximately HK$213.3 million before expenses. The
estimated net proceeds of the Second Rights Issue,
after deducting all relevant expenses, are estimated
to be approximately HK$204.9 million. Based on the
net proceeds of approximately HK$204.9 million, after
deducting all relevant expenses relating to the Second
Rights Issue, the net price per Second Rights Share is
approximately HK$0.58. The Company intends to apply
the net proceeds from the Second Rights Issue as follows:

1. approximately HK$150.00 million for expansion of
margin financing business;

2. approximately HK$45.7 million for expansion
of money lending business, including potential
acquisition of listed and unlisted shares of money
lending companies; and

38 HK$9.2 million for repayment of the principal of
the coupon note or other loans of the Group (if
applicable).

The Group intends to strengthen its existing businesses
and continue to identify different investment opportunities
in various business sectors with enormous potentials to
further diversify its business and broaden the income
sources to maximise the return to the shareholders. It is the
intention of the Group to expand its revenue and income
stream through further development of securities brokerage
and margin financing and money lending business of the
Group. In view of the above, the Board considers that the
Second Rights Issue will enable the Group to strengthen
its capital base for future expansion of its existing business
and enhance its financial position. Furthermore, the
Second Rights Issue will offer the qualifying shareholders
the opportunity to maintain their respective pro-rata
shareholding interests in the Company and participate in
the growth and development of the Company. As such,
the Directors consider that the terms of the Second Rights
Issue are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The Second Rights Issue was not completed yet. The
Company will announce the results of Second Rights Issue
in early October 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

THE PLEDGE OF GROUP’S ASSETS

At 30th June 2016, bank balances — (general accounts) with
an aggregate value of approximately HK$3,000 were pledged
as collaterals for bank overdrafts and bank borrowings of a
subsidiary.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitment outstanding at 30th June 2016
was approximately HK$62.1 million which was for subscription of
available-for-sale financial assets.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30th June 2016, the Group employed 167 staff (2015:
52). Remuneration is reviewed annually and certain staffs are
entitled to commission. In addition to basic salaries, staff benefits
included discretionary bonus, medical insurance scheme and
mandatory provident fund.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Certain Directors and employees of the Group have been
granted share options under the Share Option Scheme, details
of which are set out in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” of the Report of the Directors on page 62 to 66 of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil, aged 54, is the founder and
chairman of the Group. He is involved in marketing, corporate
strategy, business planning and development and overall
management of the Group. Mr. Lam has 34 years of experience
in the film industry in Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Young
Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries in 2002.

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, aged 75, is mainly responsible for the
business development of the Group. He has over 30 years
of experience in the film distribution industry. Mr. Hung was
the founder of Delon International Film Corporation and has
been its General Manager since June 2004. Mr. Hung was the
Organizing Committee Chairman of the 11th and 12th Hong
Kong Film Awards from 1991 to 1993 and from 1993 to 1995,
Mr. Hung was the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hong
Kong Film Awards Association Limited. Mr. Hung is currently the
Chairman of Hong Kong Motion Picture Industry Association. In
recognition of his contribution to the Hong Kong film industry,
Mr. Hung was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(*HKSAR”) in 2005. From April 2007 to March 2013, Mr. Hung
was appointed by the Government of HKSAR as a member of
the Hong Kong Film Development Council. Mr. Hung is also
a member of HKSAR Election Committee and since January
2018, he has been appointed by the Government of HKSAR as
a non-official member of the Working Group on Manufacturing
Industries, Innovative Technology, and Cultural and Creative
Industries under the Economic Development Commission.
Mr. Hung was a non-executive director of Capital VC Limited
(stock code: 2324) from September 2011 to January 2014 and
an independent non-executive director of Mascotte Holdings
Limited (stock code: 136) from January 2013 to October 2015.
Currently, Mr. Hung is the chairman and executive director of Jia
Meng Holdings Limited (stock code: 8101), an independent non-
executive director of China Star Entertainment Limited (stock
code: 326), an independent non-executive director of Freeman
Financial Corporation Limited (stock code: 279), an independent
non-executive director of Unity Investments Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREEAEFN

(stock code: 913), an independent non-executive director of
Sunrise (China) Technology Group Limited (stock code: 8226),
and an independent non-executive director of Miko International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1247). Mr. Hung joined the Group
in October 2013.

Ms. CHENG Hei Yu, aged 37, has extensive experience in
property investment and securities management in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Ms. Cheng held senior positions in business
development in various private companies including Best Port
Travel (H.K.) Limited and Leading Global Investment Limited
where she was involved in a number of business projects and
was responsible for strategic development and management.
Ms. Cheng joined the Group in December 2015.

Mr. LAM Kit Sun, aged 39, is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Group. He is responsible for the
financial and investments functions of the Group. Prior to joining
the Group in 2013, he has over 10 years’ experience in the field
of financial reporting, financial management and audit experience
in the PRC and Hong Kong. He graduated from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration in Accounting. Mr. Lam is a fellow and
practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”), an associate of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and a non-
practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lam was an executive director and a non-
executive director of Kiu Hung International Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Kiu Hung Energy Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 381) for the period from October 2009 to July 2013 and
for the period from August 2013 to April 2016 respectively,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director
of DX.com Holdings Limited (“DX”) (stock code: 8086) from
August 2013 to January 2015, an independent non-executive
director of GET Holdings Limited (“GET”) (stock code: 8100)
from October 2013 to April 2015 and was also the chief
financial officer and company secretary of Finsoft Financial
Investment Holdings Limited (“Finsoft”) (formerly known as
Finsoft Corporation) (stock code: 8018) from September 2013 to
February 2015. The shares of each of DX, GET and Finsoft are
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
(the “GEM”). He joined the Group in August 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Shiu Kwong Stephen, aged 59, holds a Master
degree in Professional Accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a Bachelor of Commerce Accounting from
Curtin University of Australia. He is currently a fellow member
of HKICPA, a fellow member of Certified Public Accountants
(Australia), a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and an affiliated member
of American Society of Appraisers. He has completed a
certificate course in PRC accounting and PRC tax law from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Currently, he is also a member
of The Association of Hong Kong Professionals and Hong Kong
and Kowloon Chiu Chow Public Association.

Mr. Chan has over 25 years of experience in property
development, manufacturing, travel and gaming related
industries. He has worked for various multi-national organisations
and Hong Kong listed companies including American President
Lines, Paccess International, Tileman UK, Dairy Farm Cold
Storage, Hopewell Construction, Shui On Construction, Wing
On Travel and Deloitte and equipped with profound experience
in merger and acquisition transactions, treasury, strategies and
risk management, corporate finance, accounting, tax planning
and company secretary practice. Since 20th April 2005 and 27th
August 2012, Mr. Chan has been appointed as an executive
director and company secretary of Neptune Group Limited (stock
code: 70), a company whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan is also an independent
non-executive director of China Jicheng Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1027), a company whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan joined the Group in
March 2015.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAM Wing Tai, aged 50, is currently the company secretary
of Worldgate Global Logistics Ltd (stock code: 8292), the
shares of which are listed on GEM and an independent non-
executive Director of Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited (stock
code: 397), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. He studied accounting at the Australian
National University and obtained a Bachelor of Commerce
degree in 1991. Mr. Lam is a member of both the CPA Australia
and HKICPA. Mr. Lam was an executive director of Ngai Shun
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1246), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from March
2015 to July 2015. He was also an independent non-executive
director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code:
8148), the shares of which are listed on GEM, from October
2015 to January 2016. He was the company secretary of Dafeng
Port Heshun Technology Company Limited (stock code: 8310)
and Computech Holdings Limited (currently known as Interactive
Entertainment China Cultural Technology Investments Limited
(stock code: 8081)) the shares of which are listed on the GEM.
He joined the Group in October 2013.

Mr. CHOI Wing Koon, aged 39, is currently the financial controller
and company secretary of Global Energy Resources International
Group Limited (stock code: 8192), the shares of which are
listed on GEM. Mr. Choi holds a bachelor’s degree of business
administration in accounting awarded by the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 1999. Mr. Choi also
obtained a master degree of business administration awarded by
the University of Hong Kong in 2014. Mr. Choi is a fellow of the
ACCA and a member of the HKICPA. Mr. Choi has over 14 years
of experience in accounting and company secretarial field. He is
currently the independent non-executive director of G Neptune
Berhad, a company listed on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad. Mr. Choi was an independent non-executive
director of Zhidao International (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
1220) from January 2012 to September 2014 and the financial
controller and company secretary of Taung Gold International
Limited (stock code: 621) from September 2010 to April 2013,
shares of both of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He joined the Group in December 2013.
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Mr. LAM Chi Keung (“Mr. CK Lam”), aged 46, is currently the
chief executive officer and an executive director of Co-Prosperity
Holdings Limited (stock code: 707) and an executive director of
Sino Haijing Holdings Limited (stock code: 1106), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He
was an independent non-executive director of Convoy Financial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1019) whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from March 2014
to June 2016. He was also the group financial controller and
company secretary of Ngai Shun Holdings Limited (stock code:
1246) from January 2014 to October 2014, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. CK Lam
holds a bachelor’s degree of science in accounting awarded
by Brigham Young University-Hawaii in 1996. Mr. CK Lam also
obtained a master’s degree of science in e-Commerce from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2002. Mr. CK Lam is a
fellow of the HKICPA and a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. CK Lam has around 19 years
of experience in accounting and corporate finance. He joined the
Group in December 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of a good
standard of corporate governance practices by emphasising
transparency, accountability and responsibility to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The board of directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”) (the
“Board”) has adopted the code provision as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Continuous
efforts are made to review and enhance the Group’s internal
controls and procedures in light of changes in regulations and
developments in best practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Company has, throughout the year ended 30th June 2016
(the “Year”), complied with the code provisions contained in the
Codes except for the code provision A.2.1 of the Code for the
separation of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQ”) as described in the following.

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code sets out that the roles of the
Chairman and CEO should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not at
present have any officer holding the position of CEO. Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil is the founder and Chairman of the Company
and has also carried out the responsibilities of CEO. Mr. Lam
possesses the essential leadership skills to manage the Board
and extensive knowledge in the business of the Group. The
Board considers the present structure to be more suitable to
the Group because it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Group’s strategies.
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THE BOARD

Duties and Composition of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of
the management of business, strategic decisions and
financial performance of the Group for the best interests of
the Shareholders. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management power, administration and operation of the Group
to the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company. The Board regularly reviews its arrangement on
delegation of responsibilities and authority to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate in view of the Group’s prevailing
circumstances.

The following matters (including changes to any such matters)
are reserved for the approval of the Board:

(@ any matter determined by the Board to be material involving
any conflict of interest for a substantial Shareholder or a
Director;

(o) any matter relating to the formulation of the Company’s
strategies and directions including:

(i) policies relating to the overall strategic direction and
strategic plans of the Company;

(i)  policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

(i) policies relating to the declaration of dividend; and

(iv)  the entering into of contracts involving acquisitions,
investments, disposal of assets or any significant
capital expenditure which are deemed to be material
by the Board.
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(c) financial controls, compliance and risk management:

()  the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets for the Company;

(i)  the approval of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements and published reports;

(i) the establishment and review of the effectiveness of
the Company’s systems of internal control and risk
management process; and

(ivy the adoption of, or approval for any significant
changes in, accounting policies or procedures of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

(d) changes to the Company’s capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of
new securities, other than in accordance with the terms
of the share option scheme(s) or other incentive schemes
adopted by the Company from time to time;

(e)  major appointments and removals:

(i) appointments to the Board, taking into account any
recommendations of the nomination committee of
the Company (the “Nomination Committee”);

(i) the appointment of the Chairman;

(i) recommendation to the Shareholders on the
appointment or removal of the external auditor after
taking into consideration the recommendations of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”); and

(iv)  the appointment or removal of the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”).
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() delegation of authority:

(i) changes to the terms of reference or membership of
any committee of the Board;

(i)  changes to the authority delegated to the Chairman
and the senior management; and

(i) matters which exceed the authority delegated to the
Chairman and the senior management.

(99 the adoption, review and approval of changes to the
Corporate Governance Practice Manual of the Company,
the Code of Ethics and Securities Transactions applicable
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of eight Directors, with
four executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors. The names and
biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 37 to 41 of this
annual report.

The independent non-executive Directors are all experienced
individuals, all of them have accounting professional
qualifications. Their mix of professional skills and experience
is beneficial to the Board to formulate the long-term business
strategies and monitor the operational and financial matters of
the Group.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

The list of the Directors has been published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively, and
is disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to cover the liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING/
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contributions to the Board remains informed and relevant.

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the
Company encourages Directors to attend relevant seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company will
also update the Directors of any material changes in the Listing
Rules and corporate governance practices from time to time.

A record of the training received by the respective Directors are
kept and updated by the Company Secretary.

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating in
any suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION
OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of a new Director is made on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee or by the
Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director who is appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board shall retire at
the next annual general meeting.

Currently, all independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of three years pursuant to code provision A4.1
of the Code. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election
in accordance with the provision of the Listing Rules and the
bye-law(s) of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). At least one-third
of Directors shall retire from office every year at the Company’s
annual general meeting.

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, Mr. Lam Wing Tai and Mr. Chan Shiu
Kwong Stephen will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with 87(1) and
87(2) of the Bye-laws and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at such meeting.
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Each of Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong Stephen and Mr. Lam Wing Tai
will not offer himself for re-election as Director at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong
Stephen and Mr. Lam Wing Tai confirmed that he had no claims
whatsoever against the Company for fees, compensation for
loss of office, remuneration, severance payments, pension,
expenses or otherwise and they have no disagreement with the
Board and he had no matters relating to his retirement that need
to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders or the Stock
Exchange.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for
re-election and the candidates who will be proposed to be
elected as Directors, please refer to the circular containing
the notice of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be despatched.

BOARD MEETINGS

Each year, the Board normally held four regular board meetings
at approximately quarterly interval. 26 board meetings were
convened during the Year and the attendances of each Director
at these meetings are set out as follows:

Board meeting

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 23/26
Mr. Hung Cho Sing 23/26
Ms. Cheng Hei Yu
(appointed on 8th December 2015)
10/13
Mr. Lam Kit Sun 26/26
Mr. Yeung Kim Piu
(retired on 30th November 2015)
13/13
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong Stephen 25/26
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Wing Tai 23/26
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 24/26
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 24/26
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SREARE

GENERAL AND SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue
with the Shareholders and in particular, communicates with them
in annual general meetings or other special general meetings and
encourages their participation.

One annual general meeting and five special general meeting
were convened during the Year and the attendances of each
Director at these general meetings are set out as follows:

Annual Special
General General
Meeting Meeting

Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman) 1/1 5/5
Mr. Hung Cho Sing 1/1 2/2
Ms. Cheng Hei Yu

(appointed on 8th December 2015)

N/A 0/3
Mr. Lam Kit Sun 1/1 5/5
Mr. Yeung Kim Piu

(retired on 30th November 2015)

1/1 2/2
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong Stephen 1/1 1/5
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Wing Tai 11 4/5
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 1/1 2/5
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 1/1 2/5

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”), the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of
reference (@amended on 29th February 2012) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Choi Wing Koon (as chairman), Mr. Lam Wing Tai,
Mr. Lam Chi Keung and an executive Director, namely, Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and senior management,
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy.

The model of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the
Company is to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The main principles of the Group’s remuneration policies are:

(@  no Director should be involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration;

(b) remuneration should be determined by taking into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, levels of responsibilities,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration;

(c) the management’s remuneration proposals should be
reviewed and approved by reference to corporate goal and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(d) recommendations should be made by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.
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6 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at these meetings are
set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Wing Koon (Chairman) 6/6
Mr. Lam Wing Tai 5/6
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 6/6
Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 6/6

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and discussed the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee has also approved the remuneration
and the discretionary bonuses of the executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group by reference to their
respective levels of responsibilities and performance, industry
benchmarks, prevailing market conditions and the Group’s
financial performance. No Director was involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee with specific written terms of
reference (amended on 30th August 2013) was established by
the Company on 15th July 2005. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Lam Chi Keung (as chairman), Mr. Lam Wing Tai and
Mr. Choi Wing Koon and an executive Director, namely, Mr. Lam
Shiu Ming, Daneil. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company respectively.
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, culture and educational
background, ethnicity, skills knowledge and length of service)
of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy as well as assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

1 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of each committee member at these meetings are
set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Keung (Chairman) 11
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 1/1
Mr. Lam Wing Tai 1/1

Executive Director
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil 1/1

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11th October
1999. The written terms of reference (@amended on 29th February
2012), which describe the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee, were prepared and adopted with reference to “A
Guide for Effective Audit Committee” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in accordance
with the Code. The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Wing Tai
(as chairman), Mr. Lam Chi Keung and Mr. Choi Wing Koon. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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The Audit Committee meets, at least twice a year, with the
external auditor to discuss any area of concern during the audit
or review. The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
review of the Group’s financial information and oversight of the
Group’s financial and accounting practices, internal control and
risk management. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim
and final results of the Group.

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

3 committee meetings were convened during the Year and the
attendances of the each committee member at these meetings
are set out as follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Wing Tai (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Lam Chi Keung 3/3
Mr. Choi Wing Koon 3/3

The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement of
the external auditor, the revised accounting standards, the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 31st
December 2015 and annual consolidated financial statements
for the Year. The Audit Committee also reviewed the internal
control systems and met with the external auditor to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligation prior to
the commencement of and after the completion of the audit.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for, amongst other things,
the development and review of the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and monitoring the
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, and reviewing the
corporate governance compliance with the Codes and disclosure
in the annual report.

The corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In view of the new amendments of the Code in respect of
diversity of board members that has come into effect on 1st
September 2013, the Board has formulated and adopted its
diversity policy on 30th August 2013.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for the internal control
of the Group, including risk management, and sets appropriate
policies having regard to the objectives of the Group. The
Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted a review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of financial and non-financial
controls. The system of internal control is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Controls are
monitored by management review.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
and ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting
Standard and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Crowe
Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report from pages 76 to 78 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) has resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 14th April 2016 as the Company
and PwC could not reach a mutual agreement in respect of the
audit fee for the financial year ended 30th June 2016.

The Company is incorporated under the laws of Bermuda and
to the knowledge of the Board there is no requirement under the
laws of Bermuda for the resigning auditor to confirm whether or
not there is any circumstance connected with their resignation
which they consider should be brought to the attention of
the shareholders and creditors of the Company. PwC has
therefore not issued such confirmation. The Board and the
audit committee of the Company have confirmed that there are
no matters relating to the resignation of PwC that need to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”).
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The Board has resolved, with the recommendation from the audit
committee of the Company, to appoint Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited as the new auditor of the Company with effect from 14th
April 2016 to fill the vacancy following the resignation of PwC
and to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited who will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. For the Year, the remuneration
payable to auditors is set out as follows:
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Fees payable

Services rendered B 12 14 AR 75 EHER
HK$’000

F#ExT

Audit services EET RS 1,601
Non-audit services I RS 650
2,251

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Kit Sun is the company secretary of the Company.
His biographical details are set out under the section headed
“BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” of Directors and Senior Management Profile on
page 38 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code throughout the Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a communication
channel between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held each year and
at a place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting. The Board may whenever it thinks fit
convene special general meetings.

The procedures for Shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong, to require a special general meeting to
be convened by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the
Board

The enquiries must be in writing with the detail contact
information of the requisitionists and deposited with the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.
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The procedures for Shareholders to put
forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at an annual general meeting, or
a special general meeting, the Shareholders should submit
a written notice of those proposals with the detail contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will be
verified with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong (the
“Share Registrar”) and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting varies according to the nature of the proposal, and the
relevant notice periods are set out as follows:

o At least 14 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company
in a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company in
a special general meeting.

° At least 21 clear days’ notice (the notice period must
include 20 clear Business Days (Note)) in writing if the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting.

Note: Business Day means any day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities.
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The procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

According to the Bye-laws, no person other than a retiring
Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election,
be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless a notice in writing signed by a shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election as a director and also a notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected (including
that person’s biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules) shall be lodged with the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or the
Share Registrar’s place of business in Hong Kong provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such
notice(s) shall commence on the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

If such notice(s) are received less than ten business days prior
to the date of such general meeting, the Company will need to
consider the adjournment of such general meeting in order to
allow the Shareholders fourteen clear days’ notice (the notice
period must include ten Business Days (Note)) of the proposal.

Note: Business Day means any day on which The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited is open for the business of dealing in
securities.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of the
Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to
be voted by a show of hands.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION
POLICY

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy to set out the Company’s procedures in providing the
Shareholders and the investment community with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, in order to enable the Shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow the
Shareholders and the investment community to engage actively
with the Company.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of
the Board, the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, another member of
the Board, committees or an appointed representative, will attend
the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer questions of
the Shareholders. The Company will also invite representatives
of the Auditors to attend the forthcoming annual general meeting
to answer the Shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum of association of the Company and the Bye-
laws are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company respectively.
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The board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”) submit
their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of Universe International Financial Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for
the year ended 30th June 2016 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHANGE OF COMPANY’S NAME

By a special resolution passed on 29th June 2016, the name of
the Company was changed from “Universe International Holdings
Limited” to “Universe International Financial Holdings Limited”.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 81
to 82.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2015: same).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the Year are set out in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 36 of this
annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) by reason of
their holding of the shares of the Company.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately HK$165,000 (2015: HK$1,705,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out on page 291 of the annual report.

CAPITAL REORGANISATION

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 29th January
2016 and Company’s circular dated 23rd February 2016, the
Company proposed to implement the reorganisation of the share
capital of the Company (“Capital Reorganisation”) involving (a) the
consolidation of every 10 issued and unissued pre-consolidated
Shares of HK$0.01 each (“Pre-consolidated Shares”) in the share
capital of the Company into 1 consolidated share of HK$0.10
in the share capital of the Company (“Consolidated Share”
and “Consolidated Shares” shall be construed accordingly, or
“Share” and “ Shares” shall be construed accordingly); (b) the
reduction of the issued share capital of the Company through a
cancellation of the paid-up capital of the Company to the extent
of HK$0.09 on each of the issued Consolidated Shares such
that the nominal value of each issued Consolidated Share will
be reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01; and (c) the sub-division
of each of the Authorised but unissued Consolidated Shares
of HK$0.10 each into 10 Shares of HK$0.01 each. The Capital
Reorganisation became effective on 18th March 2016.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 30th June 2016
amounted to HK$95,492,000 (2015: HK$95,143,000) including
contributed surplus, of HK$112,429,000 (2015: HK$99,096,000),
which is only distributable subject to conditions as set out in
Note 27(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 292 of
the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the Year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the annual
general meeting held on 2nd December 2013, the Company
conditionally approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Details of
the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to selected Participants
(as defined below) as incentive and/or rewards for their
contributions and support to the Group and any invested
entity.
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(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion,

invite any person

belonging to any of the following classes of participants
for their contributions and support to the Group and
any invested entity (the “Participants” and individually, a
“Participant”) to take up share options to subscribe for
shares.

M

(il

)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

any full-time employee of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity, including (without
limitation) any executive director of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or invested entity (individually, an
“Employee”);

any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any invested entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any invested entity;

any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technical support to the Group
or any invested entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
invested entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any invested entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
any member of the Group or any invested entity; and

any joint venture partner or counter-party to business
operation or business arrangements of the Group.

(b)
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(c) Maximum number of share options
available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme

U)

(i)

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share option
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes for the time
being of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. Share options of
the Company which are lapsed or cancelled for the
time being shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the said 30% limit; and

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted under the Share Option Schemes is
an amount equivalent to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the dates of approval of the
Share Option Schemes unless approval for refreshing
the 10% limit from the Company’s shareholders has
been obtained.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted to each grantee
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
for the time being of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant to each grantee must not
exceed 1% of the aggregate number of shares for the time
being in issue.
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Remaining life and exercisable period of
the share options

There is no general requirement that a share option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised
but the Board is empowered to impose at its discretion
any such minimum period at the time of grant of any
particular share option. A share option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at
any time during a period of 10 years commencing on the
Date of Grant and expiring on the last day of the said 10-
year period.

Payment on acceptance of the share
options offer

A sum of HK$1 is payable by the Participant on
acceptance of the share option offer.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option
Scheme should be a price notified by the Board to a
Participant to whom any offer of the grant of a share option
is made and shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant which must be
a business day; and (i) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant, provided that the subscription price
should not be lower than the nominal value of a share.
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Particulars of the share options under the Share Option Scheme
outstanding during the Year and as at 30th June 2016 were as
follows:

RERAERR-_F-—R"ENA=Z1TH Bi#E
SHEET r‘ﬁi TR ZBREZFRNT

Number of Number of
share options Adjusted number share options
Price per share outstanding  Adjusted number ~ Number of share  of share options ~ Number of share  Number of share outstanding ~ Market value per
Period during which onexercise of ~at the beginning ~ of share options  options granted after Capital options exercised  options lapsed atthe end of  share on grant of
Participants Date of grant share options are exercisable options oftheyear ~after Right Issue  duringthe year ~ Reorganisation  during the year  during the year theyear ~ share options
RER) 34 ¥4 £ BREQ4Z R £n RER &Y
TERRER HAfTEZ ang Rtz &ag Bz Bk#z KTz BRERZ
S8A BHAH BREGES Atz ERER BRENE BRENE BRERE BRENE BRENE BRERE BRENE ERAE
HKS HKS
9 AT
Executive directors
HiEs
MclamShioMing Danel 21stduy2014  2stdly 201410 20t Juy 2016 w077 2072000 3343673 - 34367 - - 334367 o
WAL ZT-QIE ZF-PMFLAZ+-BE
tA=+-B ZE-AFLAZTR
Mr. Hung Cho Sing 21st July 2014 21st July 2014 to 20th July 2016 10.77° 2,072,000 3,343,673 - 334,367 - 2 334,367 94
EHERSE —3-mE Z3-BELA-t-RE
tA=t+-B Z3-3EtAZ1R
M Vach 2016 4 March 2016 o 092 - - Bt 1481400 - - 1481400 0774
3rd March 2018
IR ZE-REZfNAZ
=AmA —3-\£=h=R
s, Cheng Hel Yu A Mach2016 4 March 2016 10 092 2 S VY ST 1481400 . . 1481400 0774
3 March 2018
BERLL I L3 Z3-7EZAMAZ
’HEE ~2-N\5ZAzR
Mr. Lam Kit Sun 1st July 2014 21st July 2014 to 20th July 2016 1077 2,072,000 3,343,673 - 334,367 - - 334,367 94
WEREE Z?*Wﬁ “I-BELA-t-RE
tAzt+-B Z2-EEAZ1R
M Vach 2016 4 March 2016 o 092 - R VYT 1481400 - - 1481400 0774
31 March 2018
“E-RF :g, ~AmAZ
=ARA ~3-)\§2AZR
Non-executive directors
FHTES
M. Chen S Kwong, Sephen 4 March 2016 44h Mereh 2016 o 092 - - Bt 1481400 - - 1481400 0774
3rd March 2018
BAREE —I-7% - 5=AmAZ
=AmA —3-\£=h=R
Ot eigbe partcipants 21ty 2014 215t duy 201410 20h uly 2016 w077 8B40 14317763 . 1431775 . (334367) 1,097,408 o
EHABREEA I SI:3 ZEI-BELAZ1-AE
tAzt-B S o
30th Septemoer 2015 30t September 2015 fo 169¢ - - 07080 2072088 - - 2,072,088 1614
29th September 2017
ZZ-1F —F-RFNA=1RZ
AA=1R ZF-tEAAZtAA
M Vach 2016 4 March 2016 o 092 - N Y 3853700 - - 3853700 0774
31 March 2018
“E-RF Z3-7EZAmAZ
=ARmA —5-N\5=8=R
508640 43878 1185TAK0 14286264 s [436T 13951807
g The price per share on exercise of options and market value per — * TTIEAE AR 2 &7 R 1B 15 £ 1 111 FE IR 1
share on grant of options have been adjusted after taking into BRTEEERNA NI A =F— ’ﬁ
account of the effect of (i) the rights issue (the “First Rights Issue”) FAAZFANAZRM A AGHHB=F
pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 26th May —AFNAZFREZBRE ARG AR
2015, Company'’s circular dated 24th June 2015 and Company’s —E—AFt+tAZFTHAZEREAM I Ei
prospectus dated 24th July 2015, which was completed on R-ZF—HAFNA+=H /ic'“Z /Zv ([E&
13th August 2015, (ii) the capital reorganisation (the “Capital KRERR)) ()AL E AR A= / \ ﬁ—“ A
Reorganisation”) pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated ZFNAZ R AR A /@ —NEF
29th January 2016, Company’s circular dated 23rd February 2016 A =ZHZAREM W /K\_ TN
and became effective on 18th March 2016. F=HAF+NAEXRAEH ([REEA])
CREEEL
# The price per share on exercise of options and market value per — # TTIEMB R IR > B R B 15 B1IR 1 FE IR i b 2>

share on grant of options have been adjusted after taking into
account of the effect of the Capital Reorganisation.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LAM Shiu Ming, Daneil (Chairman)
Mr. HUNG Cho Sing
Ms. CHENG Hei Yu

(appointed on 8th December 2015)
Mr. LAM Kit Sun
Mr. YEUNG Kim Piu

(retired on 30th November 2015)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Shiu Kwong Stephen

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LAM Wing Tai

Mr. LAM Chi Keung

Mr. CHOI Wing Koon

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, Mr. Lam Wing Tai and Mr. Chan Shiu
Kwong Stephen will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with 87(1) and
87(2) of the Bye-laws and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at such meeting.

Each of Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong Stephen and Mr. Lam Wing Tai
will not offer himself for re-election as Director at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong
Stephen and Mr. Lam Wing Tai confirmed that he had no claims
whatsoever against the Company for fees, compensation for
loss of office, remuneration, severance payments, pension,
expenses or otherwise and they have no disagreement with the
Board and he had no matters relating to his retirement that need
to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders or the Stock
Exchange.

For the biographical details of the Director who will stand for
re-election and the candidates who will be proposed to be
elected as Directors, please refer to the circular containing
the notice of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be despatched.
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All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a specific term and subject to retirement by rotation as specified
by the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the above independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company is
satisfied that they are independent as such.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 51 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company,
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT
SECURITIES

As at 30th June 2016, the interests of each of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares capital of
the Company (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFQO”"))
which were required to be (a) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interest which any such Director was taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b)
entered in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or; (c) notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) were as follows:

Interests in Shares — Long positions
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Subtotal number

of shares and
Number of underlying
Shares and shares of the Approximate
underlying Company held percentage of
Name of Director or shares of by each Director/ the total issued
chief executive of the Company chief executive share capital of
the Company Capacity held of the Company the Company
RES/KNAIE fBALT
BEELAR TBRARRRAZ B&iT
R RER  AAFRBREAR RAGRZ
ESyANAEEAHABZRA 51 i8R fRin 2 8B Mt BB
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil founder of a discretionary trust 5,673,951
(note i)
WAL E SEETEHEA 5,673,951
(M)
beneficial owner 334,367 6,008,318 3.38%
(note i) (note iv)
EREAA 334,367 6,008,318 3.38%
(M&Ei) (BizHv)
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Subtotal number
of shares and
Number of underlying
Shares and shares of the Approximate
underlying Company held percentage of
Name of Director or shares of by each Director/ the total issued
chief executive of the Company chief executive share capital of
the Company Capacity held of the Company the Company
REE/KNAIE fBALT
BEELNR TBRARRRAZ B&iT
R RER  FAAFRGREAR RAGR2
ESgANATEAHABZRA 51 i8R fRir 28 B Mt BaE L
Mr. Hung Cho Sing beneficial owner 1,815,767 1,815,767 1.02%
(note iii (note iv)
HHERE EREAA 1,815,767 1,815,767 1.02%
( Firaii) (BizHv)
Mr. Lam Kit Sun beneficial owner 1,815,767 1,815,767 1.02%
(note iii (note iv)
R EREAA 1,815,767 1,815,767 1.02%
( Firsii) (Biztv)
Ms. Cheng Hei Yu beneficial owner 1,481,400 1,481,400 0.83%
(note iv)
gEhgt EREAA 1,481,400 1,481,400 0.83%
(Pt sEiv)
Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong, Stephen beneficial owner 1,481,400 1,481,400 0.83%
(note iv)
Raxrs EREAA 1,481,400 1,481,400 0.83%
(Pt sEiv)
Notes: Bt 5

0] These 5,673,951 Shares are held by Globalcrest Enterprises (i) % %5,673,95108 % 5 FA Globalcrest

Limited, which is wholly owned by Central Core Resources Limited. Enterprises Limited$f & ' Globalcrest
Central Core Resources Limited is the trustee of a discretionary Enterprises Limitedfi Central Core Resources
trust founded by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, the chairman of the Limited% & # /& - Central Core Resources
Board and an executive Director. As such, Mr. Lam Shiu Ming Limted BHEF S TR RATEEM )AL
Daneil is deemed to be interested in all the 5,673,951 Shares FEIFRN R EEFENIFEA - F L AR/
held by Globalcrest Enterprises Limited. Certain immediate family 5t A 1 45 & 1 Globalcrest Enterprises Limited
members of Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil are discretionary objects of Frs A 82 585,673,951 IR (0 R R B #ERS -
the aforesaid discretionary trust. MPORAEECETEREB R L2 EET

ZRIEFHA

(i) These 334,367 underlying Shares of the Company relate to share (i) 7% 5334,367/% 7 A & #H B8 f& 10 B2 K 2 &) %
options granted by the Company to Mr. Lam Shiu Ming Daneil. T NREEZERESRE-
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(i)~ These interests are underlying shares of the Company in respect
of share options granted by the Company to each of Mr. Hung
Cho Sing, Mr. Lam Kit Sun, Ms. Cheng Hei Yu and Mr. Chan Shiu
Kwong, Stephen.

(iv)  The percentage holding is calculated based on the issued share
capital of the Company as at the 30th June 2016 comprising
177,774,092 Shares.

All interests in the shares of the Company were long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2016, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short position in the share, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations which were
required to be (a) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests which they were deemed or taken to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or; (b) entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO or; (c) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year, the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) had any interest in,
or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for
shares (or warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company
and its associated corporations required to be disclosed
pursuant to the SFO.

In addition, at no time during the Year was the Company, its
holding company, its subsidiaries, or its fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and chief
executives of the Company (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or short position
in the shares or underlying shares in or debentures of, the
Company or its associated corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 30th June 2016, no shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in Bermuda.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the Year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 19.13%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 41.83%
Sales

— the largest customer 4.84%
— five largest customers in aggregate 17.79%

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers
or customers noted above.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Universe Digital Entertainment Limited (“UDE”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy
agreement with Universe Property Investment Limited (‘UPI”), a
company owned by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, the executive
Director of the Company, for renting (1) an industrial unit on the
18th Floor of a 28-storey industrial building over a 2-storey lorry/
car parking podium plus a 2-level basement (with a saleable
area of approximately 13,983 square foot) and (2) 5 carparking
spaces on the 2nd Floor of a 28-storey industrial building over
a 2-storey lorry/car parking podium plus a 2-level basement
for warehouse, ancillary office and carparking uses from 1st
February 2014 to 31st January 2017, with a monthly rental of
HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy Agreement”) which were arrived at
following arm’s length negotiation between the Group and Mr.
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil with reference to the rental valuation
performed by Roma Appraisals Limited as at 30 November 2013
which reflects the then market rent. During the Year, UDE has
paid totally HK$2,928,000 rent (2015: HK$2,928,000) to UPI in
accordance to the Tenancy Agreement.

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil is a connected person of the
Company (as defined under the Listing Rules). Accordingly,
the Tenancy Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. Since
the applicable percentage ratios for the continuing connected
transactions were less than 5%, the Tenancy Agreement satisfied
the exemption under Rule 14A.34(1) of the then Listing Rules
and was only subject to the reporting and the announcement
requirements and, the annual review requirements set out in
the then Listing Rules, and was exempt from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
then Listing Rules.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors. The
independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions were entered into
(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms; and (c) in accordance with the
Tenancy Agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its letter
containing its conclusion in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 73 of this annual
report in accordance with Rule 14A.57 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange in accordance with Rule 14A.57 of the
Listing Rules.

Apart from the above, there are other related party transactions
entered into by the Group during the Year, all of which constituted
exempted connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules, details of these transactions are disclosed in Note
51 to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in note
52 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as at 30th June 2016.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) has resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 14th April 2016 as the Company
and PwC could not reach a mutual agreement in respect of the
audit fee for the financial year ended 30th June 2016.

The Company is incorporated under the laws of Bermuda and
to the knowledge of the Board there is no requirement under the
laws of Bermuda for the resigning auditor to confirm whether or
not there is any circumstance connected with their resignation
which they consider should be brought to the attention of
the shareholders and creditors of the Company. PwC has
therefore not issued such confirmation. The Board and the audit
committee of the Company have confirmed that there are no
matters relating to the Resignation that need to be brought to
the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

The Board has resolved, with the recommendation from the audit
committee of the Company, to appoint Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited as the new auditor of the Company with effect from 14th
April 2016 to fill the vacancy following the resignation of PwC
and to hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited who will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th September 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZBETHRES

N\ Crowe Horwath.

To the shareholders of Universe International Financial
Holdings Limited

(Formerly known as “Universe International Holdings Limited”)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Universe International Financial Holdings Limited (formerly
known as “Universe International Holdings Limited”) (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) set
out on pages 79 to 290, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 30th June 2016, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’'s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BARHMRES
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BARHBMBRES

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
30th June 2016, and of the Group’s financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30th September 2016

Kwok Cheuk Yuen
Practising Certificate Number P02412
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

M A& ==
w3 :E\Eﬁ'fﬁ%‘%
As at 30th June 2016 RZ=ZZF—NFNA=1+H

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2016 . 2015
R-F—N"E RZ—1F
~HA=1+H ~NHA=+H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iix=2 FET T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M R REE 6 6,224 5,229
Investment properties "EYE 7 25,560 25,560
Goodwill B ) 9 59,447 1,314
Other intangible assets HEMmpEE 8 14,231 1,858
Film rights and films in progress B RBRER 2
B 10 54,278 17,906
Interests in associates RN P v s 12(a) 25,730 5,022
Interests in joint ventures RELERNAIZ R 13(a) 482 706
Loans receivable R E R 21(a) 20,000 =
Loan receivable from a joint venture B —R&Z R A Z
L 13(b) 8,364 8,140
Film related deposits £ R 31,592 38,195
Deposits paid EE & 14 363 6,204
Deferred tax assets RIEHIAE E 30 365 380
Contingent consideration FEY S A RAE
receivable o 22 10,930 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AfEESREE 16 85,802 88,415
343,368 198,929
Current assets MENEE
Inventories rE 19 14,304 5,841
Accounts receivable & IR X 20 224,739 14,183
Loans receivable FERE 21(a) 23,163 37,000
Loan to an associate EY—HBERRZ
B 21(b) 5,000 =
Amount due from a joint venture R —MEEE QA
TRIE 13(c) - 10
Deposits paid, prepayments and EfETE  BARIEBER
other receivables H b & W 5K IA 14 68,492 65,722
Financial assets at fair value FREREAYE
through profit or loss ARz S REE 15 247,444 315,109
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR NS
— trust accounts — {55k P 23 116,667 =
Cash and cash equivalents BENREEEY 24 101,173 102,834
\ 800,982 540,699
Assets associated with disposal group D ERBIFIELE 2 HE
classified as held for sale ARz BB E 41 6,381 -
Total current assets HEEEHRE 807,363 540,699
Total assets #a 1,150,731 739,628
EQUITY L - S
Equity attributable to the owners ZAN/NSIE RSN L)
of the Company s
Share capital [i% 7% 25 1,778 2,984
Share premium 1% 17 4 (8 27(a) 532,910 213,630
Other reserves H b 27(a) 67,301 148,463
Retained earnings RE AT 27(a) 151,162 206,943
753,151 572,020
Non-controlling interests FJEVE IR M (1,230) 247
Total equity B 751,921 572,267

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REEEREXR

As at 30th June 2016 R=F—NNFNA=+H

As at As at
30th June 30th June
2016 2015

RZZB—R"E RKR_T—4%F
~A=+H NA=1H

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ExT FET
LIABILITIES &8&
Non-current liabilities EnBafk
Borrowings EE 28 - 9,200
Obligations under finance lease A B THE AR 29 63 97
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIBAE G 30 2,229 29,813
2,292 39,110
Current liabilites ~ m®ga&
Accounts payable fE T HR K ) 31 254,722 4,189
Amount due to an associate S —RE L REz
#1F 12(b) 1,941 -
Other payables and E b FRIE &
accrued charges JEET 2 H 32 64,121 52,869
Borrowings BEE 28 9,200 =
Deposits received EWETE 43,813 56,726
Obligations under finance lease wl & H E AR 29 35 35
Taxation payable FEZBIIA 9,068 14,432
Bank overdrafts RITHEZ 28 4,020 -
\,\ 386,920 128,251
Liabilities associated with disposal DER/FBIEHEZ
group classified as held for sale HEHRZIEBa%E 41 9,598 =
Total current liabilities mEaEEaE 396,518 128,251
Total liabilites ~ @a&g 398,810 - 167,361
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 1,150,731 739,628
Net current assets mBEEFEE 410,845 412,448
Total assets less current liabilites @BZEERGZHAR 754,213 611,377

The notes on pages 86 to 290 are an integral part of these  HH N FE86HE = F200H 2 Mt At 424 B
consolidated financial statements. BHRE2—HD e

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 290 #H R F79H £ FE200B 2 LAV HEHREN =
were approved by the Board on 30th September 2016 and ZT— AFALA=Zt+HEKEESHENEEN

were signed on its behalf. TRERZEZ-
On behalf of the Board REESE
Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Lam Kit Sun

Director Director

BB BT

EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SETHWER

For the year ended 30th June 2016 #Z —Z—

NENA=FHILFE

2016 2015
—E—REF —hF
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
M5 F#xT FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS: ﬁ.i?,%@%%;]% :
Revenue 4 7= -
Sales of goods — video distribution, & &M — SR 31T
optical, watches and jewellery HE - EER R
products KEEm_ 72,320 6,877
Income on film exhibition, BB -EHK
licensing and sub-licensing of LLEERAT T ON
film rights 45,563 34,234
Income from other businesses H b ZE U A 33,150 29,154
Total revenue Pl g 151,033 70,265
Income PN
Fair value change of financial assets & B IE A FE
at fair value through profit or loss AR SREE
YNSRIk £ (143,564) 229,943
Total revenue and income &I E R IR A 5 7,469 300,208
Cost of revenue and income LE T ONES
Cost of inventories sold EEFERAR (38,000) (4,803)
Related cost on film exhibition, BRI - X H R
licensing and sub-licensing of R E 2 hAE
film rights SN (13,129) (18,917)
Cost from other businesses H th ZERE R (3,775) (21,829
Total cost of revenue and income I ON D ES (54,904) (45,549)
Selling expenses HEEH (18,275) (3,234)
Administrative expenses THER (72,240) (49,117)
Other income HAnlg A ) 37 22,872 834
Other gains/(losses) — net Hablzs,/ (B#E)
— 8 38 151 (248)
Other operating (expenses)/income  Efigea (BA) WA (4,429) 826
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary = L NG s 46 — 6
Gain on step acquisition of 7 B B W BE — R P 8
a subsidiary nalz Was 45(a) 1,571 -
Fair value change on investment WEWME L ANTEE
properties 7 - 500
Impairment loss of film rights and films & AR & &AEH
in progress s 2 RIBER 10 (4,226) (5,818)
Fair value change and loss on BEE AR ES 2
redemption of convertible bonds N EZSREE (1,813) -
Fair value change on contingent FEW SRR E 2 AT A
consideration receivable ) 22 4,080 -
Fair value change of contingent ERSAREZATE
consideration payable gE) 60 =
Impairment loss of goodwill BRI EEE 9 (29,923) =
Impairment loss on interest R—EBE AR
in an associate R EE e 12(a) (18,421) S
Amortisation of other intangible assets i £ 12 & & 4 § 8 (135) =
Finance income BRI 39 298 314
Finance costs B 7% B AN 33(c) (2,263) (170)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates &1 5 & A A
wmAl (EE)_ 3,899 (38)
Share of loss of a joint venture B —Haeg R REE (224) (218)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRFTERA] (B1E) Al 33 (166,453) 198,296
Income tax credit/(expense) s (FAxX) 40 26,179 (37,366)
(Loss)/profit for the year FARBBELZEER
from continuing operations w(&BR),af (140,274) 160,930
DISCONTINUED OPERATION: CHRIERER:
Loss for the year from discontinued 4 A2k B B X 48 &
operation X% HE R 41 (1,602) =
NEFHR BFEBRESRERERA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AEEEWER

For the year ended 30th June 2016 #HZ_—F

—NFNA=THIFE

2016 2015
—E—REF —hF
Note HKS000  HKS000
B & E F#xT FET

(Loss)/profit for the year N (BE), m i (141,876) 160,930
Other comprehensive Hiem (BR)

(loss)/income: U &=
ltems that may be reclassified to profit 7] g & & %ﬁ SEZE

or loss: BwmcIEE

Change in fair value of AEHESMEAEY

available-for-sale financial assets N EED (12,340) 8,347

Currency translation differences ERBRE = (708) (18)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income &R H {2 & (BHHE)

for the year, net of tax W IR HIR (13,048) 8,329
Total comprehensive (loss)/income £N 2@ (B#E),~

for the year W R (154,924) 169,259
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners 7/ Al #E A A K& 15

of the Company: (&518) /:in_;. i

— from continuing operations -REFBREXR (139,973) 161,956

— from discontinued operation -REE Z%JJ:Z% BT (817)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to AR BB AEEF A

owners of the Company (E518) &= F (140,790) 161,956
(Loss)/profit attributable to R E GRS

non-controlling interests: (1) /i #l -

— from continuing operations -REFEEEER (301) (1,026)

— from discontinued operation -RECRIEEEER (785) =
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to FE22 % # &5 F& {5 F

non-controlling interests (BE) OBEF (1,086) (1,026)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income A TEIEENE@E

for the year attributable to: (B18) W asmEE

Owners of the Company AREIFEHA (153,852) 170,285

Non-controlling interests FE 12 I e (1,072) (1,026)

(154,924) 169,259

Total comprehensive (loss)/income A2 E#HEAMEL Z

attributable to owners of the M (B8 WE

Company arises from: MERA

Continuing operations FEGEx% (153,050) 170,285

Discontinued operation BRI E TR (802) =

(153,852) 170,285

(Loss)/earnings per share P NCTE XN

attributable to owners of LS (BBE)

the Company for the year B (AEBTHTR) : (Restated)

(expressed in HK$): (reE%)

From continuing and REFERDEL

discontinued operation S

~ basic “EAR 42(a) (0.980) 6.266

— diluted —HEE 42(b) (0.980) 6.185

From continuing operations REFEREER

~ basic “ER 42(a) (0.974) 6.266

— diluted HE 42(0) (0.974) 5.185

The notes on pages 86 to 290 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30th June 2016 ﬁ_t: =

Attributable to the owners the Company

N

—/_\fF’/\ﬁ: +HILFE

AAAEEARE
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves eamings Total interests equity
(Note 27(a))
2 B EE Lt RBEH @it FERESR s
(Kiskord)
Note HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik T iR TR T T T ThL
Balance at 1st July 2014 RZF-MELR-RZ&H 34,578 136,842 83,492 44,987 299,899 - 299,899
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Proit forthe year Epg . = - 161,956 161,956 (1,006) 160,930
Other comprehensive income EUET T
Change in value of available- At ESRAR BEEY
for-sale financial assets 16 - - 8,347 - 8,347 - 8,347
Currency translaton differences ERREER = = (18) = (18) - (18)
Total other comprehensive LOES T
income - - 8329 - 8,329 - 8329
Total comprehensive income ENZENGAE
for the year - - 8329 161,956 170,285 (1,02) 169,259
Transactions with owners HREACLSE
Issue of new ordinary shares ARERTHLAR
from placing 2 15,650 80,277 - - 95,921 - 95,927
Transaction costs attributable to REERTHLRRER L
issue of new ordinary shares RARAE
fiom placing % . (3,469 . . (3,469 . 3,489
Capital reorganisation hrEs 2% (47,044) - 47,044 - - - -
Employee share option scheme g ﬂéﬂﬂ *2‘
- Issue of share options e = = 9,398 = 9,398 - 9,398
Non-controling interests arising Ha ﬁEiZ? ERER
on business combination 45() - - - - - 273 213
Capital injection from FaERER TR
non-controling interests - - - - - 1,000 1,000
Total contributions by and FATRFANEER
distribution to owners of AEAAREARRZ
the Company, recognised S8 ERNERTED
directly in equity (31,504) 76,788 56,642 - 101,836 1,213 103,109
Balance at 30th June 2015 and RZF-LERAZHAR
st July 2015 ZE-1ELA-AER 2,984 213,630 148,463 206,943 572,020 247 572,267
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year EREE - - - (140,790) (140,790) (1,086) (141,876)
Other comprehensive loss H2EER
Change in value of avalable- Wfﬁﬁénﬂﬁé
for-sale financial assets B2y 16 - - (12,340) - (12,340) - (12,340)
Currency translation differences Wﬁ%%ﬂ - - (722) - [722) 14 (708)
Total other comprehensive loss Lt 2ERELE - - (13,062) - (13,06 14 (13,048)
Total comprehensive loss EN2ABRER
forthe year - - (13062 (140790) (163,852) (1072 (154,924)
Transactions with owners HHFNZL5E
Issue of new ordinary shares RRERTHERR
from placing 25 6,159 216,923 - - 223,082 - 223,082
Transaction costs attibutable toissue ~ ARERTHEBRELZ
of new ordinary shares from placing FHRE 2% - 8,026) - - 8,026) - 8,026)
Rights issue of shares HRETRA % 5968 114578 - - 120,546 - 120546
Transacton costs atrbutable oissue  REBRETTHERREZ
of new ordinary shares fromrights issue R ZFA % - (4,195) - - (4,195) - (4,195)
Capital reorganisation 71@@ 2% (13,333 - 13,333 - - - -
Lapse of unlisted warrants 3H:Fﬁw{’ﬁ%§§§%@l 27e) - - (81,961) 81,961 - - -
Employes share option scheme EEBRETE
~Issue of share options —&%M&ﬁ‘ - - 3,576 = 3576 = 3576
- Lapse of share options BRELT ﬁ( - - (3,048) 3048 S = -
Non-controling interest arising on %i%A{#E?LZQ BRER
business combination 45(c) - - - - - (405) (405)
Total contributions by and FRARFALER
distribution to owners of BEAAREARRZ
the Company, recognised S8 EENESTED
directly in equity (1,208) 319,280 (68,100) 85,009 334,983 (405) 334,578
Balance at 30th June 2016 R-B-RERAZHAZ
43 1,778 532,910 67,301 151,162 753,151 (1,230 751921

The notes on pages 86 to 290 are an integral part of these #H R FE86H £ F2008 v M At 4546
consolidated financial statements. Bk —HBo
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\/-ﬁ Iﬁﬁ/}lbi%

For the year ended 30th June 2016 #EZ —%

—NFNA=THULFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M aE F#xT FET
Cash flows from operating activities BEERHZRERE
Net cash used in operating activities & EEEMAZERE 44 (100,904) (41,385)
Cash flows from investing activities BREFHZRER ;
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of Wi —EHEA
cash acquired HERAEAZ fﬁ @ 45 (81,497) (2,400)
Investment in associates R AR ZIRE (38,792) (5,060)
Purchase of property, BAWE HRREE
plant and equipment 6 (1,632) (4,236)
Decrease in film related deposits BYR@EGTE 2R 6,186 850
Payments for film rights and BRMERRER 2
films in progress ES-ANE 10 (49,489) (7,639)
Investment in available-for-sale ] ﬁi( Hj ESHMEERE
financial assets 16 (11,330) (25,103)
Proceeds from disposal of an HEAHHEEREEL
available-for-sale financial asset FT{830UE - 969
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - 7% BRHEREZ
plant and equipment FTi85kI8 44(a) = 140
Interest received BURF 8 39 74 96
Dividends received from BERAIEEESREE
available-for-sale financial assets 2B 37 20,473 =
Net cash used in investing activities REFHMAZERE (156,007) (42,383)

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER
For the year ended 30th June 2016 #Z =F—~NFNA=+HILFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-0EF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M5 FET FH&T
Cash flows from financing activities MEEFHZHERE
Proceeds from placing of fo & 37 ik <
new ordinary shares TS I8 223,082 95,927
Payments for transaction costs ST AL E T
attributable to issue of L BERER
new ordinary shares from placing R KA (8,026) (3,489)
Proceeds from rights issue of shares HRBEITRGD 2
PSR 120,546 -
Payment for transaction costs SRR T
attributable to issue of L BRENLS
new ordinary shares from rights issue R KA (4,195) =
Proceeds from borrowings EEZFB%E 50,000 9,200
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (62,000) =
Payment for redemption of R RRER 2 TR
convertible note (64,000) -
Capital element of finance leases REBENRZELRE S
payments 44(b) (34) (26)
Interest paid BERFE 33(c) (2,263) (170)
Capital injection from non-controlling Ak — R EH B A A
interest arising from incorporation of EEZIERERTE
a new subsidiary - 1,000
Net cash generated from MEFHELEZFERSE
financing activities 253,110 102,442
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERFRESEWZF
cash equivalents (iR 4) /8 m (3,801) 18,674
Currency translation differences EBBE = (521) (18)
Cash and cash equivalents RENRESRREEEY
at beginning of the year 102,834 84,178
Cash and cash equivalents RELKRERRESEY
at end of the year 98,512 102,834
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents: HERBEEEBWH#T:
Cash and cash equivalents ReKREEZEEY 24 97,153 102,834
Cash and cash equivalents included FADEABELEZ
in disposal group classified HEKENREREAESE
as held for sale EY 41 1,359 -
98,512 102,834

The notes on pages 86 to 290 are an integral part of these N FE86E EF290B 2 Mt At E4R A 8
consolidated financial statements. Bz — oo
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Universe International Financial Holdings Limited (formerly
known as “Universe International Holdings Limited”) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in securities brokerage and margin
financing, money lending, leasing of investment properties,
securities investment, video distribution, film distribution
and exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights,
provision of training and coaching services, trading,
wholesaling and retailing of optical, watches and jewellery
products in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
address of the principal place of business of the Company
is 18th Floor, Wyler Centre Phase I, 192-200 Tai Lin Pai
Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company on 29th June 2016, the Company’s
name was changed from “Universe International Holdings
Limited” to “Universe International Financial Holdings
Limited” with effect from 3rd August 2016.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$’000”),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board
on 30th September 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHHREE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation 21 lREEAE

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(*HKASs”) and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets, contingent consideration
receivable, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, contingent consideration payable,
convertible bonds and investment properties,
which are carried at fair value.

Disposal group held for sale are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell (Note 2.28).

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
[t also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The actual results may differ
from these estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.

REBOEREMBHRRIIRIEA
BERBEEVBBREER([FE
MBEHREER] AREAR B
TEREBGMAG([FES
RN AE]) BT EE R R E
PBREMBHREREA FEGTE
A (FAEER]) Rk (12
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REMEHI 2 REREMRR - 1L F
MBRENTABMRAES LT
AMAN(TEMRRAD B ERRER

;'_Eo

HEEEMBRERCIRRESL K
AEmE URATHEESRE
E REIARE EBBERRA
FEAERNEREE BHIAK
B TRBREFRREMENER
(BRAFEIIR) MELER -

FEHEZHEMAR RREEER
RFEBRLHERAEZREEZ
5l (Pf5E2.28) °

WA E BB RE LA MER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

()

(i)

(i)

Application of new or revised HKFRSs

There is no new or revised HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA effective for the first time in the
current year.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)

The Company has adopted the amendments
to the Listing Rules issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited relating to the
disclosure of financial information with reference
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) during the current financial year.
The main impact to the financial statements is
on the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the financial statements.

New Standards and amendments to
standards not yet adopted

The following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations to existing
standards have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1st July
2015 and have not been early adopted:

2 EEE

UK E (m)

2.1 MRBIEE (@)
EHREHRIEE

()

(i)

(ii)

JE ARG AR 5T BB AT
HHEER
FERGHMASHMERGR
REFEERERZ T HE
BRI EEMBREER -

FrEE (allEp) (F
622% )

KRERBD CRRIEH)D) (F
622F ) 1% ' AR\ A A B K
FEEERMNBBEEBHERS
FrERAFMBEREYE TR
BlEEMBEREENE
RlocH M BHEMNETEFE
ERBBRERNEGE TERD
25 REE-

14 KR FraTE R R &
Az EGTA

TOFAT R R ZER]
ARBRENZZER-F
—HFLtA-BRRNIK
FEEEMEMRER B
I LR PR

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after

BT BEAE

ZEFRE

o R HARS A 3

Annual Improvement Project Annual Improvements 2012-2014 1st January 2016

Cycle

FEBGEIER —E-HEZ-T-NFERZ —E-RF—-HA—AH

FENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHHREE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 WRBIEE ()
BHBREHREE (@)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(i) RN Z FTETER R E
Rz 1EET A (48)

(i) New Standards and amendments to
standards not yet adopted (Continued)

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
R B
ZEFRE
FEHBEN

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Amendments

BB BRELERIFE105 R
ARG ERFE28 (1BFTA)
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 Amendments
BRI ELERE105
BAMBGRELRFE125 R
BEGFTERIFE28 (1BFTA)
HKFRS 11 Amendments

BB BRELERIFE1155
(1BRTA)

HKAS 1 Amendments

BEEGFEAE1E (BFTR)

HKFRS 2 Amendments

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

JWEEREBE AR NEE AR
ZHZEENESFE

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

WEERE  ERGE AR ZHI

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
WHEaEE B ER STRE

Disclosure Initiative

B E

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

a date to be determined

BERE

1st January 2016

i

1st January 2016

i

1st January 2016
Z—x%—A—H
1st January 2018

BAMBMELRNE2S (BFIAR) URGOAEBZNHZH2 —E-NF—H—H
HEREE

HKAS 7 Amendments Disclosure Initiative 1st January 2017

BAGTERIETH (BEFTA) B E —E—+tF—-HA—H

HKAS 12 Amendments

EEGTERE125 (BFTA)

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
RARFHBERREEHRIBEE

1st January 2017

T—LF—A—H

TRRERIERAR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE KR ERMEE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEESHRME @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 WRBIEE ()
Changes in accounting policy and B BREE RIEE (#)
disclosures (Continued)
(i) New Standards and amendments to (i) e R ERA 2 FTETERI R 2E
standards not yet adopted (Continued) A2 (E5T K (&)

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
BT BEAE
Z & BRI
FEEHBEY
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of HKFRS 15 1st January 2016
Amendments Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation
BAAGEAFE 165K HEAVBMEERE15 (Al —F—X"F—HA—H
BAGTHERIEIS (BFTA) RITEREERE] 2BE
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1st January 2016
Amendments
BAGTTERIFI6H R B AEMHEY —ET-RF—-H—H
BEGFTERFEA1H (1BFTE)
HKAS 27 Amendments Equity Method in Separate Financial 1st January 2016
Statements
BAGFERIFE27H (BETA) B IR 2 A —E-RF—-H—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1st January 2018
B AR EZER B TRTA —ET-N\F—-H—H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1st January 2016
BB BIRELERIFE 1455 EEIRLERE —E-RF—-HA—H
HKFRS 15 Amendments Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue 1st January 2018
from Contracts with Customers
BB ELERFE 1555 HE BB @ELEL —ET-N\F—-H—H
(8517) F155 [EHNRPWE] 2&F
HKFRS 16 Leases 1st January 2019
BAN B RELERE 165 HE —E-NF—A—H
The Group is in the process of making an ANEB I FA(GFEHZE S
assessment of what the impact of these HEYE RSN
amendments and new standards are expected B EZE-F B R AL
to be in the period of initial application. So far ESHWNTHERm:-KAEHE
it has concluded that the adoption of them BT AT KA fe e H 434 BF
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the R FERTEATE -

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.

2.2 MR M IFFE IR &

REVBRRME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the owners
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s ownership

interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2.12), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is

classified as held for sale).

2.3 Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised

at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 /ncomes Taxes and

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e R RMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

° liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 EEEHHBREE @

2.3 Business combinations (Continued) 2.3 ¥EEH (:m)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another HKFRS.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which
the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Investments in associates and joint

ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
a long term interest of generally not less than
20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have a joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 EEEHHBREE @

2.4 Investments in associates and joint 2.4 REtERNR REERTA]

98

ventures (Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognizes its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealized losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss
of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is classified as held for sale, it is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Asset
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a
joint operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets
held jointly;

° its liabilities, including its share of any
liabilities incurred jointly;

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and

o its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
relating to the Group’s interest in a joint operation
are accounted for in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

2

Bt 75 R 2R MY

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each

segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Chairman of the
Company (the chief operating decision maker)
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation
currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FE MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 EEEHHBREE @

2.7 INESRE I, ()

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (b) X5 R&EH
Foreign currency transactions are translated INEZ SRR S ANGE
into the functional currency using the H (BB ZEHTE)MEXR
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the BREAEKEK - KENSE
transactions or valuation where items are RGEENERKRZEMEE
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and AR A AINESHENE K E
losses resulting from the settlement of such EMBENFREZREE
transactions and from the translation at year- ERE R R ESBELRE
end exchange rates of monetary assets and FHKRERANE MK
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies S (BE) — 35 PR
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in within ‘other
gains/(losses) — net’.
Changes in the fair value of debt securities LASNE ST EW H AR 4 H
denominated in foreign currency classified ENEBELFNRTEES
as available-for-sale are analysed between Toi PR RS 5 B 8 S5 AR AN &
translation differences resulting from changes BZBHFREEN S
in the amortised cost of the security and FMEEANBREZRETD
other changes in the carrying amount of the Mro BEABESH AKX R E BB RE Y
security. Translation differences related to BREEZBEREBEZTER K
changes in amortised cost are recognised AEMNEMEBAINEME
in profit or loss, and other changes in PR -
carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
Translation differences on non-monetary FEBHeMEENEE (10
financial assets and liabilities such as equities BRESEATEREE
held at fair value through profit or loss are HINBMEEERERTRE
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair BATEABEN —HDo
value gain or loss. Translation differences 3'515’35 MermEE (D HE
on non-monetary financial assets, such as RAMHEENER) NKRE
equities classified as available-for-sale, are ERET AE MM -
included in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 EEEHHBREE @

2.7 INEETE I, ()
(c) EERTA

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

102

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate
on the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FE MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHHREE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 INESRE I, ()
BHNEHRES

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(d) Disposal of foreign operation and

partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that

(d) HE
HE

HEBIEB (MHEASE

is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest BERBINEBH DI ER
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving S ESREEHBEFIN

loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, a disposal involving

EC R0l DREENIE: ok 2t TR
HEFRREHBEBINE

loss of joint control over a joint venture that HH A &R BB S 1 54
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal K HESREKEEHBIEEI

involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does

EBNBMEARNNEATE
)& A RE A AES
ZEBHRERANRFTHFT
EERHEZHEN Y ESE

Hake

MBI S| MR KB KEY

not result in the Group losing control over a BEGNEBHIB RGN
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, 2 4l EEEI’J*B L& B E
the proportionate share of accumulated ’ﬂéﬁ %ﬂ’]fﬁttfﬁﬂi%ﬁ

currency translation differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRM T
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEZEFRBRBEEw@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment 2.8 W15 R MR
All property, plant and equipment are stated FIEWME #ENEEREL KR
at historical cost less depreciation and any BITE REM RETREREER -
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost FEELXABIEEEZSEBEERE
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to RIS - AT A RE B IE B 1
the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include HERINEEE Y SRR
transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying HEROSEKBEEREYHIER
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of FTEEMTMURE,EE-

property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s BERANRBEEZBERAREE
carrying amount or recognised as a separate REEFTREZ BBEMNRKLE
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that e BEKARGENSEFAER 7
future economic benefits associated with the item FFAEENERAREXERS B
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can BEEEE(WBR) BEERTH
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the WEREEC W IE R FTA HAty
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs HERREERTHE AR
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated MRS 2ERER AR -

statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment W MR RRENITERAUAT
is calculated using the straight-line method to WA AFHEERERIRE
allocate their cost to their residual values over their BEDBEHFMREBE:

estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of useful life or HEMEEE JERAFHNEE
lease term FHREE

Machinery and equipment 3 — 5 years HWENEHE 3ESF

Others 5 years Efth 5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.12).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 2.10) to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. These include land
held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2.27(d).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 EEEHHBREE @

2.9 Investment properties (Continued) 29 WEME (&)

106

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such
property interest which has been classified as
an investment property is accounted for as if it
were held under a finance lease (see note 2.10),
and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note
2.10.

2.10 Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued)

(@) Classification of assets leased to
the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases
that would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property is
classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and,
if classified as investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a finance
lease (see note 2.9); and

— land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from
the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease,
is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of
the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.

REVBRRME

2 EEEHHBREE @

210 FHEEE (3)
Q)EE$$EEEZQ
FH

RAEBABRE T AFEDN
BEM=S WHEHETAER
BB R0 Rk A= 5
BEREEAKE AEHEE
DRERBUBMERERSE
HMEFTAL T EEHMEEN
BAMORARANEDHEL S
AEE D BEREEHEE
HETIIERERSN

- NUKEEMEFAFRE
BEREMFEEFE
KREMETENDE
ERBEMEEES
BAREME-MOE
REEME - HAKR
FREWMEURE M
ERAE K (RME
29) &

- UREHEHTAFIE
BR mELNHEER
MRS E QA FERZE
REEZBFOHRF
BEO R EN LK
MREHRERAET A
ARR BRI RE AR &
HERFANEFTI 5
i s HENFRE
LR S =W\ v
ME HARAHEAR
W B i

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR

107



108

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Leased assets (Continued)
(b) Assets acquired under finance

(c)

leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost
of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 2.8. Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note
2.12. Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged as expenses
in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it
is determined that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and that fair value is
evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs,
except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any dividends or interest
earned on these investments as these are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out in note 2.27(f)
and 2.27(e).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBREKM T
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EZEFHERBE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Other investments in equity securities 2 HMEEEFESFKE (8
(Continued)
Investments in securities which do not fall into the TEBLABENNBESRESRS
above category are classified as available-for-sale BRAHEESREE -AFES
financial assets. At the end of each reporting period REREHRENGFE  EAEL
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain MmN EEEN A2 E K
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive RIZAEAHEERERE
income and accumulated separately in equity in B R T REt - UL A HISMER -
the available-for-sale investment reserve. As an g8 2 AR &) T ATEE R I5 I
exception to this, investments in equity securities that EHmEIEATESE L EME
do not have a quoted price in an active market for ENEREFRE  AIRKAR =
an identical instrument and whose fair value cannot BMEBRENEERGBERAER
otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in the (RM2.12) - ZEHRABHFRE
balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see B R B U A $R BT 512,27 (f) P K ) IR
note 2.12). Dividend income from equity securities RIEERAER -

is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2.27(f).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired, ERIBAZERERNAARE
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity LIRRER - R R ERE 25
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are BRESENIBRERAR - RNAEH
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group AEBA HERENKE D H
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they EH SRR RIEABERR
expire. &o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets

(@)

Impairment of investments
in equity securities and other
receivables

Investments in equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

S significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(@)

Impairment of investments
in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in associates and
joint ventures accounted for under
the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 2.4),
the impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 2.12(b). The
impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with
note 2.12(b).

For unqguoted equity securities
carried at cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where
the effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.
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2 EEEHHBREE @

212 B ERE (%)

(a) BEBHFHERE
FEW FRIE R (B (®)

WEFEETAZEERE AT
R EEEASIR T 5 A&
ERMER

- BUERERES Y
R ARA NI
AREIRAEERAZE
EmE (RHsE2.4)
WEBEBERBIER
B 5E2.12(0) AT it 451 &
Ak E e EL AR
EE 2 7= o i
2120 A LAE T
BRI T
WAT e BER
BEEBEEgRD -

- BLARARTBR B R
BRDZESME  BE
ERLDZeREER
EEAGBFRERE
mE(MMRETEE
R-BIRBELERE
ELRZRETH
R ) 2 MW ERRET
B AR ARG AR ) #E 58
EHZRBEBRTE
B[ o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments
in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

(@)

For accounts receivable, loans
receivable and other current receivables
and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments
in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

(@)

For available-for-sale securities which
are stated at fair value, when a decline
in the fair value has been recognised
in other comprehensive income and
there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income shall be
reclassified from equity to profit or
loss as a reclassification adjustment
even though the financial asset has not
been derecognised. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(@)

Impairment of investments
in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of customers included within accounts
receivable, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against customers directly
and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;
- goodwill;
- other intangible assets;

- film rights and films in progress; and

- investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures in the Company’s
balance sheet.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment of other assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying amount of
an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use
(if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(b)

()

Impairment of other assets
(Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2.12(a) and (b)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of assets (Continued)

()

Interim financial reporting and
impairment (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale
equity securities and unquoted equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed in
a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates. Consequently, if the
fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the
increase is recognised in other comprehensive
income and not profit or loss.

2.13 Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
business is carried at cost as established at
the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Intangible assets (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
If some or all of the goodwill allocated to
a cash-generating unit was acquired in a
business combination during the current
annual period, that unit shall be tested for
impairment before the end of the current
annual period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal.

Club membership

Club membership with indefinite useful
life is stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Impairment is reviewed annually or
when there is any indication that the club
membership has suffered an impairment
loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Intangible assets (Continued)

()

(d)

Brand name

Brand name acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Brand name has a
finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method of
7.5 years over the expected life of the brand
name.

Trading rights

Trading rights held in The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited are classified as
intangible assets. Trading rights acquired
in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Trading
rights have an indefinite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The trading rights have
no foreseeable limit to the period over which
the Group can use to generate net cash
flows. As a result, the trading rights are
considered by the management of the Group
as having an indefinite useful life because
they are expected to contribute to net cash
inflows indefinitely. The trading rights will
not be amortised until their useful lives are
determined to be finite. Instead they will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

The useful life of the trading rights is
reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

REVBRRME

2 EEEHHBREE @

213 ML B E (&)

()

(d)

an b 2 1

XGEUMESNmERRE
RWEEHN A FERER-
an & 4 8 BB R E A] (8 A AR
Bl AR £ R AT # 85 7)
R-BHEUNEREADEEM
7 % T ) SR A T {8 T AF 7.5
FRTHE-

BES5#

REBBHEXIMERRAA
RENEZRDIBRENE
E-XBEHMESNES
BEZEEBRSHO A FERE
R B 5 EHEE A H
FH BRARERFRE
BRYIR NEEAFAE
SEELZFREREZHH
I % A TR R YR i o B it
BN E SRS SRS
FKERERA AEEER
ERASE SN BT AL
RER -BHRB T TH#E
EEHKEBETREBETAE
RERRL-BHEKESF
LEBDRBEREAERME
R E T TRE BRI

EoRNAERFHKEF
ETRFNETEETFH
FEREMAEE - T E
B RARTEHEEGAE R
FHFEHEREFNESR
REEFHARK-

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR

121



122

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company
or the counterparty.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHHREE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Inventories (Continued) 215 1FE (#)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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2.16 Film rights and films in progress 2.16 ERhIE N RHER 2 BR
(@) Film rights (a) ERHE

Film rights comprise fees paid and payable
under agreements and direct expenses
incurred during the production of films, for
the reproduction and/or distribution of films
in various videogram formats, film exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film titles.

Film rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of film rights is amortised over the
shorter of the underlying license period and
their useful lives, with reference to projected
revenues.

(b)

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less
any provision for impairment losses. Cost
includes all direct costs associated with
the production of films. Cost of films is
transferred to film rights upon completion.

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Film rights and films in progress
(Continued)

(c)

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, both internal and
external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication
that assets included in film rights and films in
progress are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amount of such assets is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

2.17 Film deposits

Film deposits comprise deposits paid for the
acquisition of film rights and deposits paid to
production houses, artistes and others prior to the
production of films. The balance payable under
agreements for acquisition and production of film
rights is disclosed as a commitment. Provision
for film deposits is made based on future revenue
generated for the Group and the carrying value of
film deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 EEEHHBREE @

2.18 Accounts and other receivables 2.18 JE UG BR X N H b fE Y SR8

Accounts receivable and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 2.12), except where the receivables are
interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2.12).

2.19 Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers
in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
loans receivable is expected in one year or less,
they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 2.12).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 EEEHHBREE @

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents 20R e MIBEEEY

126

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
cash held at custodian, and short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

2.21 Accounts payable

Accounts and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

2.22 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 EEEHHBREE @

2.23 EE KA

2.23 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

2.24 Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 EEEHHBREE @

2.24 Income Tax (Continued) 2.24 FT1SH (@)

128

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
loses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
that those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EESHHREE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Income Tax (Continued) 2.24 FT1SH (@)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2.9, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EEEHHBREE @

2.24 Income Tax (Continued) 2.24 FTSH (%)

130

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and

liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

° the same taxable entity; or

REBEMR - AEE R ELHR
BEEMREE YR THBAE
R N A B I E) A AE R
BT M 2 B T LAF0IR - (AT A BEH
DA AT B I ER R 4 ER A B
A F AR D

EHRBRESRERETCHBGRR
HEBE D RIFIRM T &EEH-
ARARRAEKERERGEEF
HEMBHAEERENRERR
T A 88 R 1 & DA T B 7 15 1 59
BRAT THERRBEEEREN
BIEAE  URBEREEE MR
EREAEEHEN:

- HEMHEAERAMED
R GELE D
FEEREE RARBE
EERREEAE &

- BMEEHEEERAEBEM
S REEMEERREEN
BERA-—HMBERHUT
HREBUASBTES

e R—ERBRER: X
aiil

e  different taxable entities, which, in . TRERTER Mz
each future period in which significant EERBHIERRT
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or EEFEERELER
assets are expected to be settled or HEEAEEERREAE
recovered, intend to realise the current EARELREHIEBEEET

tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRMEE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEGFHBERBE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Employee benefits 2.25 @ B fa 1
(i) Short term employee benefits (i) Lﬁﬁﬁéiﬁﬂ&}i‘ﬁﬁ
and contributions to defined HFRIRETEIE R

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
share-based compensation reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the Binominal Option Pricing
Model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based compensation reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. When share
options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to retained
earnings.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in
business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations
at the date of acquisition are initially
recognised at fair value, provided the
fair value can be reliably measured. After
their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation where appropriate,
and the amount that would be determined
in accordance with note 2.25(ii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
that cannot be reliably fair valued or were not
present obligations at the date of acquisition
are disclosed in accordance with note
2.25(ii).

Other provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 EEEHHBREE @

134

2.26 Provisions and contingent liabilities

2.26 Bt M AR B1E ()

(Continued)

(ii) Other provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

2.27 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below.

(@) Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and the title has passed and
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Income from licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights

Income from the licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights is recognised upon the delivery
of the pre-recorded audio visual products
and the materials for video features including
the master tapes to the customers, in
accordance with the terms of the underlying
contracts.

Film exhibition income

Film exhibition income is recognised when
the film is shown and the right to receive
payment is established.

Rental income from operating
lease

Operating lease and other rental income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans and
receivables is recognised using the original
effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

Revenue from trading of securities

Net gains/losses on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and those held
for trading include realised gains/losses
which are recognised on the transaction
dates when the relevant contract notes are
exchanged; and unrealised fair value gains/
losses which are recognised in the period in
which they arise.

Income from provision of training
and coaching services

Income from provision of training and
coaching services is recognised when
training and coaching services are rendered.

Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is recognised
on a trade date basis when the relevant
transactions are executed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE B SRR M EE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEGHBREE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.27T W E HERR (
() Underwriting commission income, () B8 ﬁﬁ:ﬂi)\ 5B
sub-underwriting income and WAERRERE

placing commission

Underwriting commission income,
sub-underwriting income and placing
commission are recognised as income in
accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreement or deal mandate when relevant
significant act has been completed.

2.28 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group)
is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in
its present condition. A disposal group
is a group of assets to be disposed of
together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with
those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale
are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

(i

Non-current assets held for sale
(Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for
sale, the measurement of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date
in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below), or
disposal groups, are recognised at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial
statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)
and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set
out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification
as held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a
non-current asset is classified as held for
sale, or is included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

2 EEEHHBREE @

2B IHIEREZIFRBEE

M
(i)

QA AL -
B4R I F AR 2 E RS ()

FIEHEZHRBE
E (%)

EENBARIELE 2
B A E (R & AR
FANERAERAE) 2
5 BT AR S AT TR
BB R BNt
NS ERRIELERRE
EHEN ERBEE A
THRMETFEERM)
HEERREEAERAT
{ED 37, 58 85 B AS o B B MG
oA EEAAR A
BANTES S BRED
EEISMERBEER AL
E FAEBERELZAE
SRAE (TRENHER
A BEATRAEAAL
BE)VMRANE - HFAE
BB R R & - I R
BR P S0 BT 2 B3 o

NRDBERFHFEHERER
FIELEZENAEMEL
ZHEBRONBRER -
—B-HIRBEERSEE
REFLHELREEDER
RELEZ L EERIT %
AIERBDEER T BRI
B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations (Continued)

(ii)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group’s business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is part
of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also occurs if
the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented on
the face of the statement of comprehensive
income, which comprises:

S the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

= the post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets
or disposal group(s) constituting the
discontinued operation.

2.29 Convertible bonds

The convertible bonds consist of liability component,
conversion option and other embedded derivatives
which are not closely related to the host liability
contract. Conversion options that will not be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the issuer’s own
equity instruments are not equity instruments and
are considered as embedded derivatives not closely
related to the host contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 EEEHHBREE @

2.29 Convertible bonds (Continued) 229 AR E FH (#)

140

The Group has elected to designate its convertible
bonds with embedded derivatives as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition as the convertible bonds contain one or
more embedded derivatives. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the convertible bonds are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. The change in fair value recognised in profit
or loss includes any interest paid for the convertible
bonds.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the convertible bonds designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

(@) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if that
person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s

AEEEEERVSERAREE
BMARSTET A Z AT BREH I
ERBBRBERIZATEARZS
meE RESARKRESFEE —
HE A EHRARSTET R -RAUIP
ﬁE?Mé’TTﬁHQ%#?EQEFTE?F
2 MAFEZIRNER ZHEE
&ET‘E SRR - EERFHERL

NP EEE BERITRRES
P2 AR FS

BITHEERBEEBaERAFEA
ReeRBEZTRRE %ET&
ElE 2 XHRA BRERA R

recognised immediately in consolidated statement of ek AR -
comprehensive income.
2.30 Related parties 230 BEEA L

@ MWEBATAL BIZALT
ZATZHBRERNEREH
P

() FEHIkEREESARE
E

iy HASEBEAFE:
g,

iy ABAEBRAEBL
NAIZEEEEEBR

parent. 8o
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (o) fHFFA THEMEHE BIRZ
following conditions applies: R N [F A R

()  The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B IR AR
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEGHBREE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.30 Related parties (Continued) 230 fE AL ()
(o) (Continued) ) (&)

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint iy —HEEBAEZ—T®
venture of the other entity (or an HEENTIHEZED
associate or joint venture of a member Fl(kE2—EE2AKE
of a group of which the other entity is a NAIZEBETKE
member). ARZHEARKE

BAT) -

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the iy MEEBHAEAR —F
same third party. = HHAZ AT

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a vy —EERAEE=HF
third entity and the other entity is an BOAE AT ME—
associate of the third entity. B A E=- B R

MBE A E -

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit v) ERANEENEARN
plan for the benefit of employees of EFEEHEEER
either the Group or an entity related to B B F 25 55 T B9 B B
the Group. BFIEE -
(vii  The entity is controlled or jointly vy EREX@M# AL
controlled by a person identified in (a). Pl B & E ) o
(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has wi) RE@OFTEBIALTHE
significant influence over the entity or EEEATENREB
is a member of the key management EBRB(IAZEEY
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of BAGFEEIBERK
the entity). 8o
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group (i) B EBTMRKE
of which it is a part, provides key AR (HEA—IH)M
management personnel services to the REB R NER 2
Group or to the Group’s parent. NAREETEETE A
B R -
Close members of the family of a person are HALT O ERREZETERS
those family members who may be expected to BFEHAEEZALTHIZZAL
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their B JRREKE

dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HHEREIRE
U E R EE=

3.1 Financial risk factors

142

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The policies for managing
these risks are summarised below.

(@) Market risk

() Currency risk

(i) Exposure to currency risk

N PSE e Sy e R A
fr:mERER (BRE%ER T
TRk EEERR) EERR R
//IL@jﬁﬁﬂﬁ"A‘)Zﬁ%.E@E%Hﬁ
EEFEZERERM SN A
FEORIE - @Zﬁ?tﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘é
BMBRBOBEINZE B2
thF R 2 BERBLA T o

(@) ™iHER
() EEmEE
i) FERIZZEER

LA
oo
AR

The Group is exposed to currency REBFFRARZ
risk primarily through sales and BERBREER
purchases which give rise to BREEME -
receivables, payables and cash LA SN EE (B B A2
balances that are denominated in 5‘1 B 2KER
a foreign currency, i.e. a currency e B’ BN Z

other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the

EH)FENE
YeskIE -~ AR

transactions relate. The currencies BERBE&EH-
giving rise to this risk are primarily Bz R AE Y
United States dollars (“US$”), MEFrEREE
Canadian dollars (“CAD”), Euros JT T - BT
(“EUR”) and Renminbi (“RMB”) AR (ZE
(2015: US$ and RMB). —HAF EXTR
AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MHEREIE @

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 iR K= (&)
(@) Market risk (Continued) (@) ™5 E R (&)
() Currency risk (Continued) )  EEEE ()
()  Exposure to currency risk () FERZTZEBR
(Continued) % (48)
The following table details the TRFAINAREEH
Group’s exposure at the end of the B 3R 4 H ok A 7
reporting period to currency risk RAEBEERD
arising from recognised assets or EEBUIINZE
liabilities denominated in a currency BitEZEER
other than the functional currency of BEMEXZE
the entity to which they relate. For BER - ERE2
presentation purposes, the amounts WEM R RS
of the exposure are shown in Hong LA S %5 B /Y B HR
Kong dollars, translated using the EXBE /BT
spot rate at the year end date. HIR o

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
MRZZMERR (LBTTIR)

2016 2015
“E-RE —Z-1f%
United United
Canadian States States
dollars Euros dollars  Renminbi dollars Renminbi
mi BT e AR e AR®
’000 '000 '000 ’000 '000 ‘000

T T T Tr T T

Cash and cash equivalents & RIEESEY 8 83 204 17 75 25
Accounts receivable JE MR BR 3K - 232 187 3,148 149 1177
Financial assets included in 3t ABf15T4 »

deposits paid, BERRER

prepayments Hth TR

and other receivables JEREE - - - 28,288 = 19,046
Accounts payable R BRR (926) (529) (1,332) (5) (89) @)
Other payables and HibERFER

accrued charges BT (196) (62) (11) @ © -

(1,114) (276) ©52) 31,444 133 20,245
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

3 M E R

B IE (m)

3.1 PR == ()
(a) ™imER (@)

() Currency risk (Continued) ) EmEpbE (&)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BRERESH

The following table indicates TERE R FE
the instantaneous change in the HAR AN & B | B
Group’s (loss)/profit after tax (and =R = B B SN[
retained earnings) that would EERNZAB LR
arise if foreign exchange rates to 2 (REMEB
which the Group has significant H 3 b 22 BiR
exposure at the end of the reporting BRAE)HAE
period had changed at that date, E & (E18)
assuming all other risk variables SR (RRE
remained constant. In this respect, BF)EERR
it is assumed that the pegged rate By 8 &) o 3tk i

between the Hong Kong dollar B E
and the United States dollar would JLER R TR EE R
be materially unaffected by any P &= N E T
changes in movement in value of HEME®EER
the United States dollar against FEimXEEE

other currencies. 2
2016 2015
—F-R"% —E-1%
Increase/

(decrease) in Increase/

Increase/  loss after tax Increase/ (decrease) in

(decrease) and (increase)/ (decrease) profit after

in foreign decrease in foreign tax and

exchange in retained exchange retained

rates earnings rates earnings

REEBE

#m/ (HD) R E T

MEEE RREBEF HNEEJE % RREEF

i/ GEd)  GEm)/ES  E£hn/CRd)  #m/ i)

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THT

RMB ARE 5% (1,313) 5% 845

(5%) 1,313 (5%) (845)

EUR BT 5% 12 = =

(5%) (12) - -

CAD i 5% 47 - -

(5%) (47) - -
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(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

() Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented
in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the group
entities’ (loss)/profit after tax and
equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated
into Hong Kong Dollars at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of
the reporting period for presentation
puUrposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes
that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for
2015.

3 M E R

)

B IEER AR MR

B IE (m)

3.1 iR K= (&)
(@) ™5 E R (&)

()

(i)

EEEE (8)

BURE AT (B)
EXRMAINRE D
MERRKREE
SEERBZARE
D EREEY
BHREHROE
RIHME BB ITIA
HE25 2 Ak
Bk (B8),&
MK EE
B

HEE R IR
A% G I [E R B
ERREHE
75 5 [B 7 3% 45 5
REFBEEAE
5 7 g AL
MerTH-Z

DM TR R
T-RAFHEAZ

BT -

TRRERIERAR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

(@)

3 HMHFEKREIR @
3.1 iR K= (&)
(@) ™5 E R (&)
(i) FE @
Interest rate profile (@ FIEBR
The following table details the TERFEHA WS
interest rate profile of the Group’s HARAEBEEE
assets and liabilities as at the end of FafEzFEH
the reporting period: o
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F# T FET
Fixed interest rate: B = 2 :
Financial assets EMEE
Loans receivable JEURE 3k 43,163 37,000
Loan to an associate By — e
NAIZEX 5,000 =
48,163 37,000
Financial liabilities ERaE
Borrowings BE 9,200 9,200
Net FRE 38,963 27,800
2016 2015
—F—RE —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F# T FET
Variable interest rate: EENR
Financial assets ERMEE
Cash at bank RITHF K 95,599 78,302
Cash held at custodians AEEEA
e 5,454 24,350
Accounts receivable JFE UG BR 3k
— margin clients —HERRF 16,250 =
117,303 102,652
Financial liabilities ERMAaK
Accounts payable FERTBR X 250,320 =
Bank overdrafts RITIBEX 4,020 =
254,340 -
Net B (137,037) 102,652
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis

As at 30th June 2016, if interest
rates had been 100 basis point
higher with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s loss
after tax would have increased by
approximately HK$1,144,000 (2015:
profit after tax would have increased
by HK$857,000).

As at 30th June 20186, if interest
rates had been 100 basis point
lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group's loss after
tax would have decreased by
approximately HK$1,144,000
(2015: profit after tax would have
decreased by HK$857,000).

The increased/decreased in loss
after tax results mainly from lower/
higher interest income from cash
at bank, cash held with custodians
and margin loans and lower/higher
interest expense on accounts
payable and bank overdrafts. Other
components of equity would not be
significantly affected by the changes
in interest rates.

BB RRMEE

=
Ny =]

3 M HEREIRE @

3.1 AR A= (&)
(@) ™imEBE (@)

FIEE R (E)

(i)

(b)

BRE D

RZE—RNERX
A=+H" %
R FF100E 2
EREEME=S
RETENEBER
T AR R
i 1% BB 18 1 0
491,144,000/ 7T
TR F:
B B 12 0% A1) 38 N
857,000/ 7T ) °

RZZT—RNEX
BA=+8" #F
RN H100%& 2
EREEME=S
RETENEBER
ToAEBR 2R
iz B E KR D
#91,144,0007% 7T
(ZZ=—HEF:
B B 12 0% )R
857,000/ 7T ) °

BR Tt 1% /&5 1838 A0
SR ETBERR
RITHER TE
BAEER SN
RFERERZF
B AR A, 1
10 BA 2 1 BR 3K
RRITBEXZ 7
BRXRD /15
N PR B o F) 2R g
ERN-F R $ o dvd
Hib s o BRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(b)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The sensitivity analysis above
indicates the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
changes arising from trading of listed
securities classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
and unlisted investment funds and
unlisted limited partnership classified as
available-for-sale financial assets. The
sensitivity analysis has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price
risk.

The Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Decisions to buy or sell trading
securities are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual
securities compared to that of the Index
and other industry indicators, as well as
the Group's liquidity needs.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

3 M®BA

B

B IE (m)

3.1 I AREZE (&)

(@)

™ i% B B (@)
(i) FIEE R (F)

b) SEEDH (&)
i SRR A
BIRRNmEHR
HMAKEREZ
FERIITETA
FEEZERER
BRI RER -

(i) AR 1B Bz

AEEHERE SR
DEREBEREA
FEARZEREE
ZETEHFARED
BEAAHLEZRE
EZHLTEREES
RIFEMBEREGBDL
EMEEMREZS-
ERGRES TR
% P T R RO BB R B2
B

AEBEZERBHRR
REFEARZERE
ENTREEBHARD
FIERAR LM -BEA
HEHRZEFZR
E T3 £ 0 EE Bl 5 55
REBREMITER
BRANESAER
ARAEEZRBE
EHFEEMIEL -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Equity price risk (Continued)

For the unlisted investment funds and
unlisted limited partnership classified
as available-for-sale financial assets,
the board of directors manages
the exposure to equity price risk by
maintaining a portfolio of investments
funds with different risk and return
profiles.

At 30th June 2016, it is estimated that
an increase/decrease of 3% (2015:
3%) in the fair value of the Group’s
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale
financial assets with all other variables
held constant would have decreased/
increased the Group’s loss after tax
(and increased/decreased retained
earnings) by HK$6,198,000 (2015:
increase/decrease the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained earnings) by
HK$7,893,000) and increase/decrease
in the Group’s available-for-sale
investment reserve by HK$2,574,000
(2015: increase/decrease in the
Group’s available-for-sale investment
reserve by HK$2,174,000) respectively.

3 M E R

REVBRRME

B IE (m)

3.1 AR Ex= (&)
(@) ™5 E R (&)

(i)

RIERfE (&)

RO BEARLES
MEEZIFLTHRE
ESRIFLETERAE
BLEME EX8F
BEA AR R &
OHMWEEESHEA
EIERERR -

RZZE—RERA=T
H EmBEMmEER
BAEZBERT it
AEEEBBEHED
FTEAERZBMEE
RAifttESRMEE
ZAFEEM D
3% (ZE—HE:3%)
B AEBZRBEE
B#ERE D1 (&
RE AWM BD)
6,198,000 T (=&
—RAFAEEZHRB
BEA(RRBAF)
# hn @ 27,893,000
BIL)  MASEZA
& 1R B 1 A
mn,/ ® 42,574,000
T(ZZE—RE K&
o EREHE
#4058 42,174,000
BIL) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3 MBEAREE @

B 7 L B A == ()
m)ﬁﬁﬁ@

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

150

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligation
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from default.

In respect of accounts receivable arising from
trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical,
watches and jewellery products, in order to
minimize the credit risk, the management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
on-going basis. Credit evaluations of its
customers’ financial position and condition
are performed on each and every major
customer periodically. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Receivables
due from customers are due within the
settlement period commonly adopted by
the relevant market convention, which is
usually within 0-30 days from the trade
date. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from its customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FE MR M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3 MBEAREE @

75 [ B Al == ()
(b) EERK (®

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of accounts receivable arising MBEBEET EXEITEMN
from video distribution, film distribution and B3 &L&E%Fﬂ%%
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film BEEZERERMS &
rights business, in order to minimize the credit 15 & B B )ﬁifz?ﬁ : %q. b3

risk, the management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an on-going basis.
Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition are performed on
each and every major customer periodically.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Receivables due from customers are due
within the settlement period commonly
adopted by the relevant market convention,
which is usually within 7-60 days from
the trade date. Sales from film exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights
are on open account terms. Sales to retail
customers are made in cash or via major
credit cards. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from its customers.

BEHEEERR T
BERZZEZERAR A&
EecHinsaTERFPY
K RARREITEERT
H-ZEFHERREFRA
TR EANFESE LB R Z
RN Vet REFE 2@
%ﬁﬂ&ﬁ%ﬁméﬁﬁm
EREEBZER -BURE
ﬁ% E#ﬁ%m%ﬁm

BRAZEZEBRARE
&%i%m@%miw

BN B RERER
At 2 SHEH AR #E
T-MEERFHEHUR
SHEANEBRETBEEHFE
T AREEBETERARF
U B 1R 4 o

In respect of loan receivables (including REREFZER(H ?‘E&
loan to an associate) from customers, the F-HBERARCER) M
objective of the Group’s measures to manage FASBEEREER \J—L@A 0

credit risk is to control potential exposure to
recoverability problem. The Group manages
and analyses the credit risk for each of their
new and existing clients before standard
payment terms and conditions are offered by
assessing the credit quality of the customer,

5 e B AR BRG] A e E
B A Ue Bl 1 R e R 2 —
RR AN BRAG SR e A6k 4 AT - AN &=
BEBFMEPZEEER
(ZEEEMBAN  BELR
REMER)EERDTE

taking into account its financial position, R%ﬁg}i EREREFPZIEE
past experience and other factors. Loan %o JEWME R ERILITE
receivables balances are monitored on an ?é«‘M%/iEQ TEEREERE

ongoing basis, management reviews the
recoverable amount of loan receivables at
each reporting date to ensure that adequate

HE B MY RKE R 2 AT
Bl & BETEN BEHD
] W [B] 5 B8 1 i 7T R R (S

impairment losses are made for irrecoverable Bepltms EEERE
amounts. In this regard, management rEBZEERBREEER

considers that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced. Interest income are
usually billed on quarterly basis.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3 M HEREIRE @

3.1 B 5 R b Al &= (@)
(b) EERKR (@)

In order to manage the credit risk in the
accounts receivable due from clients
arising from securities brokerage and
margin financing business, individual credit
evaluation are performed on all clients
including cash and margin clients. Accounts
receivable from cash clients relate to a wide
range of customers who generally settle the
accounts receivable in two days after trade
date, credit risk arising from the accounts
receivable due from cash clients is therefore
considered minimal. For margin clients, the
Group normally obtains liquid securities as
collateral based on the margin requirements.
The margin requirement is closely monitored
on a daily basis by the designated team. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the
credit risk is significantly reduced. Market
conditions and adequacy of securities
collateral and margin deposits of each margin
account are monitored by management
on a daily basis. Margin calls and forced
liquidation are made where necessary.

In respect of accounts receivable from
brokers and clearing houses, credit risks are
considered to be low as the Group normally
enters into transactions with brokers and
clearing houses which are registered with
regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation
in the industry.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FE MR M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3 MBEAREE @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiiFE R REZE @)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERER (@)

The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk in respect of the securities
brokerage and margin financing business as
credits are granted to a large population of
clients.

In respect of businesses other than the
securities brokerage and margin financing
business, the Group’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each debtor and customer.
The default risk of the industry in which
debtors or customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had concentration of credit risk as for 100%
(2015: 100%) of the loan receivables due
from the Group’s four (2015: five) largest
debtors. The Group had no concentration of
credit risk in respect of accounts receivable
from trading, wholesaling and retailing of

HRASERRZTFRH
FE BRAUBERBFLLR
ﬁ%mﬂﬁ%%%&ﬁik%qﬂ

Bl
Cl/\

TLER B L R FF R BRVE S
ZEBME AKEZEER
RRIEXE&EBAREP

ﬂﬂ%%wa B AL
BEEREZITRZENRER
THEERBRGRZE (K
RBERE) REEHR A
$EIW%W(:§ e

EMIBKRERGREAE
IMEXL%A(_i kil
FRE) AKEEEREE

R & o AN E I M 5L R
Qtﬂfﬁ&%ﬁﬁmz
E% HBENTEREEHE

T BRBIT MR - HEHR

optical, watches and jewellery products @?’x%?ﬁﬁﬂié%ﬂ‘xZFgﬂﬂlﬁﬁ
and video distribution, film distribution and FHEBEEERRSES REA
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film BEBIBREZREF -
rights business, with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

For other receivables, credit checks are part REMEYKRIERS EFE
of the normal operating process and stringent *AEF;IE?*TWMEVZ**B
monitoring procedures are in place to deal with TMEBRBEREFEIE

overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amounts of other receivables
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt

HE@EH&ZM o BE S AR H
REREHRREH MR
FRIR 2 A Y E FRCRE - DA RE AR
hEE W B KRR 1 R SR
BEERBE AKRERNRE
HIR iR st & R @ B ER A A]

at the end of the reporting period to ensure H&Z@ B ARER LS A R
that adequate impairment losses are made for TRIENTEHRERBIE
irrecoverable amounts. %é‘f% °

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit

nBETHEERRAR
RESHTF T REBERFR

ratings assigned by international credit-rating BERTREETROR
agencies. 1T
—T-AFFER EFERSBRERERA 153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3 MBEAREE @

A% Rl B R 2 o)
(C) uu.Ej] ﬁ ﬁﬂ. IZRR

AEEBETNZENELEER

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the

154

Group are responsible for their own cash

BERTTERER: BF

management, including the short term LTT%%E%”%&E@&%
investment of cash surpluses and the BEEZ L/(FEHT‘EHHEE
raising of loans to cover expected cash Ko MR ﬂi%@ﬁt

demands, subject to the parent company’s
board approval. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it
maintains sufficient amount of cash and

/EH—H’EEL REEBBE
R F AR ES iR A IR B K 78 B
RBEEFRLERHEBERZDY
MERBR BEREEST
WREREREEIZS MK
BES RN H A wﬁ;ﬁgﬁ’

adequate committed lines of funding from NENEREHERDES
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity Ko

requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.

THRBEI AN EE 2 IE0T
EERABEREBEHRZE
BRAENBBMBL EERE
%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%(@%ﬁ
BRI X HEFE R Rl
Eﬁiﬁi*%ﬂ+ﬁ“2
MENF)EAEEATX
&P HAB-

Specifically, for bank overdrafts which contain mE WRTEZFE
a repayment on demand clause which can BIRERKEBER 2GR T
be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, 1%%\763%&171%@‘] 5

the analysis shows the cash outflow based
on the earliest period in which the entity can
be required to pay, i.e. if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 30th June 2016

3.1 KRR EZE (#)
(c) mENE & Bk (&)

3 MBERE

I2 (@)

R-ZF—-ANFEAA=Z+H

Total
More than 1 More than 2 contractual
year butless  year butless undiscounted Carrying
Ondemand  Within1year  than2years  than 5 years cash flows amount
—ENE WEM L BHRER
REX —£p GEDY RENRN REKELE IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiEx TiEx TiEx TiEx TiEx
Accounts payable ERBRR - 254,722 - - 254,722 254,722
Amount due to JEf—fmeE
an associate ARZFE 1,941 - - - 1,941 1,941
Other payables and HEtEAHER
accrued charges Bt - 64,121 - - 64,121 64,121
Borrowings E - 9,366 - - 9,366 9,200
Bank overdrafts BITEY 4,020 - - - 4,020 4,020
Obligations under BEREAE
finance lease - 35 35 28 98 98
5,961 328,244 35 28 334,268 334,102
As at 30th June 2015 R-FE—AFA=1+H
Total
More than 1 More than 2 contractual
year but less year but less  undiscounted Carrying
Ondemand  Within 1 year than 2 years than 5 years cash flows amount
—EE BELLE  BORER
REX —FR REAA AFENA RERELE BHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
Accounts payable TR - 4,189 - - 4,189 4,189
Other payables and HEtEAHER
accrued charges et - 52,869 - - 52,869 52,869
Borrowings &5 - 598 9,366 - 9,964 9,200
Obligations under BEREAE
finance lease = 35 35 62 132 132
- 57,691 9,401 62 67,154 66,390
ZE-REFR EFERESRERAERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3 HMBEKREIRE @

3.2 Capital management 3.2 BEAREIE

156

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. In addition, a subsidiary
of the Group licensed by the Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC”) are obliged to meet
the regulatory liquid capital requirements under the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(“FRR”) at all times.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets. For
the licensed subsidiary, the Group ensures the
licensed subsidiary maintains a liquid capital level
adequate to support the level of activities with
sufficient buffer to accommodate for increases
in liquidity requirements arising from potential
increases in the level of business activities. During
the financial year, the licensed subsidiary complied
with the liquid capital requirements under the FRR
at all times.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(include borrowings, obligation under finance
lease and bank overdrafts) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus
net debt, where applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREIRE @

(Continued)

3.2 Capital management (Continued) 3.2 BAREE (1)
For the year ended 30th June 2016, the Group’s BE_E—R"EF~NA=ZTHILHF
strategy, which was unchanged from 2015, was B AEEMNERE-_T—RFL
to maintain a low gearing ratio. The gearing ratio BHEFTE BBENBEBL RS
as at 30th June 2016 and 30th June 2015 are as BEREKFE - R_TE—RFRHA
follows: —tEER-_E—RFA=1+A8H"
BEARBBELENT

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—hF

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

B 5 FET FHET

Borrowings BE 28 9,200 9,200
Obligations under finance lease & & & #4& 29 98 132
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 28 4,020 =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents J5 : R & MRS EEY 24 (101,173) (102,834)
Net cash & FHE (87,855) (93,502)
Total equity BRE 751,921 572,267
Total capital AR 664,066 478,765

Gearing ratio BERBELE N/AZiE N/AZT i@ FA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement

() Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

e |evel 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

1 58 Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group has a team headed by the finance
manager performing valuations for the financial
instruments, including contingent consideration
receivable which is categorised into Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy. The team reports
directly to the directors of the Company and
the audit committee. A valuation report with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement is
prepared by the team at each annual reporting
date, and is reviewed and approved by the
directors of the Company. Discussion of the
valuation process and results with the directors
and the audit committee is held once a year, to
coincide with the reporting dates.

REVBRRME

3 HMBEKREIRE @

3.3 A A E (&)

(i)

Fair value measurements as at
30th June 2016 categorised into
RIB-AENAZTRZATEFENEAR

BATEAFEZER
BERERE @

N FEFR (E)
AEEEL B SEE
pEYEK AERSMIT
B (RESPHEEATHESHR
FoRMERRANRE) B
TEE - ZEREERLD
REERBHEEERE-
HEATLEIESESHOMNZ
ERE DEEBRREEE
HEBBER YHARA
EERMRIE BB R
ERFRERGFRERR
EHESRET R H
LB R4 B HIRAS — Be

Fair value measurements as at
30th June 2015 categorised into
RZZ-RENA=TRZATEINENER

Fair value at Fair value at
30th June 30th June
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
RIZ-R RZF-1
EXAET FRAZT
-4 HFH %28 RAZATHE F-& -t =8 BZAYE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TiEx FiEx TiER TR TEL TEL TAL TR
Recurring fair value BEHATENE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale AHEHERE
investments
- Unlisted investment funds ~ —3E LM EES (MiFa)
(Note &) - - 79,467 79,467 - - 86,812 86,812
- Unlisted limited -k ITERAB LS
partnership (Note a) (Hista) - - 6,335 6,335 = = = =
Financial assets at fair value ~ BBRBHEERATEARL
through profit or loss SPREE 247,444 - - 47444 315109 - - 3815109
Contingent consideration ~ FEM kAR (E (MizEb)
receivable (Note b) - - 10,930 10,930 - - - -
247,444 - 96,732 344,176 315,109 - 86,812 401,921
—E-REFR EFEESRIERARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 30th June 2015 and
2016, there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level
3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Notes:

a) For unlisted investment funds and limited
partnership classified under Level 3 of the
fair value measurement hierarchy, the fair
values are determined based on the net asset
values of those investment funds and limited
partnership determined with reference to
third party valuation of underlying investment
portfolio and adjustments of related expenses.
When the third party valuation increase/
decrease by 3% (2015: 3%), the fair value will
be increased/decreased by HK$2,574,000
(2015: HK$2,604,000). The higher the third
party valuation, the higher the fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREIRE @

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 3.3 A {EET=E (&)
() Financial assets and liabilities () BEAFEFSEZEH
measured at fair value (Continued) EERAE @)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N FEEFER (E)
Notes: (Continued) MisE: (48)
a)  (Continued) a (&)
The movement during the year in the balance ZEE=BRATEFEZ
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are HEHRRFRNEEHIT
as follows:
2016 2015
—~E —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Unlisted investment funds AATEHESREE

included in available-for-sale =~ Z 3 FHiEEE &
financial assets:

At the beginning of the year REF ] 86,812 54,965
Additions 7‘3 3,300 23,500
Fair value change# N EZEH (10,645) 8,347
At the end of the year RER 79,467 86,812
2016 2015

—~E —E-1F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TF#ET FHET

Unlisted limited partnership AAFHHESMEE
included in available-for-sale Z ¥ EFHERESE

financial assets: %
At the beginning of the year REH - -
Additions NE 8,030 -
Fair value change# NEEESH (1,695) -
At the end of the year RER 6,335 =
2016 2015
=7 —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
#Total (loss)/gain included in R BRERRBECEE
other comprehensive Z AP EEBEG
income that is attributable to AEMEEKREZ
the fair value change to (B1B) Wasesm
those assets held at the end
of the reporting period (12,340) 8,347
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (Continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

3 HMBEKREIRE @

() HAFHE:

Notes: (Continued) Bt 53
a)  (Continued) a (&)
The net unrealised gains arising from the AE#HrEE Lmafty
remeasurement of the unlisted available- EeMEEES 2 KRER
for-sale financial assets are recognised in e FRE TR E b 2 E UK
available-for-sale investment reserve in other SRR HEERE R
comprehensive income. e
b)  The valuation techniques and key inputs used b) RMEBR BERHAR
for contingent consideration receivable in Level BE=ZRAFETEME
3 fair value measurement at the end of the RBzBEREREFEBA
reporting period are as follows: IR
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable input  Range
EXFAHE
HERE 1PN ¢4 &
Contingent consideration U S AR E Discounted cash  Probalbility- Profit of HK$3,286,000
receivable flow approach Weighted profit - profit of
HK$10,035,000
(2015: Ni)
BERSREE  FalIERT i 713,286,000 7T
—#7110,035,000% 7T
(Z2-1%:§)
Discount factor 8.2% (2015: Nil)
BREH 82% (—T—1%F &)

The increase in probability-weighted profit
used would result in decrease in fair value
measurement of contingent consideration
receivable while the increase in discount rate
used would also result in decrease in fair value
measurement of contingent consideration
receivable, and vice versa.
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(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

() Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

b)

(Continued)

A 5% increase or decrease in the probability-
weighted profit while holding all other variables
constant would decrease or increase in the
carrying amount of contingent consideration
receivable by HK$390,000 or HK$390,000
(2015: Nil) respectively.

A 5% increase or decrease in the discount rate
used while holding all other variables constant
would decrease or increase in the carrying
amount of contingent consideration receivable
by HK$40,000 or HK$50,000 (2015: Nil)
respectively.

The movement during the year in the balance

3 MBEARE

REVBRRME

I8 (@)

3.3 A A E (&)
) BEATEEZEHM
BEERAGE (&)
RNEEZR ()

i :

b)

(%)
(%)

AJ B\ A0 g ) 0 sk Rk
5% - i P A B B
AR AR ANRE
ZEREESD BRI
Hn390,000 7% 7T 390,000
BT (ZF—0F:E)-

{6 P 22 BR 3R R 38 N SR
26% - AT A E b B B
FAE AR ARE
Z BREMER 7 BIR A 21
Hn40,0007% 7t (50,0007
T(ZE—RF 8)-

ZEE=RRTEHEZ

of these Level 3 fair value measurements are BN ERZEEHIT
as follows:
2016 2015
—F—RE —T—A8F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Contingent consideration AANBBREZ
receivable included in R R KIE -
consideration of acquisition:
At the beginning of the year REF = =
Additions 40 6,850 -
Fair value change# NFEEB# 4,080 =
At the end of the year RER 10,930 -

SE-REER B

TRRERIERAR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREIRE @

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value measurement (Continued) 3.3 AV EFZE #®)
() Financial assets and liabilities ) BAFEFEZEHM
measured at fair value (Continued) EERAE ®)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N FEFR (E)
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
# Total gain included in the HRBEBRRBECEEZ
consolidated statement of NTEZEEGETA
comprehensive income that is HeEEERERZ
attributable to the fair value W a5 4858
change to those assets held at
the end of the reporting period 4,080 =

(ii) Financial assets and liabilities at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair values
as at 30th June 2016 and 2015.

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or
similar agreement that are either:

- offset in the Group’s consolidated balance
sheet; or

- not offset in the consolidated balance sheet as
the offsetting criteria are not met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREIRE @

(Continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 KiFEMEERERA

liabilities (Continued)

Under the agreement of Continuous Net Settlement
made between the Group and the clearing house,
the Group has a legal enforceable right to set off
the money obligations receivable and payable with
clearing house on the same settlement date and the
Group intends to settle on a net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the accounts receivable from and payables
to securities brokerage and margin financing
business that are due to be settled on the same date
and the Group intends to settle these balances on a
net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on
the same date which are being offset, amounts due
from/to the clearing house and accounts receivable
from and payables to securities brokerage and
margin financing business that are not to be settled
on the same date, financial collateral including cash
and securities received by the Group and deposit
placed with clearing house do not meet the criteria
for offsetting in the consolidated balance sheet since
the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only
enforceable following an event of default.

(== —
B (&)

BEAEEREEMEL 258
FREEE DR ARBEERER
BREIMITREMUARERSEE R &
REEPTIHEU  E N SR EAE
BEAXASEERRFRALEE -

BEAN - REBEEA &IE R R HIBIT
BANEHERNFA—SHEETHEE
R EW R BN & R M TR
BEBHIE AASEERRFR
HEsEE.

=

BRRR—2H A ET&E BE
B2 RSN AR R BT A
REE 2RI RE AN A E P RRE R
BREENESELEERATARBE
EBHRR 2RERD (BEAE
R MRERER) REFERRER
zBREIPTEARGEAEER
BRARHEZEE REASE#ER
CRIEHENENRBELENS
GREDIE:L R R

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREIRE @

(Continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 KiFEMEERERA
liabilities (Continued) & ()

(a) Financial assets subject to (@) i R IKEH - AIS& HI 1T
offsetting, enforceable master RPEES H R NG
netting arrangements or similar i ZNEMERE
agreements
As at 30th June 2016 R-B—XEXA=+A

Related amounts
not offset in consolidated

balance sheet
TRRGAEERERN
RENREELE
Gross
amounts of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial assets
Gross liabilities presented
amount of  set off in the inthe
recognised  consolidated  consolidated
financial balance balance Financial Collateral Net
assets sheet sheet instruments received amount

RGEREE NGREE

BRENRSE BREAZS)

ERAAEHM WERAER HEMEE
BEZAH AR B8 EHMIE EREES F8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET T#Ex T#Ex Ti#En TEn TEn

Financial assets SHEE
Accounts receivable arising 4 B EFEL R
from securities brokerage ~ ARBEEK 2

and margin financing IR
business 1,599,165 (1,394,758) 204,407 - (15,580) 188,827
* The item “collateral received” represents the * [BEWERR]IEEPERR
securities pledged in the client’s account which FHEANES ZEEFH
are not recognised in the consolidated balance IEEM? BEABRE
sheet. The amounts are capped at the lower RoZECHB LB AE
of the market value of securities and the net FEEEREERFELE
receivable amounts on a client by client basis. TR EBGRIE R B AR

%o

1 66 Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREIRE @

(Continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial 34 KiFEMEERERA
liabilities (Continued) & (&)

(b) Financial liabilities subject to (b) i R IKEH - AT S& HI 1T
offsetting, enforceable master BEREEZESRE
netting arrangements or similar DN EMmas
agreem ents
As at 30th June 2016 R-_FE—RE~A=+H

Related amounts
not offset in consolidated
balance sheet
TRRGAEERERN
RENREELE
Gross
amounts of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial liabilities
Gross assets presented
amount of  set off in the inthe
recognised  consolidated  consolidated
financial balance balance Financial Collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged amount
REAEE REREE
BERAEE BERNZT)
BRAABEH WERDEHM MEMER 2E#Hz
BEZAR EEAE BH EMIA R B8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex TR Féx Fhx Fhx T
Financial liabilities £ L

Accounts payable arising B4 BEFEL R
from securities brokerage ~ ARBEEK 2

and margin financing BRI

business 1,645,078 (1,394,758) 250,320 - - 250,320
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 BERIFHHERFE
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually mE BRRAGSHFETE IR
evaluated and are based on historical experience BRATKBMAMEZ#ETTE 81
and other factors, including expectations of future EEBEBATERRBEENREEY
events that are believed to be reasonable under the TE A

circumstances.

TE-REFR EFRRERERERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

(@ Impairment of film rights, films in

progress and film deposits

The Group assesses annually whether there is
any indication for impairment on the film rights,
films in progress and film deposits and further
assess if they have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2. Such annual assessment is performed
specifically for each film and film deposit at each
balance date with reference to the cast or scale
of each film, current market conditions and each
film deposit recipient’s reputation, trade history
and current financial position. According to the
management’s cash inflow forecast in respect of
each film title and realisation of each film deposit,
an impairment loss of film rights HK$4,226,000
(2015: HK$4,969,000), a write-off of film deposits
HK$417,000 (2015: Nil) and no impairment loss
of films in progress (2015: impairment loss of
HK$849,000) were recognised respectively in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
to reduce the carrying amounts of certain film
rights, films in progress and film deposits to their
recoverable amounts. If projected cash inflow from
these films were to deteriorate, additional provision
for impairment may be required.

As at 30th June 2016, the carrying amount of
film rights, films in progress and film deposits
amounted to approximately HK$85,870,000 (2015:
HK$56,101,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Provision for impairment of accounts

receivable

The provision policy for accounts receivable of the
Group is based on the evaluation of recoverability
of those receivables and management’s
judgement. A considerable judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history and repayment
pattern of each customer. During the year,
no impairment loss was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
(2015: nil).
customers were to deteriorate, additional provision
for impairment may be required. As at 30th June
2016, the carrying amount of accounts receivable
amounted to approximately HK$224,739,000
(2015: HK$14,183,000).

If the financial conditions of these

Amortisation of film rights

The Group is required to estimate the projected
revenue of the film rights based on the shorter
of the underlying license period and their
useful lives in order to ascertain the amount of
amortisation charges for each reporting period.
The appropriateness of the amortisation estimate
requires the use of judgement and estimates
with reference to the prevailing and future market
conditions and the expected cash flow pattern
of the projected revenue. Changes in these
estimates and assumptions could have a material
effect on the amortisation expenses. As at 30th
June 2016, the carrying amount of film rights
amounted to approximately HK$2,798,000 (2015:
HK$6,568,000).

4 FARE

(0)

—EREER BF

e VB HRRNEE

HRCEEVE- R

FE U BR 3R 2 BB Rt

REBEWERR 2 BERRTIIA
BZEREFIEN K EMEELZ
REfEREEE 2 HE SRR
EZREFRUWFIAZ RE A EH M

%E«%%Vﬁﬂjﬁi#ﬂﬁﬁ BEES
XEEZBREERATRARES

DA&%?MET RARFEE  TER
REXEBERANERBEERE
TE-RFE) WRERPZ
MR gz Bl e BIEL &
INBEBE - R_ZT—NFARA
“t+H BERERCEEENA
224,739,000 L (Z T — R F:
14,183,000/ 7T) °

BRI < F i

N5 E A b 5T E &2 AR R 4B B Ak
RS ETATFH (UAREE
BE)RNZETRA - AEE SR
iﬁﬂﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁ%‘?ﬂ% > AEET
REZREMARTISAK IR TB
WA ZESHRSREERNHE
BEEANEE It{ﬁ%#ﬂ&ﬁ&
1Ecd> DZ:1EQ+&{EJLFLEOEK """""
E;ﬂ%&ﬁﬁﬁtﬁiﬁiixgﬂio#:
T—RNEFEANAZTH EXREZ
FREE A A2,798,0008 L (=&
— R % :6,568,00087T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

(d) Estimated valuation of investment

properties

In determining the fair value, the valuer has based
on property valuation techniques which involve,
inter alia, certain estimates including comparable
sales in the relevant market, current market rents
for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates and expected
future market rents. In relying on the valuation
report, management has exercised their judgement
and is satisfied that the method of valuation
is reflective of the current market condition.
As as 30th June 2016, the carrying amount of
investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$25,560,000 (2015: HK$25,560,000).

Fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select a variety of
methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in these estimates
and assumptions could have a material effect on
the fair value of the available-for-sale financial
assets.

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39
to determine when an available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired. This determination requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial
health of and short-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and
sector performance, changes in technology as well
as operational and financing cash flow.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

()

Fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets (Continued)

In view of the negative trend of financial health
and business outlook for the investee, including
factors such as industry and sector performance
as well as operational and financing cash flow,
the management determined the investment in
available-for-sale financial assets is depreciated.
During the year, a decrease in fair value of
HK$12,340,000 (2015: increase in fair value of
HK$8,347,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. As at 30th
June 2016, the carrying amount of available-for-
sale financial assets amounted to approximately
HK$85,802,000 (2015: HK$88,415,000).

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilised, and
it is measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax
assets are realised. In determining the deferred
tax assets to be recognised, management is
required to estimate the future applicable tax rate
for each subsidiary of the Company at each tax
jurisdiction and the profitability of each subsidiary,
so as to estimate the future utilisation of tax
losses. Any difference between these estimates
and the actual outcome will impact the Group’s
result in the period in which the actual outcome
is determined. As at 30th June 2016, the carrying
amount of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$365,000
(2015: HK$380,000) and HK$2,229,000 (2015:
HK$29,813,000) respectively.

REVBRRME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

(g) Classification of joint arrangements

The Group has entered into joint arrangements
to produce and distribute television series and
films. The Group has participating interests
ranging from 5% to 90% (2015: from 5% to 82%)
in these joint arrangements. The Group has joint
control over these arrangements as under the
contractual agreements, unanimous consent
is required from all parties to the agreements
for all relevant activities. The Group’s joint
arrangements involve the joint control by the
venturers of the assets contributed to the joint
arrangement and dedicated to the purposes of
the joint arrangement. The assets are used to
obtain benefits for the venturers. Each venturer
may take a share of the output from the assets
and each bears an agreed share of the expenses
incurred. These joint arrangements do not involve
the establishment of a corporation, partnership
or other entity, or a financial structure that is
separate from the venturers themselves. Therefore,
these arrangements are classified as joint
operations of the Group. The determination of the
relevant activities under joint operations requires
management’s significant judgement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 BRBETHERIE @
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

JE Uk & 3R K H i i U ZR

(h) Impairment of loans receivables and

(h)

other receivables

The Group assesses provision for impairment
of loans and other receivables based on
the estimate of the recoverability of these
receivables. Provisions are applied to loans and
other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not
be collectible. The identification of impairment of
loans and other receivables requires the use of
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact
carrying value of receivables and provision for
impairment losses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. As at 30th June
2016, the carrying amount of loans receivable, loan
to an associate and financial assets included in
deposits paid, prepayments and other receivables
amounted to approximately HK$43,163,000 (2015:
HK$37,000,000), HK$5,000,000 (2015: Nil) and
HK$52,179,000 (2015: HK$22,546,000).

IH 2 BB
NEEREER R E 4 B RIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

0)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. At 30th June 2016, the carrying
amount of goodwill at 30th June 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$59,447,000 (2015: HK$1,314,000).

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group amortises its other intangible assets with
a finite useful life on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives
reflect management’s estimate of the period that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of the other intangible assets. At 30th
June 2016, the carrying amount of other intangible
assets at 30th June 2016 amounted to approximately
HK$14,231,000 (2015: HK$1,858,000).

Provision for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the inventory
ageing analysis periodically, and makes allowance
on an annual basis for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for sale. The Group carries out an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at the end of each
reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving items through management’s
estimation of the net realisable value for such
obsolete and slow-moving items based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. At 30th June 2016, the carrying
amount of inventories amounted to approximately
HK$14,304,000 (2015: HK$5,841,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

0

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions and may vary significantly as a result
of keen competitions from competitors, resulting in
higher depreciation charge and/or write-off or write
down of obsolete assets when useful lives are less
than previously estimated. At 30th June 2016, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately HK$6,224,000 (2015:
HK$5,229,000).

Fair value of contingent consideration
receivable

The fair value of contingent consideration receivable
of acquisition was determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions, including
the discount rates and estimation of post-acquisition
performance of the acquired subsidiaries. Changes in
assumption used could materially affect the fair value
of the balances and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operation. At 30th
June 2016, the carrying amount of contingent
consideration receivable amounted to approximately
HK$10,930,000 (2015: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)

(n)

Impairment of interests in associates
and joint ventures

Determining whether interests in associates and
joint ventures are impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the associates and
joint ventures. Recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Management has evaluated the recovery of
the investments based on such estimates and is
confident that the allowance for impairment, where
necessary, is adequate. During the year ended 30th
June 2016, impairment losses of HK$18,421,000
(2015: Nil) were recognised in respect of interests in
associates.

Fair value of investment securities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active market is based on quoted market prices at
the end of each reporting period except one equity
security (the trading of which in an active market
was suspended in May 2015) in this report which is
based on the Group’s share of net asset value as
at 30th June 2015 (representing the management’s
best estimate of such equity security’s fair value
based on latest information which became available
subsequent to the year end date at 30th June 2015)
rather than the latest closing price of this equity
security before its suspension of trading in an active
market.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines (products and services). In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Chairman of the Company, being
the Group’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) for
the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment. The Group has presented the following
reportable segments.

Video distribution, film distribution and exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights

- Trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical, watches
and jewellery products

- Leasing of investment properties

S Securities investments

- Money lending

S Securities brokerage and margin financing
- Entertainment business

During the year ended 30th June 2016, the CODM
considered that it would be more appropriate to aggregate
the video distribution segment and film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights segment
into a single reportable segment as business nature of both
segments are closely related to film production.

Due to the change in the structure of the internal
organisation, the newly acquired subsidiary, Winston,
(as defined in Note 12(a)) together with an existing entity
engaged in trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical
products, which did not classify as a reportable operating
segment during the year ended 30th June 2015, are
now presented as a new operating segment of trading,
wholesaling and retailing of watches, jewellery and optical
products. Accordingly, the comparative figures of last year
have been reclassified.

During the year ended 30th June 2016, the Group has also
introduced a new reportable segment, securities brokerage
and margin financing, as a result of the acquisition of Win
Fung (as defined in Note 8).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R MY

)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

An operating segment regarding the provision of training
and coaching services was discontinued in the current
year. The segment information reported below does not
include any amounts for the discontinued operation, which
is described in more detail in note 41.

a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is a measure of profit/(loss) before
tax from continuing operations. The profit/(loss)
before tax from continuing operations is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax
from continuing operations except that gain on step
acquisition of a subsidiary, gain on disposal of a
subsidiary, fair value change and loss on redemption
of convertible bonds, fair value change on contingent
consideration receivable, fair value change on
contingent consideration payable, impairment loss
of interest in an associate, finance income, finance
costs, share of profits of associates, share of loss
of a joint venture, dividend income from available-
for-sale financial assets and unallocated corporate
expenses.

Segment assets exclude unallocated other
intangible assets, interests in associates, interests
in joint ventures, available-for-sale financial assets,
unallocated cash and cash equivalents, deferred
tax assets, loan receivable from a joint venture,
contingent consideration receivable, and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, borrowings,
deferred tax liabilities, and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

R =y > sy
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 S EBEH (@)
Yayi 3L WeyE S =
a) Segment revenue, results, assets and a) DElE FRE BERK
0 ey = -
liabilities (Continued) BEw@®
. X = SR
Information regarding the Group’s reportable @Z;E_g N
segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for the git AIEFE
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of 2=iE /j% KER
segment performance for the years ended 30 June BRI Yl 2 A
2016 and 2015 is set out below: BRI
2018
put T3
Continuilg g)erations
T i ]
rading,
Video distribution,  wholesaling, and Securities
film exhibition, retailing of optical, ~ Leasing of brokerage Total for
licensing and sub- watchesand  investment Securities Money  and margin  Entertainment continuing
licensing oéﬁkn ights jewelljcry ;ngugg properties  investments lending financing business  Elimination ~ operations
T -
BYHR RUR ARERCHES ’ BHELR HAAE
BREVNE HERTE HERANE B5R% it HRUK 3] s RRAR
HKS 000 HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO  HKS000  HKSO000
T#RL TER TERL TERL T#RL T#R T#n TER TEn
Segment revenue PETES .
External revenue and income ERERIA 56,171 61,712 1,026 (143,564) 8,450 16,072 7,602 - 7,469
Inter-segment sales APHEE - - - - - xa - @ -
56,171 61,712 1,026 (143,564) 8,450 16,099 7,602 (@) 7469
Segment results 8,563 (24,929 812 (143,586) 45 3,994 834 - (153,567)
(Gain on step acquisition of a subsidiary k2l
Fair value change and loss on redemption of
convertible bonds (1,813
Fair value change on contingent
consideration receivable 4,080
Fair value change on contingent
consideration payable 60
Impairment loss of inferest in an associate (18,421)
Finance income 298
Finance costs (2,263)
Divicend income from avalable-for-sale
financial assets 20473
Share of profits of associates 3,899
Share of loss of a joint venture (224)
Unallocated corporate expenses (20,546)
Loss before tax from continuing operations (166,453)
Assets
Segment assets 151,345 54,118 25,510 252,898 49,317 368,073 9,014 = 910,335
Interest in associates 25,730
Interest in joint ventures 482
Unallocated other intangible assets 1,858
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 85,802
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents 80,108
Contingent consideration receivable 10,930
Deferred tax assets 365
Loan receivable from a joint venture 8,364
Unallocated corporate assets 20376
Assets associated with disposal group
classified as held for sale 6,381
Total consolidated assets 1,150,731
Liabilties
Segment liabilties 94,259 3,778 198 - - 256,306 6,815 - 361,356
Taxation payable 9,068
Borrowings 9,200
Deferred fax liabiities 2,29
Unallocated carporate liabilties 7,359
Liabilties associated with disposal group
classfied as held for sale 9,598
Total consolicated liabilties 398,810
Other information #
Addltions of property, plant and equioment 7 136 816 3 - - 92 15 - 1,062
Additions of unallocated property,
plant and equipment 570
Total additions of property,
plant and equipment 1,632
Addftions of fim rights and fims in progress 49,489 - - - - - - - 49,489
Addtions of fim related deposits 7,044 - - - - - - - 7,044
Addtions of goodwill through acqisions
of subsidlaries - 46,021 - - - 28,064 - - 74,085
Addtions of property, plant and equipment
through acquisitions of subsidiaries - 1,169 - - - 1,554 - - 2,728
Addtions of other intangible assets through
acquisitions of subsidiaries - 1,108 - - - 11,400 - - 12,508
Depreciation and amortisation il 854 880 2 - 400 434 U - 2,604
Amortisation of fim rights % 8,891 - - - - - - - 8,891
Amortisation of brand name @ - 135 - - - - - - 135
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation 2 500
Total depreciation and amortisation fom RES
continuing operations 12,130
Impaiment of goocwil BEAE - 24,355 - - - - - 24,355
Impairment of fim rights and fims in progress . 4,226 - - - - - - - 4,226
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5 9DEHEHN @

aNkvi >4 XeyxE 2
a) Segment revenue, results, assets and a) NEWE -FE BEK
NI, ) =
liabilities (Continued) aE @
2015
—3-1%
(Restated)
(8551)
Continuing operations
RROERH
Trading,
Video distribution,  wholesaling, and
fim exhibition,  retaiing of optical, Leasing of Securities
licensing and sub- watches and investment Securities Money  brokerageand  Entertainment
licensing of fim rights  jewellery products properties  investments lending margin financing business Elimination Group
BEET e EER
EYMR RARER RRERLES | ERERR
¥R HERTE HERENE  EFRA g  FRRA  BEEE i 158
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FERL FEL FEL FERL TET iR iR FER FER
Segment revenue HHkE
External revenue and income SPRERBA 4,111 634 989 209,043 5120 - 2411 - 300,208
Inter-segment sales APEHE - - - - 104 - 7 (111) -
a1 634 989 229943 5224 - 2418 (11) 300,208
Segment results pEES | (9,601) (32 1,213 223690 2548 - (4,182) - 213,696
(Gain on disposal of a subsiciary HE-HHBAR 2 KE 6
Finance income BB 314
Finance cost SRR (170
Share of oss of an associate HME-EBELAER (38)
Share of oss of ajoint venture HE-BABLAFR 218)
Unallocated corporate expenses AIRGERL (15,294)
Proft before tax from confining operations 54 # £ 2 BB AT 198,296
Assets BE
Segment assets PHEE 124,274 4214 25,568 339,459 38,530 - 13913 - 545,958
Interests in an associate R-BBEDA2ER 5022
Interests i joint ventures RAELRZ R 706
Unallocated other intangible assets AAREMENEE 1858
Avallable-for-sale financial assets HESRER 88415
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents AIRRERELEEY 78484
Defered tax assets EREHEEE 380
Loan recelvable from a joint venture: ER-HAEARER 8,140
Unallocated corporate assets APMEKEE 10,665
Total consolidated assets GAEEER 730,608
Liabilities &%
Segment liabilties APERE 98,030 1,576 213 S S S 6,351 - 106,170
Taxation payable a5 14,432
Bomowings &5 9,200
Deferted tax ebiies EREnAsfE 29813
Unallocated corporat fiabiities FARLEEE 7,746
Totel consolideted lebiltes GRREAE 167,361
Other information L En
Additions of property, plant and equipment ~ FEE  BERRE 2781 6 - - 1200 - 37 - 4024
Addiions of unalocated property; TERDRNE BERRE
plant and equipment 302
Total addtions of property, FENF BERABEE
plant and equipment 4326
Addiions of fim rights and fims in progress ~ EEEHMERE (ER 2 BF 7639 - - - - - - - 7639
Adtions of fim related deposits EYRBT2EN 5429 - - - - - - - 5429
Additions of goocwil through acouistions ~ EBUEHB AT NEE
of subsidiaries - 1,314 - - - - - - 1,314
Addtions of property, plant and equipment ~ ERKEKHBANFENE
through acquisiions of subsidiaries BERRE - 37 - - - - - - 37
Depreciation and amortisation FEREY 519 - 2 - 3 - % - 508
Amortisation of fim rights TYMELEH 16,93 - - - - - - - 15936
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation AR ITE R ## 437
Total depreciation and amrtisation from REBERLEH,
continuing operations TERBHEE 16,961
Impaiment of fim rights and fims in progress  EYMEREMERET 2 HE 5818 - - - - - - - 5818
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Geographical information

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The
Group’s operations are,mainly located in Hong Kong,
PRC, and Macau.

The revenue information below is based on the
location of the operations. For the purpose of
identifying revenue, fair value change of financial
assets through profit or loss, is excluded.

b)

REVBRRME

5 9DEHEHN @

b 13 B R
ARRIRES - AEE 2 $HE
ERNES P B RRM

DA MR 24 T B A E s
B BRI W R
HATEABEINEZ SBE
EATEED-

2016
ZE-RE

Non-current
assets (other
than financial

instruments
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
ERBEE
(FBEER
TERIEE
Y 28 MEEE)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FHEREED
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (Frfcis) 83,778 214,397
Macau i 209 482
PRC and other asian countries B K% E A 28 M B R

(other than Hong Kong and (BB RRFIBRSN)

Macau) 66,855 2,555
North America =M 28 =
Europe BOM 67 =
Others HA 96 -

151,033 217,434
ZEAEFER EFEERESRIERERAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 7HEM (&)

b) Geographical information (Continued) b)

i &R (48)
2015
—ZET—hE

Non-current
assets (other
than financial

instruments
and deferred
Revenue tax assets)
FERBEE
(T EESR
THARIREE
W & REEE)
HK$'000 HK$’000
T T T T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HEREXER
Hong Kong (place of domicile) A (FTfEH) 44,096 92,739
Macau B 427 706
PRC and other asian countries A R H A R MBI =

(other than Hong Kong and (BB RORFIBRAN)

Macau) 25,325 2,564
North America b =M 200 -
Europe B 203 =
Others Hb 14 =

70,265 96,009
c) Information about major customers c) BHFrERFZ2EH

For the years ended 30th June 2016 and 2015, there
are no single customer contributed 10% or more of
the Group’s revenue.

The Group’s fair value change of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is excluded from total
revenue and income for the purpose of identifying
major customers of the Group who accounted for
over 10% of the Group's revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

PROPERTY, PLANT AND 6 xR HIFRR

EQUIPMENT
Leasehold Machinery Furniture Motor Office
improvements and equipment and fixtures Vehicles equipment Total
HE
WERE  BERRE  BRRKE RE  BOERE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER TER THER TER TER
Costs KA
At 1st July 2014 RZZE-ME+A—-H 7,260 25,969 1,551 1,475 7,641 43,896
Additions NE 1,935 25 114 - 2,252 4,326
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-RRELE 397 - 617 - 58 1,072
Disposals HE - - - (436) (136) (572)
At 30th June 2015 and RZZ-RERA=1H

1st July 2015 kZZE-HE+F—H 9,592 25,994 2,282 1,039 9,815 48,722
Additions NE 43 50 81 1,058 400 1,632
Acquisttion of subsidiaries U B B BB A A (it E45)

(Note 45) 4,636 - 578 97 444 5,755
Reclassification as held for sale £ 7B A {EH &

(Note 41) ( Bitsrat) (3,750) - (176) - (344) (4,270)
Disposals HE (197) (263) (15) - (1,005) (1,480)
Exchange difference BRESE (721) - (114) (10) (56) (901)

At 30th June 2016 RZZ-~E~A=+H 9,603 25,781 2,636 2,184 9,254 49,458
Accumulated depreciation RAINE

At 1st July 2014 RZZE-EE+A—H 6,677 25,947 1,478 1,081 7,132 42,315

Depreciation charge HEER 396 23 64 139 403 1,025

Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-RRELF

(Note 45) GEZD) 281 - 394 - 50 725
Disposals HE - - - (436) (136) (572)
At 30th June 2015 and RZZE-REXA=1H

1st July 2015 kZE-HE+A—H 7,354 25,970 1,936 784 7,449 43,493
Depreciation charge ?ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ 2,401 18 344 211 1,002 3,976
Reclassification as held for sale  E¥pAARELE

(Note 41) GEZ) (1,992) - 42 - (102) (2,136)
Disposals e (197) (263) @ - (913) (1,376)
Exchange difference BRLESE (585) - (111) (1) (16) (728)
At 30th June 2016 RZE-REXAZTH 6,981 25,725 2,124 984 7,420 43,234

Net carrying amount REFE
At 30th June 2016 RZF-"F~A=tH 2,622 56 512 1,200 1,834 6,224
At 30th June 2015 “E-RF/A=TH 2,238 24 346 255 2,366 5,29
= NEFHR BFEBRESRERERA
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

As at 30th June 2016, carrying amount of machinery
and equipment held by the Group under finance leases
is approximately HK$97,000 (2015: HK$132,000).

Depreciation of approximately HK$489,000 (2015:
HK$14,000) has been charged to “cost of revenue
and income” and approximately HK$2,615,000 (2015:
HK$1,011,000) has been charged to “administrative
expenses” of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. During the year ended 30th
June 2016, depreciation of approximately HK$872,000
(2015: Nil) has been included in the loss for the year
from discontinued operation in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

Mk RS RERE

RZEBE—RNERNA=1TH KE£BERE
MEMERECHERREZERED
A97,0007%8 7T (=& — A F : 132,0007%
JT) °

E BB 4489,0008 T (ZE—HF:
14,000 70) ERERE 2 EWE R 2 T
AR AR ] R ER - i 492,615,000
BT (ZZE—HF 1,011,000 L) E
Rige2HEWERZ [TTHRER]
BRe-MBEZT—R"FAA=THLSTF
€ PTE4872,0008 L (Z T —HF:
EIERREE2EABERAZ[FAR
BERLEEEBNEE] Ak

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES BEME
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T

At fair value BRAFHE

At the beginning of the year F 25,560 25,060
Change in fair value NEEEE - 500
At the end of the year FxR 25,560 25,560
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment
properties

a)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available

7

REVBRRME

REWE @)
REYE 2 AN FETZ

a)

NFEFR
TREIRNBEMRRECEER
B E WEHBBWHHRELENE
185 [RFEFEIRAEEN=
BRAFEFSERIBHNEIEERR
EMERTFE - BAATFEFNEN
ER2E[MESTEZTPREREA
HENTEEENEZNETN
T

FIERE EERAFS1BHAZE
AENATE BRGEEEER
M FHREERA BN REH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 7 &% (@)

a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) a) NVFEFH& @
Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using FIEHBE LEARTAERNEG
significant unobservable inputs ABEHENATE

Fair value measurements at 30th June 2016 categorised into
RZF-AEXNAZTHAATEAEREAR
Fair value at
30th June
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RIF-RE
~A=+HZ
NEE 1B 28 %3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tign Ti#En TR TiEn

Recurring fair value measurement LR ATEHE
Investment properties: REME:
- Residential - Hong Kong -FE-FE 25,560 = - 25,560
Fair value measurements at 30th June 2015 categorised into
RIE-REAA=TAATHENEREA
Fair value at
30th June
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZZ-h%
~A=tAZ
AVE £1 E £3E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T TER T
Recurring fair value measurements EEENTE}E
Investment properties: REME:

- Residential - Hong Kong -fE-F# 25,560 - - 25,560
During the year ended 30th June 2016, there were BHE_Z—X"EFXA=THILHF
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer EEBIERFCE HBERE
into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil). The Group’s policy B EIENEEALEL(ZF
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value —hEE) - AEENBEER
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in BRRNMEAREENAFES
which they occur. BHEERHHETL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

a)

REVBRRME

7 BREWE @

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) a) NFEEFHE
All investment properties of the Group were revalued AEEBEMBREMEHNR_-Z
as at 30th June 2016. The valuations were carried —NFEAR=ZTRHETERH-HE
out by an independent firm of surveyors, Roma TIHRB A ERIT -2 SBERE
Appraisals Limited, who have among their staff HERARIEIT ZARIHHETL
members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors REBIEMBegE  HAMHE
with recent experience in the location and category VXN AMBERNAERR
of properties being valued. The management of the HAEELR REAFERSER
Group has discussions with the surveyors on the EITHER  ~EBEEEED A
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the EMFREERERGEER-
valuation is performed at each annual reporting date.
Information about Level 3 fair value b) BEFEIBAFEFELZ
measurements & #t

Valuation Range of

techniques Unobservable inputs  unobservable inputs

FRAHEZ A&

HERE LD & MANBIRZEHE

Investment properties
in Hong Kong

REBZBREDE

— Residential properties  Direct comparison
approach

-EEME BEREEE

The fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong is determined using direct comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square feet
basis, adjusted for a premium or discount specific
to the quality of the Group’s properties compared to
recent sales on the comparable transaction. Higher
discount for lower quality properties will result in a
lower fair value measurement.

Discount on quality of
properties

MEE RIETE

12% — 27%
(2015: 7% — 16%)
12% - 27% (ZZB— R 4F:
7% —16%)

MNREBEBEZREMEZAFET
ERAERLEEEE BE2ER
HUEBYEREFTREREE
AEZEHEE AEAKEY
XEEZHERESIE (RIIH
HERXRHUBMB)IFLAR -K
EEEWXAZFARRTE g
BYREZAFEFERE

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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REFBRRMEE

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 7 EWE @)
b) Information about Level 3 fair value by BEEEIERTFEIFEZ
measurements (Continued) BF @)
The movements during the year in the balance of FAEIERFEFZ2LEBNE
these Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: O
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Investment properties BREWE
- Residential - Hong Kong —-fEx-&F#
At beginning of the year F4 25,560 25,060
Fair value adjustment NEBERAE - 500
At end of the year RER 25,560 25,560

Fair value adjustments of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “Fair value change on
investment properties” on the face of consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. All the gains/
(losses) recognised in profit or loss for the year arise
from the investment properties held at the end of the
reporting period.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE B SRR M EE
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 HithEEEE
Trading Brand Club
rights name membership Total
g5 e 71 =f 5 b ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET THET FHET
Cost [
At 1st July 2014, RZZE—MF
30th June 2015 and +A—H:
1st July 2015 —E-hE
NAZTER
—T-HF
+H—H - - 1,858 1,858
Acquisition of Winston Iz BEWinston Asia
Asia Limited and its Limited 2 5 K1 /&
subsidiaries (“Winston A 8] ([Winston
Group”) (Note 45(a)) 8] )(KiEr45() - 1,108 - 1,108
Acquisition of Win Fung WiEkEEF AR
Securities Limited naEl ([kEE])
(“Win Fung”) (Note 45(b)) (Kizx45()) 11,400 - - 11,400
At 30th June 2016 R-ZT—XRE
~NA=1+H 11,400 1,108 1,858 14,366
Accumulated amortisation & &t 84
At 1st July 2014, N-ZE—F
30th June 2015 +A—B-
and 1st July 2015 “ZT—HF
ANAZTER
—T-hF
+H—H - - - -
Amortisation for the year FREH - 135 - 135
At 30th June 2016 RZB—RE
NAZTH - 135 = 135
Carrying amount EREE
At 30th June 2016 RZZE—RF
NA=TH 11,400 973 1,858 14,231
At 30th June 2015 RZZE—4LF
~NA=+H - - 1,858 1,858
Particulars of the impairment testing are set out in Note 9. BEAR 2 FEHMEY -

—T-AFFER ETERSRERERAR 189
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e IERERMEE
9 GOODWILL 9 MHE
HK$’'000
FHET
Cost R
At 1st July 2014 R-_Z—NFELA—AH =
Acquisition of Fine Ocean Limited W EBER AR ([/E#])
(“Fine Ocean”) (Note 45(d)) (B 5E45(d) ) 1,314
At 30th June 2015 and 1st July 2015 RZE—RFEASNA=ZTHEK
—E—hFtA—H 1,314
Acquisition of Winston Group (Note 45(a)) W B Winston&s B (Fff5F45(a) ) 46,021
Acquisition of Win Fung (Note 45(b)) Wb ok 82 (M95E45(0) ) 28,064
Acquisition of AP Group Investment Holdings WEEHEEZERAERAR
Limited and its subsidiaries (“AP Group”) FEWBAR ([EBEE])
(Note 45(c)) (BI5E45(c)) 13,971
At 30th June 2016 RZZE—R"FA=1H 89,370
Accumulated impairment losses ErtiREREE
At 1st July 2014, 30th June 2015 and R—E—MmMFELHA—AH-
1st July 2015 ZE-RAFRNA=ZTHEK
—E—hFEA—H =
Impairment losses recognised EERBEEE 29,923
At 30th June 2016 RZE—ARESNA=ZTH 29,923
Carrying amount BREE
At 30th June 2016 RZE—XRFESNA=ZTH 59,447
At 30th June 2015 R-ZE—RFENA=1+H 1,314
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GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the following cash-generating units (‘CGUs”).

- Trading, wholesaling and retailing of optical products
(“Division A”)

- Trading, wholesaling and retailing of watches and

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

jewellery products (“Division B”)

- Securities brokerage and margin financing business
(“Division C”)

- Training and coaching business (“Division D”)

The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) as at 30th June 2016 and 30th June

2015 allocated to these units are as follows:

REVBRRME

GEE D

HEDHREARABNMOREENA TR
TELEM ([(REELEM]):

- HXBEmEBEH HERTE([D
#BAL)

- BEIREERES HELTE
% (Io#B])

- BHRRERFERBEXEK ([2E
cl:

- BIREEBEK ([H93D)])
RZZE—RNEANA=Z=+BR-_ZT—F1F

NA=Z1TBE DEEZFELNZHEZ
REE (HRRARERBE) BT

2016 2015

ZE—RE —E—RHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ExT FAT

Division A SEA 1,314 1,314
Division B T ERB 21,666 =
Division C 3 EBC 28,064 =
Division D SED 8,403 -
59,447 1,314

for identification only

TRRERIERAR A
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192

GOODWILL (continued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below.

Division A

The recoverable amount of CGU of trading, wholesaling
and retailing of optical products was determined based
on value in use calculations. Those calculations used cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a period of 5 years, and cash flows
beyond 5 years were extrapolated by assuming growth
rate of 3% and discount rates of 17.7%. The discount rates
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant CGU. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculations was the budgeted gross margin, which was
determined based on the CGU’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

Division B
For the impairment testing, goodwill arising from acquisition

of Winston and brand name classified as “other intangible
assets” are allocated to the Group’s CGU B.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of trading, wholesaling
and retailing of watches and jewellery products business
of HK$23,855,000 was based on its value in use and was
determined with the assistance of Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer not
connected with the Group. The calculation used cash
flow projection based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period, and at a discount
rate of 17.7%. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant CGU. Cash flows after
the five-year period were extrapolated using 3% growth
rate in considering the economic condition of the market.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Winston Group because
the cost of the combination included a control premium.
In addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of
expected synergies, revenue growth and future market
development of Winston Group. As at 30th June 2016, the
Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$24,355,000 on
the goodwill due to the continuing weakening of the retail
market in Hong Kong and the PRC since January 2016,
which led to a change to the expected growth and market
development of the trading, wholesaling and retailing of
watches and jewellery products business could not be met.

The goodwill of Division B belongs to trading, wholesaling
and retailing of optical, watches and jewellery products.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (continued)

Division C
For the impairment testing, goodwill arising from acquisition

of Win Fung and trading rights classified as “other
intangible assets” are allocated to the Group’s CGU C.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of securities brokerage
and margin financing business was based on its value
in use and was determined with the assistance of Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent professional
qualified valuer not connected with the Group. The
calculation used cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period, and at a discount rate of 17.1%. The discount
rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to
the relevant CGU. Cash flows after the five-year period
were extrapolated using 3% growth rate in considering the
economic condition of the market.

Division D

As detailed in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, on 13th June 2016, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with Lucky Famous
Limited, an independent third party, to dispose its 51%
equity interests in AP Group (“the Proposed Disposal”) at
a consideration of HK$20,400,000 (subject to downward
adjustment in respect of the guaranteed profit as described
in the sale and purchase agreement).

REVBRRME

9 BHE @

728G

BREAEAME 2ERHEMETLE
ElZWEKEMSHERESERD
REAEBEZRESELEMNC-

BARERITRBEES 2 eELES
fzrE B REFEREE WL
Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited ( 2 7K
EEWEBE BT EXAERGER)
2B T EEE - HAESXERE
REEBEMEZ AFHMKREBEE 2R
S METER RILALIR AT A% E - T
FBRIRE AT ATAG IR X - I [ B B2 4
ReEABMNBERzETRR - AFH
BrBReREDNKERMBEBER
R RERHESE -

5D
WINERE SRR W41 EE - R =
T—XNENA+T=8 K& BHLucky
Famous Limited (—& B 5 =75 )72
BEEME UWEEEREHEBES1%H
R% #E - X {8 /520,400,0008 7T (Al 3t &
BEREATZREEMATARE) ([
BEHEEHE]) -

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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ma

10 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN 0O EXHMERIIEPZER
PROGRESS
Films in
Film rights progress Total
TR ME HEhZEY aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET TET FTET
Cost BAE
At 1st July 2014 RZE-—NF+[—H 893,458 9,816 903,274
Additions RE 1,250 6,389 7,639
Transfers = B2 4,018 (4,018) -
Write-off of DVD YIS B R RER
preproduction cost B 2 8 (349) - (349)
Write-off of expired film rights BB R 2 (1,231) - (1,231)
At 30th June 2015 and R-ZZ—A1&F
1st July 2015 /\ﬂf‘f'E&
“T-AF+A—H 897,146 12,187 909,333
Additions NE 6,710 42,779 49,489
Transfers = B2 2,637 (2,637) =
Write-off of DVD YIS B R RAER
preproduction cost B 2 3 88 (381) - (381)
Write-off of expired film rights BB R 2 M (3,718) (849) (4,567)
At 30th June 2016 RZE-R"EXA=+H 902,394 51,480 953,874
Accumulated amortisation and BB REE
impairment
At 1st July 2014 RZT—MEFE+A—H 871,253 - 871,253
Amortisation for the year (Note 33) & Ay # ( Fff3E33) 15,936 - 15,936
Impairment losses FEEBE 4,969 849 5,818
Write-off of DVD BT B IERER A
preproduction cost o 6 (349) - (349)
Write-off of expired film rights FHE A 2 1 3H (1,231) - (1,231)
At 30th June 2015 and RZZT—RE
1st July 2015 Aﬂ_+5&
—Z-AF+A—H 890,578 849 891,427
Amortisation for the year (Note 33) & Ay 1 (Ff3E33) 8,891 - 8,891
Impairment losses MEEE 4,226 - 4,226
Write-off of DVD B B IR EERT
preproduction cost XA 2 8 (381) - (381)
Write-off of expired film rights F B E A 2 3 (3,718) (849) (4,567)
At 30th June 2016 RZZ—R"E~A=1H 899,596 - 899,596
Carrying amount fREE
At 30th June 2016 RZZE—R"E~A=1H 2,798 51,480 54,278
At 1st July 2015 R-Z—H&+A—AH 6,568 11,338 17,906

Bt 75 R 2R MY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 FILM RIGHTS AND FILMS IN

PROGRESS (Continued)

Amortisation of approximately HK$8,891,000 (2015:
HK$15,936,000) is included in the cost of revenue and
income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Impairment test for film rights and films in
progress

The Group observes whether the film rights and films
in progress for video distribution, film distribution and
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing of film rights
segment are subject to any impairment indication, in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note
2 of these consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 30th June 2016, management
assessed whether there was an impairment indicator in
relation to the film rights and films in progress for video
distribution, film distribution and exhibition, licensing and
sub-licensing of film rights segment by reviewing the
cast or scale of each films, current market condition, the
trade history, current financial position and popularity of
film outline stories. Management has further performed
an assessment on the recoverable amount of the
film rights and film in progress based on each film
sales forecast and noted that certain film rights are
considered to be fully impaired. Hence, an impairment
of HK$4,226,000 has been provided for the year ended
30th June 2016 (2015: HK$4,969,000) on the film
rights and no impairment (2015: an impairment loss of
HK$849,000) has been provided on films in progress
for video distribution, film distribution and exhibition,
licensing and sub-licensing of film rights segment in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

10

REVBRRME

ERNMERREPZER

(#)

B4 548,891,000 T (ZE—H
£ 115,936,000/ 7T ) 5 A4R A& 2 H W &=
RZWBERARKAR -

B HRIE N RIEP Z BRI
(=

7R R B S AR A B 7 R R I 2R
NEHBERTHERT BHEIR
HH R REEBRRES B EY
IR R 2 BY R D MR R E
ES

RE - ZRmR - XZEL B
RAREZREFROZEDRE T
MEREBET EXETREE -BEHK
BREZMES T2 EZRERRES
CEYRGHERETR -EEERE
BEHMEYMHEETENE — S HEMRE
MEUWER 2 B A U0 & BEETTEE
WEZBEETEZRED WRABER
B-AM REE-_T—X<"E~A=ZT
BIEFEE AEBECREERET EF
BTRNEE - REREEEEMRES S
CEERERGREEZERER PR
B B 54,226,000 T (ZE— R4
4,969,000 7T) - M ML EEFR 2 &
HEHTRAERE (ZE—RFRES
18849,000 7T ) °

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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REFBRRMEE

11

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at

30th June 2016.

11

UTAERZE

NCIEE

TEMB LA

—RERNA=ZTHZHWE

Proportion
Proportion of ordinary
of ordinary  Proportion shares held
shares  of ordinary by non-
Place of incorporation/ directly shares  controlling
establishment and kind of Particulars of Principal activities and held by held by the interests
Name legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%)  group (%) (%)
=R 3 HIEE R E
B2H HE& HHEMN
AR B B BEMLE BENLTE TERLH
&% LiEERRER BRITRAFE TEXBRERILE BRbbfil(%) Bz b fl(%) (%)
*Universe Films The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in 100% - -
(Holdings) Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
* Universe Films EERZES EBRRA100ET BERR B
(Holdings) Limited BRELAR
Universe Laser & Video Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1,000,000 Distribution of films in various S 100% S
Co. Limited liability company videogram formats in
Hong Kong
SFEFBYERDA BB BRAMAR L i AR Ak 71,000,000 7T UTRASGHABTER
Universe Films Distribution Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Sub-licensing of film rights - 100%
Company Limited liability company and television series,
film exhibition
and leasing of investment
properties in Hong Kong
EFRYRENERAR BB BRAMAR ERRRA2ET EREFRERERE
BY MR AR E
ESEN
*Unique Model Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Model agency in Hong Kong = 100% =
liability company
*Unique Mode! Limited B BEREMARA L@BRABAI00%E T BEERE &
Universe Digital Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,000 Distribution of films in various S 100% S
Entertainment Limited liability company 5% deferred HK$10,000 videogram formats in
Hong Kong
EFYBREERAF EE BRAGAR L AR AR 410,0007 7T UTRASGHABTER
5%3EE AR AR 410,000/ 7T B0
Universe Management Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10,000 Provision of management - 100% -
Services Limited liability company 5% deferred HK$10,000 services for the Group in
Hong Kong
EFNEERARAR EE AREMERA E®BARARA10,000% T mAREREERRE FE
5% IE B iR 410,000 7T
Universe Entertainment The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$2 Investment in films production - 100% -
Limited limited liability company and licensing of film rights in
Hong Kong
EFREFRAF RERLEE LEgAET REBYRERRILER
BEREARA B AR
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REVBRRME

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 11 E ZME 2 R (&)

Proportion
Proportion of ordinary
of ordinary ~ Proportion shares held
shares  of ordinary by non-
Place of incorporation/ directly shares  controlling
establishment and kind of Particulars of Principal activities and held by held by the interests
Name legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%)  group (%) (%)
E#H HIEERE
BRR HE& HIEAH
AR B B BEMLE BENLTE TERLH
&% LiEERRER BROTRAFE TEXBREFILE BRbLfil(%)  BR b fl(%) (%)
*Universe Pictures The British Virgin Islands,  Ordinary US$2 Film acquisition agent for - 100% -
International Limited limited liability company the Group in Hong Kong
“Universe Pictures RBRAES: LERRAET AEEZYRWBERE BB
International Limited BERELAR
Universe (China) Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Investment holding in S 100% S
Development Limited liability company Hong Kong and
investment
in television series
production in the People’s
Republic of China ("PRC”)
EF(RE)ARERAR R BRAMAR LTERRA2ET REER BERREHE
BREZR FEAR
HAE ([HE])
“Globalink Advertising Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Advertising agent for S 100% S
Limited liability company the Group in Hong Kong
“Globalink Advertising BE BEREMARF TRBBEAET AEBZRERE BH
Limited
Century Creator Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Investment in films S 100% =
Company Limited liability company production in Hong Kong
HRAEEERAA BE BREGAR ERRkA2ET REBYEUE B
Matrix Productions Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Investment in films S 100% =
Company Limited liability company production in Hong Kong
HREEBR LA BE AREMERA LRRRA2ET REBEYEUE BB
Digital Programme Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Production of infotainment - 100% -
Production Limited liability company programme in Hong Kong
HEHEREERAR R BREMERA ERRRA2ET SEREENEGE BB
Universe International Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Purchasing agent for S 100% =
Technology Limited liability company the Group in Hong Kong
EFRRMRERAR BE BREGAR ERRkA2ET KEEZRBRE FE
Universe Artiste Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$10 Management of contracted - 100% -
Management Limited liability company artistes in Hong Kong
EFEAERBRAR & AREMERA LRRRA10ET ERANEAN BE
*Films Station Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Films production in - 100% -
Production Limited liability company Hong Kong
*Films Station B BEREEAA LERAET BRI BE

Production Limited
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ma

11

Bt 75 R 2R MY

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

11 FEMWB2F (&)

Proportion
Proportion of ordinary
of ordinary ~ Proportion shares held
shares  of ordinary by non-
Place of incorporation/ directly shares  controlling
establishment and kind of Particulars of Principal activities and held by held by the interests
Name legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%)  group (%) (%)
E#H HIEERE
BRR HE& HIEAH
MR B S B BEMLE BENLTE TERLH
&% LiEERRER BROTRAFE TEXBREFILE BRbLfil(%)  BR b fl(%) (%)
Universe Music Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Licensing and sub-licensing - 100% -
liability company of music programme and
investment in concert in
Hong Kong
ETELERLA BB BRAMAR LERRAET Rt RER SRR REAR
REEZE FE
*Universe Films Acquisition Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$2 Sub-licensing of film rights in = 100% =
Limited liability company Hong Kong
“Universe Films Acquisition E# BRAMDA LaRRA2E T BEETME &5
Limited
Mutual Faith Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Property development in S 100% =
Investment Limited liability company Hong Kong
EEREBERAA BE AREMERA EBRRA1008 T MEER BE
Grant Talent Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1 Films production in - 100% -
liability company Hong Kong
AEBHRAF BB BRAMAR ERRRAET BYEIE BB
Wide Avenue Holdings The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Investment holdings in 100% S =
Limited Limited liability company the British Virgin Islands
Wide Avenue Holdings EBRAES TRBBEAIET BRERR RERIHES
Limited BREMARA
Universe Martix Films Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$1 Investment in films production = 100% =
Investment Limited Limited liability company
EFHEEYREBRAR  BE LERBRAIET REBYRIE
BRELAR
EFMBH LI R PRC, limited RMB1,000,000 Distribution of films in the PRC - 100% -
(ER)ERRAR liability company
SFMAEHLERET hE EREERR AR #1,000,0007C BIEY T
() BRRA
Fragrant River Entertainment The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in 100% S =
Culture (Holdings) Limited limited liability company the British Virgin Islands
BIREXE (ER) RERLEE LBBREA100ET RERKR RBRLHS
BRAT BREEAA
Weluck Development Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Securities investments - 100% -
limited liability company
KEEBERERAF EBRAHS LERREAIET EFRE
BREEAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

11 FEMWB2F (&)

Proportion
Proportion of ordinary
of ordinary ~ Proportion shares held
shares  of ordinary by non-
Place of incorporation/ directly shares  controlling
establishment and kind of Particulars of Principal activities and held by held by the interests
Name legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%)  group (%) (%)
E#H HIEERE
BRR HE& HIEAH
AR B B BEMLE BENLTE TERLH
&% LiEERRER BROTRAFE TEXBREFILE FRbbBl(%)  Br b 4I(%) (%)
Fragrant River Finance The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
Group Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
BIMBEEFRAF RBRAES EBRRA100ET REER BB
BREEDA
Fragrant River Asia The British Virgin Islands,  Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
Investment Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
BITHREERAR EBRTES EBRRA100ET REER BB
BREELA
Urban King Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability company Hong Kong
HEERR AR R A EBRIES EBRRA100%T REER &8
BREEDA
Precise Reach The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in S 100% S
Group Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
BEEEERAT KERLER EBRKRA100%T REER &8
BREELA
Valiant Power The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in S 100% =
Holdings Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
BRERERAT RERLEE EBRRAI100%T REER BB
BRELAR
Great Harbour The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
Enterprises Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
EECEERAF RERLEE LBBREREA100% T RERK &
BRELAR
Gold Summit The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
International Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
BEERERAR RERLEE LBBREA100% T RERK &
BRELAA
Rising Fame The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
International Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
AZERERAF RERLEE LBBREA100ET REER BE
BREEAA

—E—x

—=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

11

Bt 75 R 2R MY

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

11 FEMWB2F (&)

Proportion
Proportion of ordinary
of ordinary ~ Proportion shares held
shares  of ordinary by non-
Place of incorporation/ directly shares  controlling
establishment and kind of Particulars of Principal activities and held by held by the interests
Name legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%)  group (%) (%)
E#H HIEERE
BRR HE& HIEAH
AR B B BEMLE BENLTE TERLH
&% LiEERRER BROTRAFE TEXBREFILE BRbLfil(%)  BR b fl(%) (%)
Galaxy View Group Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$1 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability company Hong Kong, British Virgin
Islands and the PRC
FFEEERAF RERLEE i ESET RERKR FE-
BREELA EBRLHERPE
Universe Asia Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Money lending in = 100% =
Finance Limited liability company Hong Kong
EFDNRBERAE R BREMERA LBBRBAI1008 T W& &%
Fragrant River Culture Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding in the PRC S 100% S
Investment Limited liability company
BIXREFRAA A AREERA EBRRA100%E T REER +H
Fragrant River Entertainment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
Investment Limited liability company Hong Kong
BIREREERAA BB BRAMAR LBBRRAI1008 T REER BB
Ample China Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Investment holding in - 100% -
Development Limited liability company Hong Kong
TEERERAF R BREMERA LBBRBA1008 T RERKR &
Rising Fame Investment Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$100 Securities investments - 100% -
Limited liability company
AEREFRRF A AREERA EBRRA100%E T ERRE
Round Table Performance Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$3,330,000 Cultural and entertainment - 70% 30%
Entertainment Limited liability company business
EREAXREFRAT  FE BREEAA L iR AR 73,330,000 7T XA RREEH
Fine Ocean Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary HK$1,000,001 Optical shops - 80% 20%
liability company
BHBRAF R BREMERA L RARAR A 1,000,0017 7T REE
Winston Asia Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary US$3,319 Investment holding in - 100% -
limited liability company Hong Kong and the PRC
Winston Asia Limited KERLES LR AS,319% T REER FERSP
BREEDA
Universe Watch and Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$73,944,225 Investment holding in S 100% S
Jewellery Group Co Ltd limited liability company Hong Kong and the PRC
EFERREREERAA BE BREGAR B ARARA73,944,22578 1T REZKR FERTE

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



11

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

11 TEWMB LR (@)

Proportion
Proportion of ordinary
of ordinary ~ Proportion shares held
shares  of ordinary by non-
Place of incorporation/ directly shares  controlling
establishment and kind of Particulars of Principal activities and held by held by the interests
Name legal entity issued share capital place of operation parent (%)  group (%) (%)
E#H HIEERE
BRR HE& HIEAH
MR B S B BEMLE BENLTE TERLH
&% LiEERRER BROTRAFE TEXBREFILE BRbLfil(%)  BR b fl(%) (%)
RITHEEEBRAA PRC, Ordinary RMB27,500,000 Wholesale and retail of - 100% -
limited liability company watches in the PRC
RYTHEERBRAA HE HREERF LERRAARE27,500,0000 HEMTEEEK HH
ERBH(RINVERRR PRC, Ordinary HK$9,000,000 Wholesale and retail of - 100% -
limited liability company watches in the PRC
EREHRYNERAA FEBERAEAR & iR Ak 7°9,000,0007% 7T HENTEER PE
Garona (HK) Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$300,000 Wholesale and retail of S 100% =
limited liability company watches in Hong Kong
Garona (HK) Limited B BREMDRA 3 B AR Z8300,0007 7T HERNTEEE 58
Garona Worldwide Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$10,000 Trademark holding - 100% -
limited liability company
Garona Worldwide Limited B BREERA EBARAR 410,000 7T BRRE
World Time (Asia) Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$100,000 Trademark holding - 100% -
limited liability company
BREtAERAF R AREMERA LB AR A100,0007 7T BERE
AP Group Investment The British Virgin Islands, ~ Ordinary USD1,000 Investment holding in S 51% 49%
Holdings Limited limited liability company Hong Kong and the PRC
EHEEERERAR RERUEE EBRIRA,000% T REZKR FERTE
BRELAR
AP Group International Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$10,000 Investment holding in = 51% 49%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong and the PRC
EHEEERARF BE BREMAR LA AR 410,000/ T REER FERBE
Act Point Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$10,000 Provision of training course in - 51% 49%
limited liability company Hong Kong
BE RBRAR BE AREMERR T AR AR 10,0008 7T RESEIRE BR
RYNERREEER B PRC, Ordinary HK$500,000 Provision of training course in - 51% 49%
BRAA limited liability company the PRC
RYBRREXEREN hE AFREMERR & B B MR 500,000/ 7T REEFIRE
BRAT
Asia Professional Coach Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$10,000 Provision of training course in - 51% 49%
Association Limited limited liability company the PRC
THNEXHRBEERRA  BE BRELAF LBBRAR 10,0008 T REEFIRE  F
Win Fung Securities Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary HK$50,000,000 Securities brokerage and - 100% -
limited liability company margin financing
KXBEFER R BREMERA LRMRAS0,0000008 T  EFELRAREE
—TrEER sFEEemrreran 201
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/

AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

(@) Interests in associates

REE N Z#E B
— BB E A R Z ;A

@ »

BN T > RS

2016 2015
—FE—RE —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF# T FET
Cost of investments in B AN T KA
associates, unlisted JELE™ 40,455 5,060
Share of post-acquisition profits & U 3% 12 5z 7 3,696 (38)
Less: Accumulated B BETREEE
impairment loss (note iv) (BsEiv) (18,421) -
25,730 5,022
Details of each of the Group’s associate at the REEHERAEESHERRZ
end of the reporting period are as follows: BT
Principal place Proportion of registered
Name of entity Place of incorporation  of business capital held by the Group  Principal activity Note
[ £ A LB TEERME FEEBAZHEMERLY TEEH i
2016 2015
ZE-7§ _"T-I%
Winston Asia Limited British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 100% 20.01% Investment holdings, (i)
(*Winston”) (‘BV) trademark holding and
trading of watches, gems
and ‘ewelleries
Winston Asia Limited RERLHE &% 100% 2001% REZR AEFERER: ()
([Winston ]) EE&E&,\E%
Glory International British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 49% - Advertising, promotion, (il
Entertainment Limited (‘BVI) provision of public
(“Glory International’) relations services, holding
and sponsoring stage
performance, concerts, film
production and other
cultural events
5 RBRIEE BE 49% - BERE EE RERER O
(THREIR]) K AaREREEL
Be FYHER
B iE®
Hong Kong Optical Hong Kong Hong Kong 28% 11% Trading, wholesaling and
Company Limited retailing of optial products
(*HK Optical’)
ERXERERRAT FE BE 28% 1% 85 HERTEXZER

(MZERE])

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ABISmAM
12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/ 12 REE QA Z RN

AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

—EEE AR ZHIE (@)

(@) Interests in associates (Continued) (@ REBIE QR 2R (@)

Notes: B 5T

On 17th November 2014, Fragrant River
Entertainment Culture (Holdings) Limited (‘FREC”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
22.13% equity interests in Winston at a consideration
of HK$5,060,000. The equity interests held by the
Group was decreased to 20.01% following a group
restructuring by Winston on 29th May 2015. On 31st
July 2015, FREC further acquired 79.99% equity
interest in Winston in which Winston became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as further
detailed in Note 45(a).

On 28th August 2015, Fragrant River Entertainment
Investment Limited (“FREI”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
vendor, pursuant to which the Group acquired 49%
equity interest in Glory International, a company
incorporated in BVI with limited liability, at an initial
consideration of HK$36,750,000. The final cash
consideration is subject to adjustment and a cap
of HK$55,125,000 in accordance with the formula
stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement dated
28th August 2015 which detailed as follows:

FC =NP x 7.5 x49%

Where:

“FC” means the amount of the Final Consideration
subject to a cap of HK$55,125,000;

“NP” means the audited consolidated profit after
tax of Glory International and its subsidiaries for the
period from 1st July 2015 to 30th June 2016

R-ZZE—NF+—A+tRA &
RAZEEWNBARIE TIREX
b () BR AR ([HIIRE
XAt ) LA 185,060,000/ 7T 4%
BEWinston22.13% 2 A # - 1 —
T—RHF A A =+ L HWinston
SEEHEE AEBABEEZR
R E2001% N _EBE—F
FLA=+—R FITKRE
# — 25 BB Winston79.99% 2 A%
¥ B It Winstonfk B4R QA 2
ME2EWBRR E—HH8
BT FE45(0) °

R-ZE—RENAZFTN\B"
ARARZEZEMBRAREILIR
LEFRAE ([HITRER
B E—R2BYFE=ZHEFE
VEEHH BUHAEEREBY
RER (—MREBRE ST
MERSL 2 BIR AT )49% 2 Bk -
125 R B A&36,750,000/8 7T ° &%
KRS REBEAREEHAE =T
—HENAZ-Z+N\BZEE®
FHANEBITAE ETEE
855,125,000/ 7. 2 LR - B
ARFBEOT

FC =NP x 7.5 x 49%
o

[FClEHRHERESE LRA
55,125,000/ 7T

INPJEE-ZT—RFLA—HE
—TE-RERAZTEHEF
BB R EME AR 2 EEX
FRRRBIRE N

Z—REFR ETERSRIERERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

(@) Interests in associates (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

ii) (Continued)

On 5th May 2016, FREI and the independent third
party vendor entered into a supplemental agreement
pursuant to which the terms of the consideration as
stated in the sale and purchase agreement dated
28th August 2015 has been amended. In accordance
with the supplemental agreement, the amended terms
include (i) the final consideration will be capped at
the amount which is equal to the initial consideration
(i.e. HK$36,750,000); (i) the consideration will only be
subject to downward adjustment in accordance with
the following revised formula:

FC =NP x (12/15) x 7.5 x 49%
Where:

“FC” means the amount of the Final Consideration
subject to a cap of HK$36,750,000;

“NP” means the audited consolidated profit after
tax of Glory International and its subsidiaries for the
period from 1st July 2015 to 30th September 2016

Glory International operates in Hong Kong and is
a strategic partner for the Group in developing the
business of advertising, promotion, provision of public
relations services, holding and sponsoring stage
performance, concerts, film production and other
cultural events.

iii) On 21st May 2015, Precise Reach Group Limited
(“Precise Reach”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired 11% equity interest in HK
Optical at a consideration of HK$1,603,000. On 1st
February 2016, Precise Reach further acquired 17%
equity interest in HK Optical at a consideration of
HK$2,042,000 in which the Group is able to exercise
significant influence over HK Optical. The 11% equity
interest previously held by the Group in HK Optical in
the amount of HK$1,603,000 was reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to investment in
associate on 1st February 2016 when the Group is
able to exercise significant influence over HK Optical
as further detailed in Note 16.

iv) During the year ended 30th June 2016, in view of
the financial performance of Glory International,
the Group has performed impairment assessment
on investments in Glory International whereby the
recoverable amount of HK$22,852,000 of Glory
International was determined based on value in
use calculation, with reference to the estimated
cash flows in the coming five years and cash flows
beyond five years were extrapolated by assuming 3%
growth rate using pre-tax discount rate of 18.9%.
Following the impairment assessment, amount of
HK$18,421,000 was recognised as impairment loss
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the year ended 30th June 2016.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

(@) Interests in associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information of
material associates

Summarised financial information of the material
associate, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts in

REVBRRME

WEENA R ER
—EEE AR ZHIE (@)

(@) RELE DR Z RS ()
FEBREQARZHBEN
=
REHEE LA TERELR
% UEREAUBBREFOER
BERTAGHEEH S QARG

the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed BRBERENT
below:
Glory International FAEEBE
2016
ZE—RE
HK$’000
THET
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,628
Current assets MEEE 16,981
Non-current liabilities EMEBBE (10)
Current liabilities mEnaE (6,880)
Revenue W = 25,856
Profit for the period from acquisition date  WEBHHZ—_FT—XFXA=+H81t
to 30th June 2016 HAfE 2 i A 9,108
Other comprehensive income for the period Hi R H th & U8 75 -
Total comprehensive income for the period 8 A2 [ W 25 42 58 9,108

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE KR ERMEE
12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/ 12 WA EE ’%'/L};JZ*’EE/FEﬁ'

AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE —EBE AR ZHIE (&

(Continued)

(@) Interests in associates (Continued) (@ MEEE QT 2R (#)
Summarised financial information of FEBREQARZHBEN
material associates (Continued) BE ()

Glory International (Continued) HREEE (E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial etz @ﬂ‘% BERERERE B
information to the carrying amount of the interest in BmEERONB L R A ER
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial EE@TEE’\]‘%TEE :
statements:
2016
—E—RE
HK$’000
F#T
Net assets of Glory International FRER 2 EEFE 11,719
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEERERBEER 2 HEEHE
interest in Glory International g Ll 49%
5,742
Goodwill [EES 35,531
41,273
Impairment Loss RIEEE (18,421)

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest REBRERBIER 2wz
in Glory International REE 22,852

206 Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/
AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

(@)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Aggregate information of associates
that are not individually material

REVBRRME

%’Aﬂiiﬁ‘éﬁ‘i/ﬁ%ﬁ
EJH%%%/ Bl Z FIE (&

HE N/

(@) REERAlZ#ERE ®
BERIEEXREENGE ZE
ll‘lb\é*ﬂ'

2016 2015

—F—RE —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#&xT FHT
The Group’s share of loss and ~ AN&EE 2 B E1E &

total comprehensive income PHEWE B (564) (38)

Aggregate carrying amount of ~ ANEBRZEFHE QA2

the Group’s interests w2 REERRE

in these associates 2,878 5,022

All of the associates are accounted for using the
equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amount due to an associate

The amount due to an associate is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The
balance is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
approximate to their fair value.

REMEHRRA FAABE QT
i’]LMZE“ ARG ER o

(b) FEN—FEIEEE R R 2 IR

e —EH 2 QA 2 REEER
A ERBRBERKER %
BIABTEHERRE X FEE
o

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

13 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 13 REBENAIZHER W
LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM A JOINT —EEENRAZERE
VENTURE/AMOUNT DUE FROM A K—REEeE A ATNE
JOINT VENTURE
(@) Interests in joint ventures a) NELENRZH#ER

2016 2015
ZE—RE hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#&xT FAT

Cost of investments in KERERBIZRA  JELET
joint ventures, unlisted 1,147 1,147
Share of post-acquisition losses & 1f5 Ut BE 14 &5 18 (665) (441)
482 706

Details of each of the Group’s joint ventures at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

Principal place

REEPRAEEESERAZ

EA=PONNE

Proportion of registered

Name of entity Place of incorporation of business capital held by the Group  Principal activity
EREH S A I A TEEXIHH AERBRAZAMERLY TEXH
2016 2015
ZE-RE _—T-1f%
Sun Billion Property Limited ~ Macau Macau 40% 40% Investment of land
and property in
Macau
BREEBERAF B RF 40% 40% REMRRMNZ
THRME
Topworld Victory Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 50% 50% Inactive
THERAR BE Bk 50% 50% EEme%
All of these joint ventures are accounted for using FEZEaE R HUERER
the equity method in these consolidated financial eV BmER AR

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/
LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM A JOINT
VENTURE/AMOUNT DUE FROM A
JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

(@)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are
not individually material:

REVBRRME

13 REERRAIZEZE I
/A

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
The Group’s share of loss and ~ AN&EE 7 FE(FEIE K&
total comprehensive income EHE W =B (224) (218)
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBRZZEAE A
Group’s interests in these joint 2z 2 BRE(E4E5E
ventures 482 706

LLoan receivable from a joint venture

On 26th April 2013, DPP agreed to provide SBPL
an unsecured interest-free loan of HK$8,800,000
which is denominated in HK dollar and repayable
in 5 years. The loan of HK$8,364,000 (2015:
HK$8,140,000) is recognised as ‘Loan receivable
from a joint venture’ in the consolidated balance
sheet as at 30th June 2016 and is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

b) EWR—FaEARZERK
RZT—=FWA=+/"H &
BHERERBREERE —FU
B EREEARAFREEZE
K 7 % B B 748,800,000/ L ° &
X H18,364,0008 T (ZE— R4 :
8,140,000 L) R = F — R F -~
A=t+TENREEERBRTZ
(Rl —MAaERrZzER] Ak
R B B R OR8N

HE-

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

13 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/
LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM A JOINT —
VENTURE/AMOUNT DUE FROM A 4z
JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

a’k IE

(b) Loan receivable from a joint venture b) EBUW—FEEEARIZERK

(Continued) (%)
2016 2015
—F—RE —hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Loan receivable from ER—EE&E R rRIZEN
a joint venture

At the beginning of the year F1) 8,140 7,922
Accretion income for the period HiN Zz 2FEULA 224 218
At the end of the year FR 8,364 8,140
The loan receivable from a joint venture were neither RZZE—RAFRZF—XFRA

past due nor impaired as at 30th June 2015 and
2016. The management of the Group believes that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality on the joint venture.

Amount due from a joint venture

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The
balance is denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
approximate to their fair value.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

14 DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS 14 EfRI& BREARERE M

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

LTS

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FHET
Non-current portion JE BN HA &R 4
Rental deposit Medle 363 1,204
Deposit paid for potential acquisiton  EfE U E 2 2154 - 5,000
At 30th June WAB=+H 363 6,204
Current portion B A &8 5
Prepayments AR RIE 8,059 2,413
Interest receivable FE YR B 387 364
Advance payment to joint operation = XA & 2B
partners 12,149 36,683
Rental deposits and other deposits ~ F &7 & R EMFT & 8,254 4,080
Other receivables E fth e W FR0E 39,643 22182
At 30th June WAB=+H 68,492 65,722

The amount of the Group’s deposits paid expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense after more than one
year is HK$363,000 (2015: HK$6,204,000). All of the other
deposits paid, prepayments and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within
one year.

The other receivables mainly relate to a number of
independent debtors that have good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

AEEBHEHN —FEWEKEREF
S HBETE] & 8% 5 A363,0008 T (=
T — F4F 6,204,000 7T) ° Fr B E b
EfEI & BAREREMEWRKIES
BN —FRAKE X ERBAL

HpEWHRIATBEETERARER
BREFFALBZBYIEBABR R
BRELR EXNEFEERTESAE
B MAERTDRERAT2BEE &
BEEEREHETENZSAERELR
B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

15 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

15 ZERBEHEBELFEANKRZ
EMEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FHET

Listed securities — held-for-trading LITEE-FEEE
— Equity securities — HK —EREHF BB 247,444 315,109
Market value of listed securities FhEScmE 247,444 315,109

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within ‘operating activities’ as part of changes
in working capital in the consolidated statement of cash
flows (Note 44).

The fair value of the equity securities is based on their
closing prices as at 30th June 2016 in an active market.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 16 At HESREE

AN

ASSETS
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At the beginning of the year £ 88,415 54,965
Additions wNE 11,330 25,103
Change in value recognised in REMEERREAERZ
other comprehensive income BEZE (12,340) 8,347
Transferred to interests in associates 48 = R B & A 7] 2
(Note 12(a)(ii) (M zE12(2)(i) ) (1,603) =
At the end of the year FAR 85,802 88,415
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FHET
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHECREERTE:
include the following:
Unlisted equity investments, FEETARAEIRE - IR A E
at cost - 1,608
Unlisted investment funds, FLEMBRERES ERAFE
at fair value 79,467 86,812
Unlisted limited partnership, FLETBREREE
at fair value BAFE 6,335 =
85,802 88,415

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

As at 30th June 2016

Financial assets

17 ZENE D Z2E€MI A

REERR SRR T ANKREEN

_{

g

RIB—REXA=1H

CHEE
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

BREZRATENRZEMEE
Available-
for-sale
financial Contingent Held for Loans and
assets  consideration trading receivables Total
i E B R
LREE HARE #EEE B RIE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#x Ti#n Ti#n Ti#n Ti#n
Available-for-sale financial assets ARHESHER 85,802 - - - 85,802
Financial assets at fair value through BRERRATEAE REE
profit or loss - - 247,444 - 247,444
Accounts receivable MR - - - 224,739 224,739
Financial assets included in “deposits paid, FAEMET S BARER
prepayments and other receivables” HinRWE] 2 eREE - - - 52,179 52,179
Film related deposits B2 HEA - - - 5,542 5,542
Loans receivable B E R - - - 43,163 43,163
Loan to an associate RT-HBEARZER - - - 5,000 5,000
Loan receivable from a joint venture EY—-HAERRZER - - - 8,364 8,364
Contingent consideration receivable ERIARE - 10,930 - - 10,930
Bank balances and cash - trust account ROTEBEBE-EEERF - - - 116,667 116,667
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLSEY - - - 101,173 101,173
85,802 10,930 247,444 556,827 901,003
Financial Liabilities THAaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
VA 48 8K FY 2 5
RzemM&aRF wm
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET TERT
Accounts payable FEA BR 3R 254,722 254,722
Amount due to an associate FEAS — B R B 2 BB 1,941 1,941
Financial liabilities included in “other  FF A [ £ fth f& 1 538 &
payables and accrued charges” Bzl vemas 64,121 64,121
Borrowings &8 9,200 9,200
Bank overdrafts RITEX 4,020 4,020
Obligations under finance lease BhE M E R E 98 98
334,102 334,102

214

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 17 BENE P ZEMI A @

CATEGORY (Continued)

As at 30th June 2015

Financial assets

RZE—HFNA=TH

EMEE

Financial assets at fair value thrqughﬁp\rofit or loss
BRRREATEAR EREE

Available-
for-sale
financial Loans and
assets  Held for trading receivables Total
e BEFR
SREE BEEE fE YR am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TER TET FER
Available-for-sale tHESRHEE
financial assets 88,415 - - 88,415
Financial assts at fair value EREERRATBEARL
through profit or loss SHEE - 315,109 = 315,109
Accounts receivable FEWEE - = 14,183 14,183
Financial assets included in FATEMAET & BRFUE
“deposits paid, prepayments REMEYE] 2
and other receivables” SREE - = 22,546 22,546
Film related deposits E2i 1 HEA - - 5,085 5,985
Amount due from ajoint venture B —EA B ARFE - = 10 10
Loans receivable EWER - - 37,000 37,000
Loan receivable from ER—HEERARZER
a joint venture - - 8,140 8,140
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEZEY - - 102,834 102,834
88,415 315,109 190,698 594,222
Financial Liabilities EHEaRE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
LA S5 A A5
BRemasE B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
Accounts payable FERTER X 4,189 4,189
Financial liabilities included in “other  &F A [ £ i & {5 5B K2
payables and accrued charges” T HIZ2EemBE 52,869 52,869
Borrowings BE 9,200 9,200
Obligations under finance lease BbETH & AR 132 132
66,390 66,390

—ER-AFFR ETERSRERARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

18 INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS

The Group has entered into certain joint operation
arrangements to produce and distribute four television
series (2015: four) and thirteen films (2015: ten)
respectively. The Group has participating interests
ranging from 5% to 90% (2015: from 5% to 82%)
in these joint operations. As at 30th June 2016, the

18 EEXRHER

AEBBIVETEEEBLE U
Rl B 1E f2 8% 47 Y & ﬂﬁ@%% (==
—hHE - EOH) R =FF
F: ) ZIS%EAZ$E.
ENT5%E90%
82% )z 2 HEm - N T —

—Z—1

g%%%ﬁfﬂé&
T AF5%E

/\ﬂz/\ﬂ

aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities recognised =TH BRARASERLEEEEBHBL
in the consolidated financial statements relating to the DT EREAVBRERTER
Group’s interests in these joint operation arrangements PEERBEBENT
are as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET FHET
Assets BE
Film rights and films in progress BRRERBER 2B
— Television series rights and —BREEE RE R
television series in progress Biterh 2 BREEE - 814
— Film rights and films in progress —EBRERRERP Z2EY 52,780 14,440
Film related deposit BEXEE S 758 2,500
Accounts receivable and JFE MK BR R % L th JE W R IR
other receivables 9,774 3,687
63,312 21,441
Liabilities afs
Accounts payable and JE 1< BR R % HL Ath B < 5RIR
other payables 640 594
Deposits received BUWET & 20,380 10,343
21,020 10,937
2016 2015
—E—RE —RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FHET
Revenue LG 36,115 20,037
Expenses =433 (9,658) (19,013)
Profit after income tax B PT 1S B¢ 18 )4 A 26,457 1,024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRMEE
19 INVENTORIES 19 &
2016 2015
ZE—RE —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi# T FHET
Raw materials R 1,062 1,959
Finished goods 2UPK i 13,242 3,882
14,304 5,841

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense and included in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income is as follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#E T T T
Carrying amount of inventories sold 2 &&F &2 REE 36,608 4,773
Write down of inventories FEMOR 1,709 296
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & #UR B @ (FT5Ti)

(Note i) 317) (266)
38,000 4,803

Note i: MEEEi:

The amount was resulted from the utilisation of obsolete
inventories that were written down in prior years.

FHSBRXEPRCNBEFERBNRE

=
FH°

SE-REER B

TRRERIERAR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRM T
20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 20 FEYIRREX
2016 2015
—_EFE—RE —E—FHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Accounts receivable arising from HEEELRTRMELH
securities brokerage and EEZEWERN:
margin financing business:
— clearing house and cash clients - HEEFRRERP 188,157 =
— margin clients -HFEEP 16,250 =
204,407 -
Accounts receivable arising from  HihEHE 4 2 BRI
other businesses:
Accounts receivable — others FEUBR R —E b 20,474 14,325
Less: Provision for impairment of B B BR B 2 BB B
accounts receivable (142) (142)
20,332 14,183
Accounts receivable - net FEWER X —F5E 224,739 14,183
The carrying amounts of accounts receivable FEWBE R Z (A ERE N FEES -
approximates to their fair values.
The settlement terms of accounts receivable from BEKONITREREERES 2 BN
clearing house and cash clients, which arising from the BN BEPRAZEESR AT SH

securities brokerage and margin financing business, are BMA -
two days after trade date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from
clearing house and cash client which are past due but
not impaired as of the end of the reporting period is as
follow:

REVBRRME

20 FEYREBRFX ()

AREC D AT

BHERSHR BBBERBREZEK
HEMIRREEFPRRZEKER ST
T

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET

Current B[ Ef
Less than 1 month past due i A A {E A
More than 1 month past due 0 B A 11E A

132,375 =
23,713 S
32,069 =

188,157 S

In determining the recoverability of the accounts
receivable from clearing house and cash clients that are
aged current, the executive directors of the Company
believe that no provision for impairment is necessary
as the accounts receivable relate to a wide range of
customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

In determining the recoverability of the accounts
receivable, from margin clients, the management of
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of
the accounts receivable from the date when credit was
initially granted up to the reporting date. At 30th June
2016, margin loans from margin clients were current
and repayable on demand except for HK$2,695,000
(2015: Nil) where the margin loans were past due for
less than 1 month. No margin loan was past due for
more than 1 month. Margin loans that were neither past
due nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers
for whom there was no recent history of default. The
management believes that the amount is considered
recoverable given the collateral is sufficient to cover
the entire balance on individual basis. Margin loans
that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

No ageing analysis of margin loans is disclosed as in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the
nature of this business.

RETCAHZEREEMRREEP
R Z AT B R AR BHITEER
RBBAELRERE  RE S E WK
BRI AU BENOCEIEFER-

REERAFREP 2 BUKERREAIE
W REEEREZEERWERERE
EERLANERSTAMNERNEEE
FEHP R _FT-—R"FAA=1TH K
& B 52,695,000/ 7T (ZF— h F
®)EARIRERN REFRERP
ZHREFYBNPARREREER-
BEAREXAHBEEIEA L RE
MR ARRENFFRER RS A EIT
MENRENEFPAB-EEERS
EREfmEARERNELEREZH
mer ARERIL AT KE -2 mEE R
BMEZFREREE TERNASERE
RFEBERLEZBYEF AR RIEB
AR ENEELXUETARS:
A& R TN AR A AT 2 Bk - R E 2
$E1§$EH%%EE?ﬁﬁi%%ﬁ%fﬁm)ﬁﬁﬁé

HRARBEZEERS ENFRERZ
EBME - HERie DT I 8 H R IME
18 B TR 2 ARl AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable
arising from other businesses, presented based on the

invoice dates:

20

FE Y BR X (1)

NTREBEZEAHEIN ZEMEBESE

Z W BR R 2 Btk >

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

110 90 days 1£290H 10,963 13,800
91 days to 180 days 91H Z180H 7,026 211
Over 180 days 180H KA 2,343 172
20,332 14,183

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from other
businesses, which are past due but not impaired, are as

EBHERREZRMEBEE 2B

BRRZBRE DTN -

follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE ZT—AhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#xT FHET
Neither past due nor impaired A AR 380 HA R R R E 10,297 12,820

Past due but not impaired B ERRE
Less than 1 month past due 81 HA > P11 A 942 521
1 to 3 months past due B HI1 =3(E A 943 479
3 months to 1 year past due B EASME A B=1F 7,972 113
Over 1 year past due B HA R 381 178 250
10,035 1,363
20,332 14,183
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

In respect of accounts receivable from other businesses,
receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default. Receivables that were past
due but not impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.

Sales of videogram products are with credit terms of
7 days to 60 days. Sales from film exhibition, licensing
and sub-licensing of film rights are on open account
terms. Sales to retail customers are made in cash or via
major credit cards. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales of products on credit terms are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its
customers.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in Note 3.1(b).

e VB HRRNEE

20 FEUWBRFX (

FLOR B E b 2 BRI 5 - AR
BETRARRE 2 RUGRIEER 2 23T B
BENCBENEFPAR CEBERK
BZRERERETEARASEHEAR
RIFFBRLBZBYTFAR -RIEB
AR IIDRR AR 28K E - HE R
BHEMEFSENZSTEMMEL RER
fme

HERBRERZEEHATAE60H T
Z- B - BRORERETREZ
HWEYUREFERET - RMEEREFH
EYUReHFANEBRETEFRAFE
T AEBEESETBRBRERHEE S
EHmMAERIFERTCENTPE
b AEEHERFETEREEN G-

EAREBEEERRNE—
MIFE3.1(b) °

THBER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

Bt 75 R 2R MY

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Impairment of accounts receivable

Impairment losses in respect of accounts receivable are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
accounts receivable directly (see Note 2.12).

20 FEUWBRFX (

&Y B =X Z iR 1B

EREWRERZBEBEERRE
BREDEE BRIEA S EARE W E Z BN
MK REBERT E@RES

BHEE N R R M (R KR

2.12) o

Movements in the allowance for doubtful R EH &
debts
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
At the beginning and the end RENRER
of the year 142 142
No provision was recognised by the Group for the HE-_Z—X"FNA=Z=1THLEFE &K

impairment of its accounts receivable during the year
ended 30th June 2016 (2015: Nil). During the year
ended 30th June 2016, no provision (2015: Nil) was
written off from the allowance account.

As at 30th June 2016, except for the margin clients of
securities brokerage and margin financing business, the
Group does not hold any collateral as security (2015:
Nil). Margin clients are required to pledge securities
collateral to the Group in order to obtain credit facilities
for securities trading. The amount of credit facilities
granted to them is determined by the discounted value
of securities accepted by the Group. As at 30th June
2016, the total market value of securities pledged as
collateral in respect of the loans to margin clients were
HK$92,620,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRMEE
21 LOANS RECEIVABLE 21 EWERN
(@) Loans receivable from third party @ EUWE=ZFEFEXR
customers
2016 2015
ZE—RE —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH#T FET
Loans to third party customers BYE=ZFRFZEX 43,163 37,000
As at 30th June 2016 and 2015, RZE-—RERZZ—1F
the maturity profile of the loans NA=TH BEINHA
receivable, based on the maturity 232 RREREBIER
date is as follows: PUNNE
- Non-current —JEANE] 20,000 =
- Current —BNHR 23,163 37,000
43,163 37,000
The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is FRRERNEELSZSNOT
as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Neither past due nor impaired I 16 B o R (B
- Unsecured loans —EIRFER 43,163 37,000
43,163 37,000
The Group’s loans receivable from third party AEB REE=ZFEFPER(E
customers, which arise from the money lending REBHMEEMES) THAE
business in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong JCETE

Kong dollars.
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21 LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(b) Loan to an associate

The loan to an associate, HK Optical, is
unsecured, bear interest at 7% per annum and
repayable on 23rd March 2017. The loan was
granted to the associate through the normal
procedures of the money lending business of the
Group during the year ended 30th June 2016.

The loans receivable are neither impaired nor
overdue as at 30th June 2016 (2015: same).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each balance
sheet date is the carrying amount of the loans
receivable.

All the loans receivable are entered with contractual
maturity within 1 to 2 years. The Group seeks to
maintain tight control over its loans receivable in order
to minimise credit risk by reviewing the borrowers’ or
guarantors’ financial positions.

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging
from 7% to 12% per annum (2015: 8% to 15% per
annum).

Interest income of approximately HK$8,450,000 (2015:
HK$5,224,000) has been recognised in ‘revenue’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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e MBRRME

21 EWER @)

(b) BT —FEE QR &K
B -MBEATKSRELH
RBEIER  RF A E7% BB
AR-FE—tE=A-t+=AH
B RERANNEE =B AF
AL ERNEIES 33 -3
EXBHEREFETHEAA.

R-ZE-—RFRAA=TH EYKE
RAEKRBERBRH(—FT—HF:
R e

REBEEABRANSRANERERRAS
RN E R BRI {E -

PrBRBERAETEOBHAEN F122
FR-AKERNBBENERXARSE
RAB I AR - 4 45 3 B IS SR RO B,
RIEH BREEERBRRERE-

W E TN FT%E12%2 F M EK &
B(ZE—RF BF8REILR) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

22 CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 22 WS ARE

RECEIVABLE

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable
represented the profit guarantee in relation to the
adjustments to the consideration from the acquisition of AP
Group during the year ended 30th June 2016 as detailed
in Note (i) below. Contingent consideration receivable is

EURHAREBZAFERERBE-F
—ANERNAZTHELEFEABEEHEHE
ZREZABEBGENER (FER
TXMEE()) - BB AREBRBRE DR
BAFEAE BRAAREBERFEZ

measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period. g
The movement of the fair value of contingent consideration
receivable is as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
At fair value: BAFEE:
At beginning of the year REH - -
Arising from acquisition of W B B BB A RIFTEE A
subsidiaries (Note 45(c)) (FF3E45(c)) 6,850 -
Fair value change (Note 45(c)) N EEEF5E45()) 4,080 =
At end of the year RER 10,930 =
Note: B 5 -
(i)  Adjustment to the consideration (i) REZAZE

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered in
relation to the acquisition of AP Group, in the event that
the audited consolidated profit after tax of AP Group for
the period from 1st January 2016 to 31st December 2017
is less than HK$16,000,000, the vendors shall, and the
guarantors shall procure the vendors to, pay to the Group
the adjustment amount (the “Adjustment Amount”) in
accordance with the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,400,000 — (NP/2) x 5 x 51%

Where:

“A” means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HK$; and
“NP” means the net profit for the period from 1st January

2016 to 31st December 2017. Where the NP is a negative
figure, NP shall be deemed to be zero.

BERUBEEHEBRIT L ZEERH
FOHMEHEEE T AF—F—
ARE-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—H
IFEAR 2 BB R B AR DR
16,000,000/ 7T+ AIE 5 /B RE R A JE
REEEHBRE TR AR A AEEL S
AEemE([AEeE]):

A = 20,400,000/ 70— (NP/2) x 5 x 51%

o

[AJRABTAHEZRARSE Z8IE:
&

INPIEEE-Z—R"F-A-RHEE
—E—tHF+ZA=+—HILHHEZ
EAER - MEMNFEARE RN
FEEWRET-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

22

23

24

B SRR MY aE
CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 22 YW EARKRE @)
RECEIVABLE (Continued)
The fair value of the contingent consideration receivables RZZE—AREXNA=Z+RHZEWRSRA
as at 30th June 2016 are based on the valuation performed REZAFETIIR EGrant Sherman
by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent Appraisal Limited ( E275 & B I £E 38
professional qualified valuer not connected with the Group, B EEAERMHERM) EBITHMHERS
by using discounted cash flow approach and a fair value AMBREeREXELH UREBEZT
gain of approximately HK$4,080,000 was recognised in the —RNENA=THEFERGEEZAENK
consolidated statement of comprehensive income during 7 & MR A T B U 5 #94,080,000%
the year ended 30th June 2016. TRC
BANK BALANCES AND CASH - 23 RITHERERE—FARP
TRUST ACCOUNTS
The Group receives and hold monies deposited by AEEBEETEFFCLERITEMEE
clients and other institutions in the course of the BeXREEBKBRER KREFEERE
conduct of the regulated activities of its securities PREEMBEFRIFEB - ZFEPK
brokerage and margin financing business. These clients’ BEFEER—ExZEFEERITES A
monies are maintained in one or more trust bank AEECHAEN TEEP REAMEE
accounts. The Group has recognised the corresponding (M 5E31) 2 HREBR B - A KEBIR
accounts payable to respective clients and other BF I f28 ] 98 ol BN 1T 2 A R AR SR B %
institutions (Note 31). However, the Group currently LENFIA -
does not have an enforceable right to offset those
payables with the deposits placed.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 RERBREEEY
2016 2015
—_E—REF —E—hHHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Cash at bank RITIFEK 95,599 78,302
Cash held with custodians AEREARS 5,454 24,350
Cash in hand FHEES 120 182
Cash and cash equivalents in GEBEEABERN
the consolidated balance sheet ZRERREEEY 101,173 102,834
Less: Bank overdrafts (Note 28) B IRTTIE X (FEE28) (4,020) -
Cash and cash equivalents in FEREMERA
the consolidated statement of ZHRERREEFEYD
cash flows 97,153 102,834
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R RMEE
25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 BR 7
2016 2015
ZE-RE —ET-FHEF
Number of Number of

shares Nominal value shares Nominal value

BpEE ffE L] ffE

000 HK$'000 000 HK$'000

T TERT Tt TET

Authorised: EE: 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BROOBT 2 EBR

Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRO.0IETLZ EBK 177,774 1,778 298,380 2,984

Movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the years ended 30th June 2016 and 2015 are as

AKRRRBE_ZTE—RER

—hF

NA=+H ii&ﬁ’ﬂﬁ?&*ﬂﬂi$“§ﬂﬁu

follows: T
Number of
ordinary shares Nominal value
LERYA HiE
Note HK$'000
Bt TET
At 1st July 2014 R-ZZE-—NE+A—H 1,728,888,070 34,578
Issue of new shares in July 2014 RZZT—-WE+ R BITHRN (@) 343,200,000 6,864
Issue of new shares in December 2014 RZE—WE+Z A% (b)
i) 414,415,000 8,288
Capital reorganisation in March 2015 RZE—RFZRETRA (©
B4 (2,237,852,763) (47,244)
Issue of new shares in April 2015 RZZ-RENRABTHRN @) 49,730,000 498
At 30th June 2015 AZE—-REHA=1H 298,380,307 2,984
Issue of new shares in July 2015 RZE—REL ABTHEG ) 586,350,000 5,863
Issue of new shares in August 2015 RZZE-—RENRBITHENM ® 596,760,614 5,968
Capital reorganisation in March 2016 RZE-R"EF=ZRETKRAEHA @) (1,333,341,829) (13,333)
Issue of new shares in April 2016 RZZ—-AFENRABTHRNM () 29,625,000 296
At 30th June 2016 RZZE-REXA=TH 177,774,092 1,778

—EREER BF

B EBIERAR QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

25 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between
the Company and Lucky Securities Company Limited,
an independent third party, on 23rd June 2014, the
Company issued, on 9th July 2014, an aggregate of
343,200,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.1 per
placing share to not less than six placees who were
independent of, and not connected to the Group. The
gross proceeds from the said placement amounted to
approximately HK$34,320,000 and the related issue
expense was approximately HK$1,204,000.

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between
the Company and Lucky Securities Company Limited,
an independent third party, on 9th December 2014, the
Company issued, on 18th December 2014, an aggregate
of 414,415,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.1 per
placing share to not less than six placees who were
independent of, and not connected to the Group. The
gross proceeds from the said placement amounted to
approximately HK$41,441,000 and the related issue
expense was approximately HK$1,578,000.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special
general meeting held on 16th March 2015, the capital
reorganisation (the “2015 Capital Reorganisation”)
became effective on 17th March 2015. The 2015 Capital
Reorganisation is involved:

(i) the consolidation of every 10 issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.02 each in the share capital
of the Company into 1 consolidated share (the
“Consolidated Share(s)”) of a par value of HK$0.2
(the “2015 Share Consolidation”);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

(if) the reduction of issued share capital of the
Company of HK$47,244,000 whereby the par
value of each Consolidated Share was reduced
from HK$0.20 to HK$0.01 by cancelling HK$0.19
of the paid-up capital on each Consolidated Share
and any fraction of a Consolidated Share in the
issued share capital of the Company arising from
the 2015 Share Consolidation was eliminated
in order to round down the total number of
Consolidated Shares to a whole number;

(i) the capital reduction of HK$47,244,000 was credited
to the reorganisation reserve of the Company;

(iv)  the sub-division of each of the authorised but
unissued Consolidated Shares of HK$0.20 each into
20 shares of HK$0.01 each.

Upon the 2015 Capital Reorganisation became effective on
17th March 2015, the issued share capital of the Company
became HK$2,486,503 divided into 248,650,307 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each. Further details of the 2015 Capital
Reorganisation are set out in the Company’s circular dated
18th February 2015.

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between the
Company and Fordjoy Securities and Futures Limited, an
independent third party, on 10th April 2015, the Company
issued, on 22nd April 2015, an aggregate of 49,730,000
new shares at a price of HK$0.4055 per placing share to
not less than six placees who were independent of, and not
connected to the Group. The gross proceeds from the said
placement amounted to approximately HK$20,166,000 and
the related issue expense was approximately HK$707,000.

REVBRRME
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B (&)

iy BRATHEREHBRONESR
PEAR019E T BB A IR
#) T & R 0.207% JT 4l 38 £0.01
HEIT EARQ R B BT R HR
47,244,000/ 7T WEH A A &)
BERTHRAPA T —AFR
AP ATREE £ TR A HF
BOHBRESFBROHAET
HAEEH

(i) BRAHIR 447,244,000 TTET A
ARRMBHEREE:

(v BB —REREEC.0BITAE
TEERFEITHEHBROFAS
20R% T AL EHO0.017 TTHI AR 1D

R-TE—AFRATANR_-_T—RHF
“AtEtREME ARRBETR
N 52,486,503 I © 7 £248,650,307
i SR EEC.O1B T E Bk - A —
T-RERABSHENE —FHBHER
ARRBHA-ZE—RF_A+/\H
K ©

BRBEARRHEBHELSLPEBRA
AI(—ZBUYE=ZH)R_T—AFN
ATBHIYMEEHZ A2aR =
T-RAENA-+-RIREREER
70,4055 TR B M T LR AEE
MR AREE B A E S R E A
2 A 31T & $£49,730,0000% #r A% 15 ©
it Fig & BT 45 5078 48 85 4920,166,000/%8
7 M RE TR L 49707,000% 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

25 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

)

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between
the Company, China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited and
Jun Yang Securities Company Limited, independent third
parties, on 26th May 2015, the Company issued, on 28th
July 2015, an aggregate of 586,350,000 new shares at a
price of HK$0.3411 per placing share to not less than six
placees who were independent of, and not connected to
the Group. The gross proceeds from the said placement
amounted to approximately HK$200,004,000 and the
related issue expense was approximately HK$7,216,000.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 26th
May 2015, the circular of the Company dated 24th June
2015 and the prospectus of the Company dated 24th July
2015, the Company proposed rights issue on the basis of
two rights shares for every one existing share at HK$0.202
per rights share (the “Rights Issue”). A total of 596,760,614
shares were issued under the Rights Issue on 13th
August 2015. The gross proceeds from the Rights Issue
are approximately HK$120,546,000. The net proceeds
after deducting the underwriting commission and other
related expenses of approximately HK$4,195,000 were
approximately HK$116,351,000.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general
meeting held on 17th March 2016, the capital reorganisation
(the “2016 Capital Reorganisation”) became effective on
18th March 2016. The 2016 Capital Reorganisation is
involved:

(i) the consolidation of every 10 issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital
of the Company into 1 consolidated share (the
“Consolidated Share(s)”) of a par value of HK$0.1 (the
“2016 Share Consolidation”);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

@)

(Continued)

(ii) the reduction of issued share capital of the Company
of HK$13,333,000 whereby the par value of each
Consolidated Share was reduced from HK$0.10
to HK$0.01 by cancelling HK$0.09 of the paid-up
capital on each Consolidated Share and any fraction
of a Consolidated Share in the issued share capital
of the Company arising from the 2016 Share
Consolidation was eliminated in order to round down
the total number of Consolidated Shares to a whole
number;

(i) the capital reduction of HK$13,333,000 was credited
to the reorganisation reserve of the Company;

(iv)  the sub-division of each of the authorised but
unissued Consolidated Shares of HK$0.10 each into
10 shares of HK$0.01 each.

Upon the 2016 Capital Reorganisation became effective on
18th March 2016, the issued share capital of the Company
became HK$1,481,491 divided into 148,149,092 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each. Further details of the 2016 Capital
Reorganisation are set out in the Company’s circular dated
23rd February 2016.

Pursuant to the placing agreement entered into between
the Company, SBI China Capital Financial Services Limited,
independent third parties, on 23th May 2016, the Company
issued, on 13th April 2016, an aggregate of 29,625,000
new shares at a price of HK$0.779 per placing share to not
less than six placees who were independent of, and not
connected to the Group. The gross proceeds from the said
placement amounted to approximately HK$23,078,000 and
the related issue expense was approximately HK$810,000.
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26 SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the share option
schemes include the Company’s directors, including
non-executive directors, other employees of the Group
or any invested entity, suppliers of goods or services to
the Group or any invested entity, customers of the Group
or any invested entity, shareholders of the Group or any
invested entity, holders of securities of the Group or any
invested entity and persons or entities provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group
or any invested entity. A share option scheme became
effective on 26th November 2003 and expired on 26th
November 2013 (the “Old Scheme”). According to the
provision of the Old Scheme, share options granted during
the term of the Old Scheme and remain unexercised
immediately prior to the end thereof shall continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant
notwithstanding the expiry of the Old Scheme. A new share
option scheme was adopted and became effective on 2nd
December 2013 (the “New Scheme”). Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the New Scheme will remain in
force for 10 years from the effective date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Schemes is an amount equivalent
to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
dates of approval of the Share Option Schemes unless
approval for refreshing the 10% limit from the Company’s
shareholders has been obtained. The maximum number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant in the
Share Option Schemes (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Under the Share Option Schemes, share options granted
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
which would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue and with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 is subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general mesting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share
Option Schemes may be accepted within 28 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determined by the directors, save
that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the
dates of adoption of the Share Option Schemes subject
to the provisions for early termination set out in the Share
Option Schemes. Unless otherwise determined by the
directors at their sole discretion, there is no requirement of
a minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the
Share Option Schemes is determined by the directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share
options; (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company'’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company on the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

26 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 26

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their weighted average exercise prices for the years
ended 30th June 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

R (@)

RBEE-_Z-A"FR_ZFT-—RFXA
STHEFE AARTEBREZRE R
HEFHTEE 2 EB T

0Old Scheme New Scheme
Eital Hiatal
Weighted Weighted
average exercise average exercise
price price
HK$ No. of options HK$ No. of options
MEFHTER MEFHTER
(7L EREHE (&) EREHE
At 1st July 2014 RZE-MEtA-H 0.067 17,117,703 - -
Granted during the year RERRE - = 0.174 171,604,000
Adjustment arising from: BT ERAE:
- 2015 Share Consolidation -ZZ-RERha (15,405,933) = (154,443 600)
Lapsed during the year RERKH 0670 (1,711,770) 1.738 (2,072,000)
Outstanding and exercisable at RZF-RE~A=+HR
30th June 2015 and 1st July 2015  —FE—-FE+tF—H
AT R FITE - - 1.738 15,088,400
Adjustment arising from: RATEL AR
—Rights Issue — i - 9,260,382
Granted during the year RERFH = = 0.106 118,613,880
Lapsed during the year RERKH - - 1.077 (3,343,673)
Adjustment arising from: RATELRR:
- 2016 Share Consolidation -ZE-"ERha s - (125,567,090)
Outstanding and exercisable at RZF-~E~A=+H
30th June 2016 ERTERAFTE - - 2518 13,951,899

No share option was exercised during the years ended
30th June 2015 and 2016.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the
outstanding share options is 1.37 years (2015: 1.06 years).

All share options are immediately vested from the date of
grant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B R R M A
26 SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 26 EERTE (@)
Share options outstanding as at 30th June 2016 and 2015 RZE-—RFEFRZZE—HFA=TH
have the following expiry dates and exercise prices: B MARITE IS AR B JEm B B R AT (B
LU
As at 30th June 2016 R-FE—REXA=+H

Adjusted Outstanding
exercise price options as at

per share 30th June
HK$ 2016
R-B—A%E

REEESR AA=+HM
TEE SRITEBRE

(A7)
Exercisable period TERR
21st July 2014 to 20th July 2016 —ZT-mMELtA-+—H=Z
(Note ) —E-RFtH=Z+H
(HI&ED) 10.773 2,100,511
30th September 2015 to —E-RAFNA=ZtHZE
29th September 2017 (Note ii) —E—tFNA=Z+NA
(BT &Eii ) 1.690 2,072,088
4th March 2016 to 3rd March 2018 —Z— X XE=AMBEZE
(Note ii) —E-N\F=H=H
(B &Eii ) 0.920 9,779,300
13,951,899
As at 30th June 2015 RZFE—RFSNA=TH
Adjusted Outstanding
exercise price options as at
per share 30th June
HK$ 2015
RIE—AE
BAESE ANA=+AW
ITIEE MRITEEBRE
(A7)
Exercisable period TEERIR
21st July 2014 to 20th July 2016 —EZ-mMELA-+—RHE
(Note iii) —E-RFtAZ+H
( B & iii ) 1.738 15,088,400

15,088,400
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

26 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Notes:

@

(i)

The exercise price per share as at 30th June 2016 has
been adjusted with the effects of 2015 Share Consolidation
on 17th March 2015 and 2016 Share Consolidation on 18th
March 2016 and Rights Issue on 13th August 2015. Further
details are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The exercise price per share as at 30th June 2016 has been
adjusted with the effects of 2016 Share Consolidation on
18 March 2016. Further details are set out in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The exercise price per share as at 30th June 2015 has
been adjusted with the effect of 2015 Share Consolidation
on 17th March 2015. Further details are set out in Note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

(i)

Share options granted on 21st July 2014

The fair values of the equity-settled share options
granted under the New Scheme on 21st July
2014 were estimated by Roma Appraisals Limited,
an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers, using the binomial option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The fair value of
the equity-settled share options granted on 21st
July 2014 in the amount of HK$9,398,000 was
recognised as share option expense during the year
ended 30th June 2015. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

Share price on date of grant* HK$0.1520
Exercise price* HK$0.1738
Risk-free interest rate 0.386%
Expected life of the share options 2 years
Expected volatility 84.867%
Dividend yield N/A
Fair value per share option

- granted to directors HK$0.0542

— granted to employees HK$0.0556

— granted to consultants HK$0.0556

Before adjustment of 2015 Share Consolidation,
2016 Share Consolidation and Rights Issue
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

@)

(ii)

Share options granted on 21st July 2014
(Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based
on publicly available information. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

Share options granted to other participants are
measured at fair values of options granted as
these other participants are providing services that
are similar to those rendered by employees.

Share options granted on 30th
September 2015

The fair values of the equity-settled share options
granted under the New Scheme granted on
30th September 2015 were estimated by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent
firm of professionally qualified valuers, using the
binomial option pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. The fair value of the equity-settled
share options granted on 30th September 2015 in
the amount of HK$1,327,000 was recognised as
share option expense during the year ended 30th
June 2016. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

Share price on the date of grant” HK$0.1610
Exercise price* HK$0.1690
Risk-free interest rate 0.953%
Expected life of the share options 2 years
Expected volatility 78.99%
Dividend yield N/A
Fair value per share option

- granted to employees HK$0.0640

Before adjustment of 2016 Share Consolidation

e VB HRRNEE

26 HERZHE (@)
BERARHE 2 A FE N MR

(&)
@)

(ii)

—E—-MEELRAZ+—
EH&Hﬂ@h@ %)

ERIR IR AE LR R R EE (R
15 B8 R 2 0 T 1 W BR A HAGH
B) URBEERAULRAESZE
4T T8 5 2 A7) 2R 2RO 1R = B 1F
ﬁﬂﬁoiﬁﬁﬁﬁmzm@T%
EXENFEMAE-

ETHEMSBEENEREDIZE
FHERENQATFESE REAAR
E%%ﬁﬁﬁ/,\%ﬁﬁhf Pk 7% B2 2
BFTiRtE RS

R—FE—HAFAA=+H
?f-'ﬂzﬁ!%ﬂﬂg

R-ZZE—AFNLA=Z+EREH
ERECRABEREREZD
FEDABLEEEEMITPRE
FEAERABLEBEH T ERE
2 AEFR R AG 15 E A —E L HR A
EEBRAEITHT - RZE—AF
NAZ+ABRHZBRAGEERBR
# 2z N F{E1,327,00058 7T & R E
E-T—RNFRNAZ+HILEFE
R ABRERSE - TR RZE
AFE R B AE:

RIFEBBZIRES 016108 7T

mifﬁ* 0.16907 7T
[ e 1) = 0.953%

%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ 24

TEERR IR 78.99%

f% B & TE A

tf‘ﬁﬁﬂxﬁéz/w?ﬁ

—ETEER 0.06407 7T

* ARZE—RNFERHDEMIED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

26 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Share options granted on 30th
September 2015 (Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based
on publicly available information. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Share options granted on 4th March 2016

The fair values of the equity-settled share options
granted under the New Scheme granted on 4th
March 2016 were estimated by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers, using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The fair value of the equity-settled share
options granted on 4th March 2016 in the amount
of HK$2,249,000 was recognised as share option
expense during the year ended 30th June 2016. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Share price on the date of grant* HK$0.0770
Exercise price* HK$0.0920
Risk-free interest rate 1.104%
Expected life of the share options 2 years
Expected volatility 68.07%
Dividend yield N/A
Fair value per share option

- granted to directors HK$0.0230

- granted to employees HK$0.0230
* Before adjustment of 2016 Share Consolidation

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

26 HERZHE (@)
BERARHE 2 A FE N MR

(&)

(ii)

(iii)

R_E—RFEAA=+H
RHZHERE (&

BEHRIE AR LR ERERE (R
15 R AR 2 D0 7 15 R R AR HR A
B) UYRBERARFESZE
1 78 8 2 A 7] R 2R 1R & 3 1
HAE - TEBERRZEH R
ERXENFEAER-

R-F—A"F=ZANBE
H Z BBz

RZZE—X"E=AWMBREFT
SIRb e RAGEEERE AT
BIEBYEEGBERMITHET
HERATLEERLBRE
Rk R iz - R 1B AT
BENETHT - RZT—REF=
AMBEL B AEEBRE
A F1E2,249,0008 TEREZE =
E-RNENAZTHLEFERR
RIBEREREZ - TR TZEEFE
Rz@A\E:

RIFE A ZIRES 0.0770% T
I E” 0.09207 7T
R = 1.104%
T8 HA B A i HARR 2%
TEHR R iR 68.07%
& 8% i@ A
BHhEREZATE

—BTEF 0.02307 7T

—®TEE 0.0230% 7T

- AR ZTB-REROAHEL

B



26

27

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 26 f\lﬁﬂﬁ*g (#&)
Fair value of share options and assumptions EiRE s A FENERBR
(Continued) (%)
(i) Share options granted on 4th March 2016 (i) #* % ~NE=ZAMAE
(Continued) HZ': Z R (&)
Expected volatility was determined by using the TEEE R ERAFBER XA E
annualised standard deviation of historical share price R AFTNBEREAEHNF
daily movements of selected comparable companies EIEEEE T TEEERE 2
in same industry. Changes in the subjective input FREELERNTEMGEE -
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.
SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER 27 BEpimfE - ,,11111: HRIxE
RESERVES AND RETAINED BH, (RstEE)
EARNINGS/(ACCUMULATED
LOSSES)
(@) Group (@) A&
Other reserves
Ehb
Avalable-for-
Reserves sale Share-based Unlisted
Share arisingon Reorgaisaion investment  Translation ~ compensation wanants Retained
Premium  consolidation eserve Teserve Teserve Teserve reserve Sub-total earings Total
(Notei) (Notei) (Note Vi) (Note i (Noteiv) (Note )
BAER BERH B kR
BUER  FMERE  EHEE &ﬁﬁﬁ Eifk  SMRE  RE2RE it REEN 4%
(M) (Wati) (W) (i) (i) (W&v)

HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK§ 000
TR TR T T T Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin

At st July 2014 RIF-MELA- 136,842 821 o (39) o 4 81,961 83492 449 265,31
Issue of ew ordnary Shares EQE %‘ﬂﬂ iﬁﬁx

from placing 80217 S o o o o o = S 80217
Transaclon cogs etibutable toisste  REERTHEBRERL

of new ordinary shres fom placing R 588 (3489 - - - - - - - - (3489
Captal reorganisation A& - - 47,244 - - - - 724 - 47,244
Issug of share options - - - 939 - 9,39 - 939
Change in fai value of

aralable-forsale financil assets

Note 16) ‘ s S 87 S S 5 8317 = 8307
Cunency translation differences L3 - - - (18) - - 18 - 18
Proft for the year 2 S S o o o S o 161,956 161956
At 30th Jure 2016 and R-E-REAAZ

1t July 2015 2-1%¢A-H 23630 81 244 8312 (18 10,143 81,961 148463 206943 569,036
Issue of ew ordnary Shares RRERAHLRR

from placing 216,923 - - - - - - - - 216,923
Tiansecton costs etbuteble o issve  ERERTHERRRLL

of new ordnay shares fom placng 554 (8026) - - - - - - - - (8026)
Rights issue of shares BREARG 114578 - - - - - - - - 1i4pT
Tensacion costs atibuteble o ssve ERRETEBRERZ

of ocinay shaesfom ighisisste X BAA (4199 - - - - - - - g (4199
Capital reorgenisation RAES - - 13383 - - - - 18333 - 13,333
Issue of share options TEE = = - - 3576 - 3576 - 3576
Lapsg of share optons n 3,048) 3,048 3048 -
Change n air value of £

avalle-for-sale financial assets

Motz 16) - R - - ) - (o3
Lapse of unlisted warrants (81.961) (81.961) 81,91 5
Curency translaton diference - - - 722) - - 12) - 12
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (140,790) (140,790)
At 30th June 2016 532,910 821 60577 4028 740) 10671 o 67,301 161,162 751373
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER 27 EninE HuFEERERS
RESERVES AND RETAINED B (BEEBHE) @
EARNINGS/(ACCUMULATED
LOSSES) (Continued)

(b) Company (o) ZNF]
Other reserves
Lt
Share-based Unlisted
Share  Contributed Reorganisation  compensation warrants
Premium Surplus reserve reserve reserve Accumulated
(Note i) (Note vi) (Note i (Note iv) (b;gtf v) Sub-total losses Total
RhHER BARR EQRE ROSMEE 2RERRE
(W) (Mztvi) (W) (W) (Hgv) It 2HER

g
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000
TR TR TEL TiEn TER TEL TEL T

At 1st July 2014 RIZ-RELA— 136,842 51,852 - 745 81,961 134,558 (81,244) 190,156
Issue of new ordinary shares @E%%‘ﬂ %ﬁ%i@ﬁx
from placing 80,277 = - - - - - 80,277

Transaction costs attributable toissue  REEES1THLRREE L

of new ordinary shares from placing X B (3.489) - - - - - (3.489)
Capitl reorganisation RAz4 - - 47244 - - 47244 - 47044
Issue of share options BRRE - - 9,308 - 9,398 = 9,398
Loss for the year FREE - - - - S S (14,813) (14,813
At30th June 2015 and RZT— E/\ﬂ +B&

15t July 2015 “E-I1f 213630 51,852 4724 10143 8191 191,200 (96,057) 308773
Issue of new ordinary shares REE% ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ

from placing 216,923 - - - - - - 216923
Transaction costs attributable toissue  REEES1THLRREE L

of new ordinary shares from placing X B (8,026) - - - - - - (8,026)
Rights issue of shares HRETRA 14578 - - - - - = 14578
Transaction costs afiibutable toissue  BERETEAREEZ

of ordinary shares fromrights issue X LA (4,195) - - - - - - (4,195)
Capital reorganisation hres - - 13,333 - 13333 - 13,333
Issue of share options BRRE - - 3,576 - 3576 - 3576
Lapse of share options BRELH - - - (3,048) - (3,048) 3,048 s
Lapse of unisted warants FrmRhiERsn = = > = (61961) (61961) 81,961 -
Loss for the year FRERE - - - - - - (16,560) (16,560)
B30t June 2016 R E-1E

*AZtR 532,910 51,852 60577 10671 = 123,100 (27,608 628402
(c) Nature and purposes of the reserves ) RE2HEERA®

i)  Share premium i) BiEE
The application of the share premium B RERCERDXBER
account is governed by section 40 of E-NAN—FRBNEF40E
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The & -ARalzBkmDwE
share premium account of the Company is BRAT A R AT B 5 IR F
distributable to the owners of the Company NN E RS INE
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

i) Reorganisation reserve i) EiHFE
The reorganisation reserve of the Group REHBEGHHEECRE—-
represents the reduction in share capital T-—HAFRAEEAR-FT
of the Company pursuant to 2015 — NEAE A E B YA RN A
Capital Reorganisation and 2016 Capital 2R o

Reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER
RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS/(ACCUMULATED
LOSSES) (Continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of the reserves
(Continued)

i)

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 2.7.

Share-based compensation
reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
represents the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to directors of the Company,
employees of the Group and all other eligible
participants recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for
equity-settled share-based payments set out
in notes 2.25(ii) and 2.29.

Unlisted warrant reserve

Warrant reserve represents the net proceeds
received from the issue of warrants of the
Company. The reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium account
upon exercise of the warrants.

On 16th September 2013, the Company
issued 342,000,000 non-listed warrants at
an issue price of HK$0.0025 per warrant by
private placement. Each warrant entitles the
holder to subscribe for one ordinary share at
a subscription price of HK$0.25 per warrant
share. The warrants were expired on 15th
September 2015 and the unlisted warrant
reserve was credited to retained earnings.

27 Btn

i)

SeL
S

I

REVBRRME

B -HEtREERFRS
B, (RzEsE) @

) RBEZME &KAR @

BEE 5o % 44

EXHEEEMERERI
EBMBRREEZELE
B W B IRIBM 2.7
SRR -

A 157 5 B 4

A% 10 =R BN 2 % 38 1R 3R BT 5T
2.25(ii) 52 2.2979 Tt DA P& #E 45
B D BERE 2 FRATRA

FHBRERZETARD
AESE AEBEREERME
HEeaBEBALZRITERE
BEBERIGAEHE 2 AF
B

FEEHRREERE

REEERBREETARR
R RE AT UCER 2 P S 3R0R
FEMNITERBERER X
GAER E NS §npi

R-ZE—Z=ZFALA+8"
ARNBFEBILARSIZET
g 510 R I HE F50.0025% 7T
%% 17342,000,00010 3E £ ™
RBREZF -GHRREFE
FEHEAE N AGRBAE
FRD025F T2 RIBER
B—REBER - RRESZE
RZZE—RAFNA+HHERE
WOELETRREBREED
SFARBEF -

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

27 SHARE PREMIUM, OTHER
RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS/(ACCUMULATED
LOSSES) (Continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of the reserves
(Continued)

vi)

vii)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued shares of Universe
Films (Holdings) Limited and the value of net
assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired
on 28th June 1999. Under the Companies
Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus shall not be distributed
to the shareholders if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s
assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

At Group level, the contributed surplus is
reclassified into its components of reserves of
the underlying subsidiaries.

Available-for-sale investment
reserve

The available-for-sale investment reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets held
at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A EIRERME
28 BORROWINGS 28 fa&
The analysis of the carrying amount of borrowings is as BEMNRBAESNET :
follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET FHET
Current liabilities ik R=R
Coupon note due for repayment R—FAIHEEZFERR
within 1 year 9,200 -
Bank overdrafts that contain a BEREREEBGRDY
repayment on demand clause HRITER (H5E24)
(Note 24) 4,020 -
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Coupon note due for repayment R—FREMFANINEHEE
after 1 year but within 2 years At RERE = 9,200
Total st 13,220 9,200
The coupon note bear fixed interest rate at 6.5% per FFEEERESRMEEFNEFGFER
annum and is not secured. il

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment
of covenants. If the Group were in breach of the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
repayable on demand. In addition, all of the Group’s
banking facility letters contain clauses which give
the lender the rights at its sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of
whether the Group has complied with the covenants
and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

PR IR1TRVE AR T R R 1R T7 I A
B-WARBERZR CIRROBME
# AR AR BREE - AN NEE R
FIBRITHREKSS AR TETRAR
LR BREER 2RIANERNGER T
WAREZE B TREREITIREFER
BEff-

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR

243



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

28 BORROWINGS (Continued) 28 BE (@)

244

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants and does not consider it probable
that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
repayment so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in Note 3.1(c).
As at 30th June 2016, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached (2015: Nil).

All of the bank overdrafts, including amounts repayable
on demand, are carried at amortised cost.

As at 30th June 2016, the bank overdrafts of the
Group are secured by the trading securities held by the
former shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company and
corporate guarantee of the Company.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The fair values of
the borrowings approximate their carrying amounts as
at 30th June 2016 (2015: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE
LEASE

REVBRRME

20 EhEFAEKIE

Total minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payment
RIEHEHEE REHEENRE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —T-RE —E-RE —T-REF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTiERT FHT FTERT FHT
Amounts payable: e e
Within one year —FR 35 35 35 35
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ —F & EMFR 35 35 35 35
After 2 years but within 5 years BT EERFR 28 62 28 62
98 132
Less: Finance charge BB ER - =
Present value of finance lease ~ EfTRE B EHIIR(E
payable 98 132
Less: Portion classified B SMERBI B ER D
as current liabilities (35) (35)
Non-current portion FREEH 63 97

The finance lease obligations are interest free and secured
by photocopiers of the Group with a carrying amount of
HK$97,000 as at 30th June 2016 (2015: HK$132,000). No
arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental
payment for the year ended 30th June 2016.

BMEREREAEE BEHAEENC
T —XF XA =+ HER®EEA97,0007%5
T (T —FRHF:132,000% ) B 52 £
BERB REBEE_T—RFA=T
HIESE BERIAEENKIT LT
Rl sk e

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

30 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 0 IEEHREEEREE
LIABILITIES
(@) The movements in deferred tax (@ NAFEN ELKIEA
liabilities and assets during the year BEREEZEEHNT
are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities BEEREARE
Temporary
difference relating
to unrealised fair
value gains of
financial assets at ~ Amortisation of
Accelerated tax  fair value through  other intangible
depreciation profit or loss assets Total
BEREE
BATENRZ
SREEZ
FEROTEAE HbREEEZ
MEREHE HEIERUEER B am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiEx TiEx TiEx
At 1st July 2014 RZZ-mE+A—H 121 4,621 = 4742
Charged to profit or loss PEERINR 236 24,835 = 25,071
At 30th June 2015 and RZE-RE A=1A
1st July 2015 kZE-n%+R-H 357 29,456 - 29,813
(Crediit)/charged to profit or loss  WIBZEH (5tA) /1 9 (29,456) 1,881 (27,584)
At 30th June 2016 RZE-RERA=1H 348 - 1,881 2,229
Deferred tax assets BEEHREEE
Tax losses Total
BIEEE B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At 1st July 2014 RZFE—WOF+H—H (368) (368)
Credited to profit or loss MBI AT A (12) (12)
At 30th June 2015 and 1st July 2015 R-ZE—HF/A=+H
F_ZT—RHE+LHA—H (380) (380)
Charged to profit or loss PRIz A IR 15 15
At 30th June 2016 RZE—RFA="+H (365) (365)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets in respect of the unused tax

losses carried forward are to be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the unused tax losses can
be utilised.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of tax losses of HK$179,704,000
(2015: HK$148,081,000) as at 30th June 2016
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in the above tax losses of approximately
HK$12,775,000 (2015: HK$1,785,000) which can
only be carried forward for a maximum period of
five years. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
from 1st January 2008 onwards.

At 30th June 2016, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to HK$108,000 (2015: Nil). Deferred tax liabilities of
HK$11,000 (2015: Nil) have not been recognised
in respect of the tax that would be payable on
distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and
it has been determined that it is probable that these
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

e VB HRRNEE

EEBREEEREE @
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RARRKRENZ PEEMSE KNE
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2 TR TE E548179,704,0007%8 7T (=
T — A 148,081,000/ 7T ) fE 7R
EEBBEE B EBEES
#912,775,0008 L (ZE— A F:
1,785,000 L) B W E & %

R 2 HIR - EL AL ATIR AL SR
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REFBECEMSHE B2

NFE—A—HE P EHRBRR
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RZZE—RNFANA=1+H KB
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KABABERRD R ERE &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

31 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

31 FE{TERFX

2016 2015
—E—RFE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Accounts payable arising from BERLRTRMEER
securities brokerage and EEZEMERN:
margin financing business:
— cash clients —HeEP 231,264 -
— margin clients —HFEREP 19,056 =
250,320 -
Accounts payable arising from HthEBEEZEMTRX
other businesses 4,402 4,189
254,722 4,189

The settlement terms of accounts payable to cash
client, except for margin loans, arising from the
securities brokerage and margin financing business are
two days after trade date.

Accounts payable to cash clients and margin clients
arising from securities brokerage and margin financing
business bear variable interest at commercial rates, and
are repayable on demand subsequent to settlement
dates.

No ageing analysis is disclosed in respect of accounts
payable to cash clients and margin clients arising from
securities brokerage and margin financing business
as in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of
the nature of business.
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32

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (Continued)

Included in accounts payable, amounts of
HK$100,147,000 as at 30th June 2016 (2015 : Nil)
were payable to clients in respect of the trust and
segregated bank balances received and held for
clients in the course of the conducting the regulated
activities. However, the Group currently does not have
an enforceable right to offset these payables with the
deposits placed.

As at 30th June 2016 and 2015, the ageing analysis
of the accounts payable arising from other businesses
based on invoice date is as follows:

31

REVBRRME

J& 1 BR 7K «

RIEBTZHREERBREP AP IE
MEBEZEELRBYEITESTE R
—E-RERNAZTHZEMNBRRERE
AME P X 2 5I8100,147,0005% 7T
(ZZE—RFE) - R AKERF
WELERZ T2 EEZSENTE
2 AT SR HI BRI THE o

TE-RNFERZFTE—RHEFXNA=T
B ®%ER %zﬂﬁ%%%?iZﬁ
NERZERESITOT

e

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAT

1 to 90 days 1£290H 1,416 1,761
91 days to 180 days 91H £180H 130 97
Over 180 days 180H KA + 2,856 2,331
4,402 4,189

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year or are
repayable on demand.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED
CHARGES

FrBRMNEFEHRHEN —FREMNK
ERBWASARERER-

H fth & 1 SR R B 5t X

2016 2015

ZE—RE —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Amounts due to joint operators JENAE R R BHERT 43,942 18,967
Accruals for employee benefits BEFZMNEE }Eﬁ 1,466 1,553
Other accruals and other payables HEfbpEst & A R E B IE 18,713 32,349
64,121 52,869

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

33 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting) the following:

33 BBiE (&E) EF
BBAT (B5HB) R FITENE, (SA)

THBEEREE:

to the operating lease rentals based on pre-determined
percentages to realised sales less minimum lease payment
of the respective leases.
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Continuing operations: HEREED:
2016 2015
—E—RF —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FHET
(a) Staff costs: (@ BIAA:
Salaries, allowances, and other e B R EMEF
benefits (including directors' (BRESHS
emoluments (Note 35)) (FF7E35) )
36,266 17,981
Contributions to defined TERB L FURRET Bl
contribution retirement plans 1,249 491
Equity-settled share-based J«/(Hx% HEBRDAEMR 2
payment expenses E fa'ﬂ = 3,576 9,398
41,001 27,870
(b)Other items: L) EMIER :
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B
— audit services —ZE R 1,601 1,465
— other services — B RS 650 125
2,251 1,590
Amortisation iy
— film rights — B 8,891 15,936
— other intangible assets *ﬁ‘rﬁjﬁﬂ/ BE 135 =
Depreciation for property, W MR REREITE
plant and equipment 3,104 1,025
Net foreign exchange losses HNEE 518 F 58 644 482
Operating lease charges: KEHRERS
— minimum lease payments - REHEEMNR 10,070 5,122
- contingent rent# - SRS H# 4,049 -
Cost of inventories (Note 19) FERA (HE19) 38,000 4,803
Impairment losses on film rights B MR RER 2 ER
and films in progress 2 B ETE 4,226 5,818
Impairment losses on goodwill AR EER 29,923 =
Impairment losses on interest R—EE AR ER
in an associate WIEEE 18,421 -
Write-off of film related deposit BB £ 2 ME 417 -
Gross rental income from investment & &M ¢ U A2
properties less direct outgoings of LB 351 81,0008 7T
HK$181,000 (2015: HK$128,000) (ZF— :
128, oooﬁ.%ru) 845 861
# The contingent rent of HK$4,049,000 (2015: Nil) refers # AR £4,049,0008 L (ZF— R4 :

ZRT)ERBEERHEEENEAT
BOHAENKEHERSREEE
W& EBEENK-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

33 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 33 BBiE (BHE), GER (@

(Continued)

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
(c)Finance costs (OLE 1%

Bank overdrafts interest RITBEZF B 269 =
Interest on borrowings BEFE 1,593 170
Other interest expenses HiaF B 401 =

Total interest expense on financial WIEBBERIENFE

liabilities not at fair value through AEzemaEz

profit or loss FMERZ 2% 2,263 170

34 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 34 EERKBEF

BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

TE R LR IR ET &

7R B IR R E 3 )t AT S T B D
REEBRBENRE T ZRNERR
T-BHHEAESHE ([RESH
2)) - BMEHE B ERBIIEA
EEMTEHERENT B - RELHS
e EEXREESSAARES AN
i A 5% 5 813K - B A AR Bl
30,0007 7T » &t Bl 4 3% B 53 8 -

AEERTENHEBARRESZEA
B R T A% RO B R B R AR IR AR MR
E-mEMBARARFENRERD
b A e R R AR R R & R A ST AE A
AEBEZRAEMNFENE—BETH
TR AR TE YK o

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

35 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 3B EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section RIBES (REHED) $£383(1N) &R (A
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 AI(BBEEMNRERDRO) F_F
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits SEBENEEMEOT

of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

For the year ended 30th June 2016 BE_F—A"FE~A=Z1+HLEE
Salary,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits scheme Share-based
Fees inkind  contributions Sub-Total payments Total
Name of Directors EEia B 2H BAREHE DY
we  REVNE 3% et BRI 4%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#n T Tign Tign Ti#n T

Chairmen and B
executive diector FHTEE

Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil ~ #/\B %2 4 - 3,185 18 3,203 - 3,203
Executive dlrectors HITEE
Mr. Hung Cho Sing AR EE - 130 - 130 3 471
Ms. Cheng Hei Yu(Note ) ~ EIE#IZ+

(k) - 2,675 11 2,686 341 3,027
Mr. Lam Kit Sun LS - 1212 18 1,230 34 1571
Mr. Yeung Kim Piu (Note (i)~ B&IE% 4

(W) - 363 8 3N - 37
Non-executive director FHTEE
Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong Stephen  BR43 3t 0 4 210 - - 210 3 551

Indlependient non-executie  BUHEHTEE

directors
Mr. Lam Wing Tai WAREE 130 - - 130 - 130
Mr. Lam Chi Keung WEREE 130 - - 130 - 130
Mr. Choi Wing Koon Bkmik 130 - - 130 - 130
600 7,565 55 8,220 1,364 9,584
Note (i): Ms. Cheng Hei Yu was appointed as an executive k() : BEmMZIR_ZT—RAF+ZAN
director of the Company on 8th December 2015. AEZERBARARINITES
Note (ii): Mr. Yeung Kim Piu was retired as an executive director of MizEG) . BRIEEER_TE—RF+—A
the Company on 30th November 2015. Zt+tARERRRMITES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

35 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2015

35 EEME @

BE-F-RAFAAZTHLEEE

Salary,
allowances, Retirement
and bengfits scheme Share-based
Fees inkind  contributions Sub-Total payments Total
e 2E BIRGrE IRBER
Name of Directors B4 e REWIE 3 G PALE az
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TATL TET TATL TAL TAL
Chairman and 2 s
executive director RANEE
Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil ~ #/J\B 5 - 3,185 18 3,208 1124 4,327
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Yeung Kim Piu BRERE - 867 18 885 1124 2,009
Mr. Hung Cho Sing HEERE = 130 S 130 1124 1254
M. Lam Kit Sun S - 1,181 18 1,149 1124 2,278
Non-executive director FHTEE
Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong Stephen B3t 52 4
(Note (i) (Birsi) 57 - - 57 - 57
Inclepenceent non-executie  BUHHTEE
drectors
Mr. Lam Wing Tai MAREE 130 - - 130 = 130
Mr. Lam Chi Keung WeRts 130 - - 130 = 130
Mr. Choi Wing Koon EAEEE 130 - - 130 - 130
447 5,313 54 5814 4,49 10,310

Note (jii): Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong Stephen was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company on 1st March 2015.

During the year, no director of the Company has waived
any emoluments and no emoluments were paid or
payable by the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office.

PEEEG) - BRABEEER T —RHFE=A—H
ERERARARFFRITES-

ARREEFAMERZTAMNE M
ARER B IR E R & S SR A )
e EREFMARKELIMARE
9 B ) ZE B SR BE R A E

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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36 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST

EMOLUMENTS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included three Directors (2015:
three) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining two (2015: two) individuals during the year
are as follows:

36

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

mREmATL

i

RENLEERERSHFALEBE=S

—E-RFZR)EF REZME
HBCREXZN 2O TARE - Hék
ME(ZE—RF W) ALTRAFE
ZRENBET

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

F#HET FET

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMmile 3,585 2,991
Contributions to RRET B R

retirement scheme 36 36

3,621 3,027

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

The emoluments of the two (2015: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

S EFH A T SISEE R :

ME(ZCE—AF MB)BREHFALZ
FMETIHRENA:

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—h*F
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
AH AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 7T = -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 TE
2,000,000/% 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 LE
3,000,0007% 7T 1 S
2 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A EIRERME
OTHER INCOME 37 Hig A
Continuing operations: HEREER:
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHET
Sponsorship income UL PN 1,884 648
Screening income g A 172 186
Dividend income from A ESMEEY
available-for-sale financial assets i% B U A 20,473 -
Dividend income from financial assets F@BEHEAFEAEY
at fair value through profit or loss TREEZRBBA 297 =
Others EAh 46 -
22,872 834
OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET 38 Hitlrz  (BEHE) — B8
Continuing operations: HEREEXR:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE WS REHZ
plant and equipment (&8 W= (95) 140
Waiver of accounts payable FERTERE R 622 =
Net foreign exchange losses P& 5 &5 18 F 58 (644) (482)
Others Hpth 268 94
151 (248)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

39 INTEREST INCOME

39 FIZUIA

Continuing operations: HEREER:
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHET
Bank interest income RITH B UA 74 96
Interest income from a joint venture & & QA & Z F BUA 224 218
Finance income in consolidated REEEAREERNR
statement of comprehensive income B M A 298 314
Loan interest income (included in BERAEWA (Gt ALRE
total revenue and income FHERERAN B
in consolidated statement of LN
comprehensive income) 8,450 5,224
Total interest income F B A 4858 8,748 5,538
40 TAXATION 40 FIE
(@ Income tax in the consolidated @ mEETEWEKFAZMA
statement of comprehensive income =0
Continuing operations: HEREER:
2016 2015
—T—RF = S
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHET
Current tax BN EA I8
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEH 1,390 12,307
Deferred tax (Note 30) EERIIE (FF7E30)
Origination and reversal of AR E A R E
temporary differences (27,569) 25,059
Total fEEt (26,179) 37,366

The provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year.

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 TAXATION (continued)

(@)

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
(Continued)

Continuing operations: (Continued)

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax
has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as the Group has no assessable profits
for the year ended 30th June 2016 (2015: Nil).

No provision for profits tax in Bermuda and the
British Virgin Islands has been made as the Group
has no income or profit assessable for tax in these
jurisdictions for the years ended 30th June 2016
and 2015.

Reconciliation between tax expenses
and accounting profit at the applicable
tax rates:

REVBRRME

40 #HIE (@)

(@)

ETHWERANZFET
15 ()

FEEEER: (F)

TERNGEEMERRAIELEH
TEREEMBHR o EE RE/AK
EERBE_T-RFRA=T
BIEEEYEELRRTEN (=
E-hFE)-

WEERERRBE RS T
BRFLEE RRARARENE
E_T-RERZZE-AFKA
StRLFETERZERDEE
BB 2 A FE AR AR A o

B I8 B8 3 BLIRB A Bt 2
SE Y B2 B

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET

(Loss)/profit before income tax ~ BrFTEFL AT (K1) /% F

(from continuing operation) (CREFRBEREETS) (166,453) 198,296
Tax calculated at domestic 5 BEBERE R T

tax rates applicable to NEEREANE

profits or losses in the HEGTENHIE

respective countries (29,248) 32,649
Income not subject to tax BRI 2 WA (4,964) (1,112)
Expenses not deductible for TR NE 2 B R

tax purpose 26,564 3,063
Utilisation of previously R 2 B AR ER

unrecognised tax losses Z FRIEE 18 (4,843) (24)
Tax losses not recognised KRR HIBEEE 13,429 2,790
Tax effect of temporary EERERMEEE

difference recognised M2 (27,247) -
Others HAb 130 =
Income tax (credit)/expense TSR (%) FxX (26,179) 37,366

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

Bt 75 R 2R MY

41 DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND

DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

On 13th June 2016, the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, Fragrant River Entertainment Culture (Holdings)
Limited (“FRECH”"), and Lucky Famous Limited, an
independent vendor, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which FRECH agreed to dispose
to Lucky Famous Limited of its 51% equity interest in AP
Group. Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement,
the initial consideration of HK$20,400,000 is subject
to downward adjustment. In the event that the audited
consolidated profit after tax of AP Group for the period
from 1st January 2016 to 31st December 2017 is less
than HK$16,000,000, the buyer shall, and the guarantors
shall procure the buyer to , pay to Lucky Famous Limited
the adjustment amount (the “Adjustment Amount”) in
accordance with the formula set out below:

A = HK$20,4000,000 - (NP/2) x 5 x51%
Where:
“A” means the amount of Adjustment Amount in HK$: and

“NP” means the net profit for the period from 1st January
2016 to 31st December 2017. Where the NP is a negative
figure, NP shall deemed to be zero.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the disposal
of AP Group was completed on 1st July 2016.

The assets and liabilities attributable to the operations
in AP Group, which is expected to be sold within twelve
months, have been classified as a disposal group held
for sale and are presented separately in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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41 BRUEREETRDER

FIEHEZHEER

RZE—ARNFENA+=ZB ARQAAIZzE
BB AR ETIRE L (FER) B R
AR (B IRE L] E—RBIE
77 Lucky Famous Limiteds] 3 —HE &
W - B BITIRE B[R & [AlLucky
Famous Limited R EEREHEE 2
51%E-REBZEEHH THRE
20,400,000/ JT A] #£ 17 T 78 i B P &
BN —R"F—A—RAE-F—tF
T A=+ BB EBEZGEERT
1% 7 # > 116,000,000 7T - B H FE K
ERAEBREEFRBUATHAHELR
[ Lucky Famous Limitedz 1 #8 & 4 8
(IAEeE]):

A = 20,4000,000/% 7T— (NP/2) x 5 x51%
Hep:
[AJEHAZSE (BT) &

INP I —_FE—ARF—F—Bk=_Z%
—tF T A=+ —BHEZF R
WNPAEE - BI[NP] BRIERE -

HIR®& HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

41 DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND 41 BRUEREETRDER
DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS FEHEZHEAHR @)
HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

“E-RFE+-A+MBE (KEBEAH)
—E-REXRA=TBILEME KB
RUIEREEBZBRINAOT -

The loss for the period from 14th December 2015 (date of i
acquisition) to 30th June 2016 from discontinued operation E
is analysed as follows: =

AP Group

EH&E

HK$’000

FHET

Revenue W 10,429
Cost of revenue & DN (3,136)
7,293
Administrative expenses THEBR (8,477)

Other income E A 11
Other losses HEia ©)
Finance income 7R N 2
Loss before tax for the period B A Bk 7 A S 18 (1,180)
Income tax expenses Frigfif = (422)
Loss after tax for the period HNBR B2 B8 (1,602)
Attributable to: AT & T7 Ak

Owners of the Company KABEE A 817)
Non-controlling interests IR A (789)
(1,602)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

41 DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND 41 BRUEREETRDER
DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS FEHEZHEAHR @)
HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the disposal RZE-—RENA=TH DERFHE
group held for sale classified as held for sales as at 30th HEZREANNETEZEEERBERT
June 2016 are as follows: LI
AP Group
EH&E
HK$'000
FHET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment LERE - Y Y 2,134
Accounts receivables JE U BR 3R 103
Amounts due from directors FEUE E5IR 27
Deposits paid, prepayments BEfET®  BRFIE
and other receivables T E At fE W R IE 2,758
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEEY 1,359
Assets associated with disposal group PERFELREZHEEARZ
classified as held for sale HEEE 6,381
Liabilities =R
Other payables and accrued charges o FE AT SRTE R FEETSZ 1,345
Deposits received BET & 7,566
Taxation payable FEBTIIR 687

Liabilities associated with disposal group DERFELEZEHEARNZ
classified as held for sale HEaE 9,598

Net liabilities associated with disposal group P8 A EHE 2 HE4E7] 2
classified as held for sale BEEEFE (3,217)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 DISCONTINUED OPERATION AND
DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

The net cash flows incurred by AP Group for the period
from 15th December 2015 (date of acquisition) to 30th
June 2016 are as follows:

REVBRRME

N ERIEBEXRFRIERS
FIEHE < HEHM (@)

B-ZT—AF+-A+aA (KEAH)
BEZT-—RFANA=THLAREH
SEELZRESREFEMT

AP Group
EHE
HK$’000
FHET
Net cash outflow from operating activities & EE 2B R FEE (264)
Net cash outflow IR &7 F R (264)
HKS$
BT

Loss per share: HREE:
- Basic, from the discontinued operation —EAK REERIEEEER 0.006
- Diluted, from the discontinued operation ~ —#5% KRB B R ILEE X 0.006

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share from
the discontinued operation are based on:

REER G 2T BREA LSS
BB E I TAISEE 4 -

2016
—E—RE
Loss attributable to owners of the Company WEBHZ —ZT—XFEXA=1+HI
from discontinued operation for the period B AR RI#HEA AEILHRE B K LE
from the acquisition date to 30th June REEE 2 BE (TET)
2016 (HK$'000) (817)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares &1 & SR EABEFTERA 2 2317
in issue used in the basic loss per share TBAT INEE 8 (K15E42 (@)
calculation (Note 42 (a)) 143,724,624

Diluted loss per share from discontinued operation for the
year ended 30th June 2016 was the same as the basic
loss per share from discontinued operation because the
exercises of the Company’s share options, warrants and
convertible bonds would result in a decrease in loss per
ordinary share from continuing operations for that year.

BE_T-R"EANA=THLFE X
HERLEEXH 2 BREEEEEN
HERLIEEXH 2 BRELREEM
[ REASITEARRZERE B
RELASZREEHEBHZFERA
FEREZEBNEREBRZEER

o

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FREMBRRMEE
42 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 42 5Bk (BE) BF
(a) Basic (@ EAXK

Basic (loss)/earnings per ordinary share is calculated
by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

SREBRER (BB BHD
BADTRA AR (BR),
IR AR E BT EER 2
BELBHE

2016 2015
—E—RKE —E—RF
(As previously
stated)
(FRIFIR)
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of A & #EH A FE(
the Company (HK$'000) (B#8), &
(F%7T)
— from continuing operations —REFBLEED (139,973) 161,956
— from discontinued operation —REERIEEEE (817) =
— from continuing and discontinued ~ — R B #% 48
operation = ﬂﬂ:%%%% (140,790) 161,956
Weighted average number of BEETEERKRZ
ordinary shares in issue IntEFHE 143,724,624 25,844,856
Basic (loss)/earnings per FREBRAR
ordinary share (HK$) (EB#8)&F (ExT)
— from continuing and discontinued ~ — R B E N
operation BRI (0.980) 6.266
— from continuing operations —REBELEEY (0.974) 6.266
(b) Diluted (b) i
Diluted loss per ordinary share for the year ended REBEZ-_FT—X"FA=+HL

30th June 2016 was the same as the basic loss
per ordinary share because the exercises of the
Company’s share options, warrants and convertible
bonds would result in a decrease in loss per ordinary
share from continuing operations for that year.

262 Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

FE BREBR EIHERES
PoE B e EREEAR RRA
TTEARRE 2 BEE  RAERE &
AHEEREEERRFERE
SEREEBNEREBRZE
B e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(Continued)

(b)

Diluted (Continued)

REVBRRME

42 B (B#E) BF @)

2015
—T—h*F
(Restated)
(L&)
Profit attributable to owners of the Company (HK$'000) A A Bl #E A A A
and used to determine diluted earnings per ordinary wmA (FET) &
share (HK$’000) A LATEE T & A i AR
g RF 2 m A
(F%7T)
- from continuing and discontinued operations - REFER
ERIEEEETR 161,956
— from continuing operations —REFELCEER 161,956
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue BEETEREKRZ
IntEF 1598 25,844,856
Adjustment for share options FEBIREEL AT 339,818
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for BREBREERN 2
diluted earnings per ordinary share LB INAE T 26,184,674
Diluted earnings per ordinary share (HK$) SRETREREERT
(&)
— from continuing and discontinued operations —REHERD
BIERERT 6.185
— from continuing operations —KREABECEER 6.185

The computation of diluted earnings per ordinary
share for the year ended 30th June 2015 did not
assume the conversion of the Company’s warrants
because the exercise prices of the Company’s
warrants were higher than the average market
prices of the Company’s shares during the year.

For the year ended 30th June 2015, the weighted
average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share has
been restated and adjusted with (i) the effect of shares
consolidation (10 shares consolidated into 1 share)
in March 2016; and (ii) the effect of bonus element
of the rights issue in August 2015 on the basis of 2
rights share for every 1 existing ordinary share, which
occurred during the current year.

HAEEBEE_ZT-RAFRA=TH
L FEESRERRZEERNE
TEBRERARBZABREEDE
R RER/KRRRRREEZTT
FEERRFAARARDZFH
mE-

HE-_Z-—RAFENA=1HILEE A
Uit EERERREALBERN T
BREMNEFHHELES L E ROR
T -RFZAETZRHBEH (10
a1k G) RN =ZF—H
FNARSHEIRRELBRERR
HAR (D B R TI BN ARFE TR
M2 A RAZFEIEN TR
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263




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

43 DIVIDENDS 43 Bz B
The Board did not recommend the payment of a final EEeTERREHE_Z—F A
dividend for the year ended 30th June 2016 (2015: Nil). “THIEFEZREARE (ZE—H%F:
m) o
44 NET CASH USED IN OPERATING 44 EEFHMAZFRE
ACTIVITIES
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Loss)/profit before tax for the year FR Zﬁ?fﬂ Al (E518) & A
From continuing operations WA B ST (166,453) 198,296
From discontinued operation KE EZﬁJtZ«‘ &S
(Note 41) (HI5E41) (1,180) -
Adjustments for: BTISEEDAE:
— Dividend income from —ANESREE
available-for-sale financial assets 2B HﬁU\ (FfF5E37)
(Note 37) (20,473) -
— Depreciation of property, —E WENRBIITE
plant and equipment (Note 6) (Ff3E6) 3,976 1,025
— Amortisation of film rights —BEhRAE 2 4 5H
(Note 10) (FtEE10) 8,891 15,936
— Amortisation of other intangible —HimEEE 2 #iE
assets (Note 8) (MI3E8) 135 =
— Fair value change on contingent — R AREZATFE
consideration receivable g (M5E22)
(Note 22) (4,080) -
— Fair value change on contingent —ERHAREZATE
consideration payable 28) (60) =
— Impairment losses of interests —R—HEBE AR R
in an associate (Note 12) BEEE (HiE12) 18,421 =
— Impairment losses of film rights —EBRERREER 2EF
and films in progress (Note 10) ZREEE (K &10) 4,226 5,818
— Impairment losses of goodwill —EERERE (i)
(Note 9) 29,923 -
— Increase in fair value of —REWMEZ RFEEEM
investment properties (Note 7) (P3E7) - (500)
— Write-off of inventories (Note 19) —GFEZME (K5E19) 1,709 296
— Write-off of film related deposit —EBERBEITS M 417 -
— Reversal of write-down of —BEMORTE (H:E19)
inventories (Note 19) (317) (266)
— Share based payment (Note 26) — AR BEER R
(K7E26) 3,576 9,398
— Net loss/(gain) on disposal of —HEYX HBERREZ
property, plant and equipment Eﬁﬁ/ (Yezs) 558
(Note 38) (FfF7E38) 95 (140)
— Gain on step acquisition of — 5 Pk B — T Y i A )
a subsidiary (Note 45(a)) 2 Wz (MfeF45() ) (1,571) -
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HEMRBARZKE
(Note 46) (Pffsx46) = 6)
— Finance income (Note 39) — U A (FI5E39) (298) (314)
— Finance costs (Note 33) — B A AS (P 5E33) 2,263 170
— Write-back of provision for —AHHESREEREBEES
impairment loss of an TET%% & #
available-for-sale financial asset - (969)
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REVBRRME

44 NET CASH USED IN OPERATING 44 EEFHMAZERE (@0
ACTIVITIES (Continued)
2016 2015
—E—REF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
— Waliver of accounts payable —ERERKE R (Hi7E38)
(Note 38) (622) -
— Share of (profits)/losses of —fEEEE AR CaF)
associates B 18 (3,899) 38
— Share of loss of a joint venture —EiE—RHE&ERRIEE 224 218
— Fair value change and loss on —EBEARRES 2
redemption of convertible bonds N EES NEE 1,813 =
Changes in working capital: LEEe#E:
— Inventories —FE 11,240 (432)
- Accounts receivable — JE W BR 3K 26,684 11,297
— Amount due from a joint venture — R —MA&ERNFFRIE 10 (10)
— Loans receivable — U E (6,163) 1,930
- Loan to an associate - BT HBERRZER (5,000) =
— Deposits paid, prepayments —BENEE - BARER
and other receivables H A fE U SR IE 6,991 (52,763)
- Accounts payable — IR (107,118) ()
— Amount due to an associate —JE — B2 AT 2R 1,941 =
— Other payable and accrued —HE b JE RIE R ERT X
charges (8,363) 209
— Deposits received —BlkEI& (5,347) 24,182
- Financial assets at fair value —BREREAFE
through profit or loss ARZEREBEE 67,665 (254,794)
— Bank balances and cash —RITEHR LIRS
— trust accounts —E5EERF 51,724 =
Cash used in operations eEMAZES (89,020) (41,385)
Tax paid [ O (11,884) -
Net cash used in operating activities =& /EENFTH 2 B & (100,904) (41,385)
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
a. Disposal of property, plant and a HEYE HBERHEHE
equipment
Carrying amount (Note 6) BRmEE (F5E6) 95 =
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of HEYE - #aZ R
property, plant and equipment Bz (B1B) W
(Note 38) F 58 (MI5E38) (95) 140
Proceeds from disposal of HEYE - HaE R
property, plant and equipment B 2 FT1SRIE - 140

NEER RTERERMIERERAR
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44 NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

44 EEFHMAZERE @

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-ARF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
b. Obligations under finance . RMEHEERE
leases

At the end of the year FR 98 132
Less: At the beginning of the year A E A (132) (69)
Less: Additions BRE - (89)

Capital element of finance lease TNBMEHEEZ
payments BARHBS (34) (26)

45 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 30th June 2016

(@) Step acquisition from associate to

subsidiary of Winston Asia Limited

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
entered into between Fragrant River Entertainment
Culture (Holdings) Limited (“FREC”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the other
shareholder of Winston (the “Other Shareholder”) on
7th May 2015, the remaining 79.99% equity interest
of Winston, a then associate of the Group, was
acquired by the Group from the Other Shareholder
(the “Step Acquisition”). Winston and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in trading, wholesaling and
retailing of watches and jewellery products. The
total consideration would be settled by issuing
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$64,000,000. The Step Acquisition was
completed on 31st July 2015. The Group considers
that the step acquisition provides a good opportunity
to diversify the Group’s business and broaden the
income source of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

45 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 45 W EEMIB 2 A ()

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016 HE_ZT—REA=+H

(Continued) IEFE (&)

(@) Step acquisition from associate to (@ #HeHgE QA 2K B A A
subsidiary of Winston Asia Limited 7 5 P Bx B — Winston
(Continued) Asia Limited (&)

The following summarises the acquisition date fair THREMNKWEBREEEAER
value of the total consideration transferred: ENAFEE:
HK$’000
FHET
Fair value of convertible bonds issued BETABRRKRES 2 AFE 62,994
The Group has engaged Grant Sherman Appraisal AEBCZEB LS EMBEMT
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers, REFEAERAAMEITREKRE
to assess the fair value of the convertible bonds at FRV SRR 2 AFE - Al
initial recognition. The fair value of convertible bonds BEHEZAFEDER-HENHE
is determined by using the Binomial Option Pricing EERAETET A RRESD
Model. The convertible bonds were fully redeemed RZE-—RNEXNAZ+HNBEH
on 28th June 2016. FEME -
The following summarises the total consideration TEBAR_—_ZFT-—HAF L+ A
and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities —+—H (BB BERHER
assumed, as well as the amount of intangible assets B FMEEENFIREEENS
and goodwill arising from the acquisition recognised B UARETEESELEKEE
at 31st July 2015 (the date of acquisition): ERREE SR
HK$’000
FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment LER Y 3 1,169
Other intangible assets — HMEPEE - mEEH 1,108
brand name (Note 8) (Ff¥7E8)
2,277
Curront assats T T 7
Inventories Ve g 21,095
Accounts receivable & L B 3K 5,243
Deposits paid, prepayments BfETE BEREIER
and other receivables R & 3,085
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEeEEY 1,471
30,894
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

45 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

(@) Step acquisition from associate to
subsidiary of Winston Asia Limited

45 WEEHM B~ 7 (@)

@Z:ﬂz::%é_/‘\i/‘\

IEFE (|)

(@) Bt E N R 2B F)
&) 9 P B% U5 B — Winston

A=+H

(Continued) Asia Limited (%)
HK$’000
T
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities MENEE
Other payables and accrued charges EMFE A SR R FEET S (4,427)
Taxation payables P& I8 (2,975)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (2,000)
(9,402)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATESEARREEERE 23,769
Fair value of the equity interest held ZERSBRBRWENMEEREZ
immediately before the Step Acquisition NEE (6,796)
Goodwill arising on Step Acquisition (Note 9) 9 & EX W B = 4 2 72 (1 719) 46,021
Total consideration BRE 62,994

The fair values and gross contractual amount of
accounts receivable and other receivables as at
the date of acquisition amounted to HK$5,243,000
and HK$1,061,000 respectively. No accounts

JRE L2 AR K R Lt B KRR TE R U B
HEOAFERBEHNSES
735,243,000/ 7T 1,061,000/
JC o TEEF I R AT B R 2 FE MR BR X

receivable and other receivables were expected to be Ko o Ath & W KA ©
uncollectible.
HK$’000
FHET
Net cash inflow on Step Acquisition: SHRBEUBELAZEERNTH:
Net cash acquired from Step Acquisition DIEBRWEES ST 1,471

The transaction costs of approximately HK$1,313,000
have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and included in ‘administrative expenses’
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30th June 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

45 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

45 WEEHM B~ 7 (@)

HE-_ZE—XRFA=TH
IEFE (@)
(@) Bt E N R 2B F)

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

(@) Step acquisition from associate to

subsidiary of Winston Asia Limited
(Continued)

The Group recognised a gain on step acquisition
of HK$1,571,000 as a result of remeasurement at
fair value of its 20.01% equity interest in Winston
held before the Step Acquisition. The gain on
step acquisition of a subsidiary is included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 30th June 2016.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is
attributable to the synergies expected to arise
from the business combination and future growth
and profitability of Winston. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income
tax purposes.

Winston contributed approximately HK$54,333,000
to the Group’s total revenue and income and
approximately HK$614,000 profit to the Group’s
loss before tax, for the period between the date of
completion of the step acquisition and 30th June
2016.

If the acquisition of Winston had been completed on
1st July 2015, the Group’s total revenue and income
and loss after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$13,123,000 and approximately
HK$136,653,000 respectively. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of the total revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1st July 2015, nor is intended to be a
projection of future results.

A 5> B B W BB — Winston
Asia Limited (&)
AEBBEIBBWBERMESE
Winston#920.01% % i {E A FEE
EtE BR-IESRERKEZK
% /31,571,000 7T ° 2 5 & B
Ui — KT B A A 2 s st AR
BE-ET-XNEXNAZTHLEFE
MirE 2 EREE -

WREEZHEDRAXEA
PR EL 2 R RENRR
Winston B & /938 & K2 & 7 8¢
PSR 2 B B TR T e R R
PRS-

RoRBRBRKETKAERZ =
T—XRNENAZTHLHHE-
Winston$f 78 & B 48 4§ 25 & WA
2 BBk 49 554,333,000 7T &
HAEBEBRMATEBER RN
614,000 /& 7T °

fisi Y BE Winstonid — & — A F +
A—BEZXZK AEERAFE
Y #A U S R W A LA R BR TR 12 18
15 5 Bll & #913,123,000/%8 7T & %)
136,653,000/ 7T o AN 15 & & £ &
ERBARSE W —EEWRE Wi
BR-_E—RAFEA—HEK &
SEEREERNRRRERESE
RE M EEEHRREENTE
Al o

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

45 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 45 W EEMIB 2 A ()

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016 (E T RNFAAA=TH

(Continued) IEFE (&)

(b) Acquisition of Win Fung Securities (b) WHEKIEFEFBRAA]
Limited
On 21st August 2015, Rising Fame International RZE—RAFNAZ+—B AR
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Al —RE2EAMBAR FEERE
entered into an agreement with two independent PRARI M EEY L= HITR]
third party vendors to acquire the entire interest of St aE  DAURBE Ok 8% 2 BP AR - 3R
Win Fung at a cash consideration of HK$7:3,000,000. eRERT3 ooo,ooo;% TCo KB A
Win Fung is a licensed corporation under the —RIRIEZ 5 LA B RO X
Securities and Futures Ordinance and authorised to %%Tﬁuxiﬁ B /EEZ%HE‘E/%.
engage in the following regulated activities: (i) Type (I)%Tiﬁ Z ?&% F R (i) S5 4%E - B

1: Dealing in securities; and (i) Type 4: Advising on
securities. The principal activities of Win Fung are %i
provision of securities brokerage services and margin BB
ZN
4

P :E'ET#Eé% «‘iﬂﬂlﬁ‘k&ﬁ@ﬂﬂ
R WEBEEEEY
LR XS R AR
R W R RSB H W AR

financing to clients. The management considers that
such acquisition will enable the Group to diversify

its business into the financial services industry R WBER_—_F—AF+—A
and broaden revenue sources of the Group. The +-EHEMK-
acquisition was completed on 17th November 2015.
The following summarises the total consideration TERBAR-_ZTE—RHF+—A
and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities ++H (KWIEBH) BRReRE -
assumed, as well as the amount of intangible assets FTEEERTREaENESEE
and goodwill arising from the acquisition recognised UWEkEREEcHELAAREES
at 17th November 2015 (the date of acquisition): NEEcHE
HK$’000
AT
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment UEY): S 3 1,564
Other intangible assets — trading rights EtEEEE—E 2 (M) 11,400
(Note 8)
12,954
Currentassets ~ Em¥E
Accounts receivable &Y R R . 231,776
Deposits paid, prepayments BEffal % BARIEAR
and other receivables H At JE UK I8 982
Cash and cash equivalents Be RREFEY 8,809
Bank balances — trust accounts IRITHEB—(EFERP 168,391
409,958
LIABILITIES a0
Current liabilities nEaE
Accounts payable B BR IR (357,631)
Other payables and accrued charges H b &5 58 N BT X (8,536)
Taxation payables FESBLIR (1,809)
Borrowings BE (10,000)
)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 9)

Total consideration BRAE 73,000
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45 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

i E RS SRR M R
45 WEEKMIB 7 (@)
(E_F—FA=+H

1F

FE (@)

(b) Acquisition of Win Fung Securities (b) WHE K#2E 5 AR A A
Limited (Continued) (&)
The fair values and gross contractual amount of & U BR 3R N H A i U SR A U BB
accounts receivable and other receivables as at the BENAFTERBENESED T
date of acquisition amounted to HK$231,776,000 £231,776,0008 T R E A T T8
and HKS$NIl respectively. No accounts receivable and st EAA O 2 EUREBR I R H
other receivables were expected to be uncollectible. b FE Wi FRIE o
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WEkEEEZRERHFHE: HK$'000
Win Fung: FHT
Cash consideration paid BENRENRE (73,000)
Net cash acquired from the subsidiary B AR ENIRE F5E 8,809
(64,191)

The transaction costs of HK$570,000 have been
excluded from the consideration transferred
and included in ‘administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Win Fung
is attributable to the future growth and profitability
in relation to the provision of securities brokerage
services and margin financing to clients. None of the
goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

Win Fung contributed HK$16,072,000 to the
Group’s total revenue and income and approximately
HK$2,509,000 profit to the Group’s loss after tax, for
the period between the date of acquisition and the
end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition of Win Fung had been completed on
1st July 2015, the Group’s total revenue and income
and loss after tax for the year would have been
HK$17,593,000 and HK$139,614,000 respectively.
The proforma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of the total
revenue and income and loss after tax of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1st July 2015, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

570,000/ 7T 2 R 5 B A AR 4 FT
EE%K{EEP%DH Himaami
BRTFINWEITRER]

WREXKBELEZBEDREAT
FRHEEFELCRGEEARBE
FERBERIERREFBEN B E
ERRAAMERBAEHRABH
R e

RUEE B R E RS R 8R

KRB AN B 48 W s R A B R
16,072,000/ 7T« B AL B R B
& E1E B BUE T 492,509,000 7T ©

WU XER - E—RHF+LA—
ElEr:ﬁJZ NEIBAKEFE’J%@W

= MU A R Br B 1% B5 18 1§ 2 A
717,593,000/ 7T £ 139,614,000
BT ANEEZEEREERBRR
WA TEEREMBUBEBR S
—AFtA—BEN AEEERK
B2 IR A AR LSS T A DA R B A
ééﬂa IR AESE R R EER

TE-REFR EFRRERERERA
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45 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

45 WEEHM B~ 7 (@)

For the year ended 30th June 2016 HE_T—REA=+H

(Continued) IEFE (&)
(c) Acquisition of AP Group Investment ) WEEHEEEZERER

272

Holdings Limited

On 12th October 2015, FREC, a direct wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an agreement with four independent third party
vendors to acquire 51% equity interest of AP Group
for consideration of HK$20,400,000 (subject to
downward adjustment in respect of the guaranteed
profit as described in the sale and purchase
agreement). AP Group is principally engaged in
provision of education and training programs in
relation to self-improvement and self-enhancement
in Hong Kong and the PRC. The management
considers that such acquisition will enable the Group
to tap into the business of education and training
program and broaden revenue sources of the Group.
The acquisition was completed on 14th December
2015.

The potential undiscounted amount of all future
payments that the Group could receive under this
arrangement is between HK$0 and HK$20,400,000.

The fair value of the contingent consideration
receivable of HK$6,850,000 was estimated by
applying the discounted cash flow approach. The fair
value estimates are based on a discount factor of
10.6% and probability-weighed profit of AP Group of
HK$2,882,000 to HK$17,367,000. This is a level 3
fair value measurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

45 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 45 W EEMIB 2 A ()

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

(c) Acquisition of AP Group Investment
Holdings Limited (Continued)

As at 30th June 2016, there was fair value increase
of HK$4,080,000 (Note 22) recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the contingent consideration receivable, as the
assumed probability-weighted profit in AP Group was
recalculated to be approximately HK$3,286,000 to
HK$10,035,000.

The following summarises the acquisition date fair
value of the total consideration transferred:

HE_T—RFAA=TH
IEFE (8
) WEEHEEERER

NGIEE D
RZBE—ARFNAZTH BERE
A2ERERARKABKKE
HERA F AL hn4,080,0007 7T (FY
H#22) REREBEEM AN
DN & F B 493,286,000/% 7T E #7
5T # 510,035,000 7T °

TRBEXNKBEHCEBRENR
B AFE:

HK$’000

FHET

Cash consideration ReRE 20,400
Contingent consideration arrangement AR ELHE

(Note 22) (MI5E22) (6,850)

Total consideration wIRE 13,550

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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REFBRRMEE

45 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

45 WEEHM B~ 7 (@)

HE—_ET—RFENA=1H

IEFE @®)

) WEEHEBRIZERER
YNCIRE )
T S i 5 i B B R R A8 A
B FUBEERFRERENS
HOARKEE AR

For the year ended 30th June 2016
(Continued)

(c) Acquisition of AP Group Investment
Holdings Limited (Continued)
The following summarises the total consideration

and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, as well as the amount of goodwill arising

from the acquisition recognised at the date of

acquisition:
HK$’000
FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - 2SR 3,032
Current assets MENEE
Accounts receivable FEUAR K 324
Deposits paid, prepayments BfETE  BERRIEK
and other receivables H A fE U SRR 2,638
Cash and cash equivalents BehBEeZEEY 1,623
4,585
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities mENEE
Accounts payable FERTBR K (642)
Other payables and accrued charges HMFE A FRIE R EET S (7,190)
Tax payable FEBTIIR (611)
(8,443)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAFEFEZAHRFEERE (826)
Non-controlling interests FEIZ i 405
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 9) W E A 2 2 (5E9) 13,971
Total consideration wRE 13,550
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FE MR M

45 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

45 WEEHM B~ 7 (@)

For the year ended 30th June 2016 BHE_T—
(Continued) IEFE (,%fé
(c) Acquisition of AP Group Investment ) WEEHEEEZERER

Holdings Limited (Continued)

The fair values and gross contractual amount of
accounts receivable and other receivables as at the
date of acquisition amounted to HK$324,000 and
HK$589,000 respectively. No accounts receivable
and other receivables were expected to be
uncollectible.

N B (&)

JRE L2 AR R R Lt B KRR TE R Ui B
HEOWAFERBEHSES B
7#$324,000/% 7T £589,000/% 7T © 78
BT 30 4 7~ 7] 3 4 2 1 R BR 3 R E
fth JE ISUHRIA o

Net cash outflow on acquisition of KEEHEEELEZ HIK$'000
AP Group: RERHFHE: FAT
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (20,400)
Net cash acquired from the subsidiary B AR IERIR S F5E 1,623

(18,777)

The non-controlling interests recognised at the
acquisition date were measured by reference to the
non-controlling interests proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

The transaction costs of approximately HK$417,000
have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and included in ‘administrative expenses’
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30th June 2016.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of AP Group
is attributable to the future growth and profitability
expected to arise from the business combination.
None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

AP Group contributed approximately HK$10,429,000
to the Group’s total revenue and income and
approximately HK$1,602,000 loss to the Group’s
loss after tax, for the period between the date of
acquisition and 30th June 2016.

—EREER BF

RUHE B BRER 2 Rt A s )y
DEFEREREEREESTA
BREEFECERSE LY

s

#)417,0007 TC 2 22 5 B AR I AR B¢
FREBEARERMR RERES
—RENAZTRLEFENGS
EEBRERPINEITRER]

WEEBHEEESA  HERAE
BEHBHFREENERER
Fge ) - LB BT AT AR IR
FRigHt

RREBBPRE T —<F A
=T HIEE EHEERHEAEE
Bl Es R A BB 510,429,000
Brr REAEERREEEER
BB 49/51,602,00078 7T ©

B ERIERARR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

45 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

45 WEEHM B~ 7 (@)

For the year ended 30th June 2016 HE_T—

(Continued) IEFE (%)

(c) Acquisition of AP Group Investment ) WEEHEEEZERER
Holdings Limited (Continued) /NEINE )

If the acquisition of AP Group had been completed WHEEHEBR - —HF+

on 1st July 2015, the Group’s revenue and income
and loss after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$17,587,000 and approximately
HK$141,205,000 respectively. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of the total revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1st July 2015, nor is intended to be a
projection of future results.

A—BEZRK AEBERAFE
By U S R A A R BR R 18 B 1R
19 Bl & 4917,587,00078 7T & 49
141,205,000/ 7T » AN 15 & & & &

TERBAR R - W —FEEWRE MK
BR—_T-—AFtA—HERK"
REBEEREERN BRI KK
EEE N TERGEERREED
TEORI o

HE_T—HFA=1TH
IEFE

(d) W@ BHARAR

For the year ended 30th June 2015

(d) Acquisition of Fine Ocean Limited

276

On 7th May 2015, Precise Reach Group Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
acquired 80% of the issued share capital of Fine
Ocean Limited.

The following summarises the acquisition date fair
value of the total consideration transferred:

EAf7 EFREALE AREZ

T ENBARABEEBRAR
@ﬂﬂ&ﬁ%i@ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ%%a?ﬁ‘
TTIRAR

TR ERAREZWEA
HRFE:

HK$’ 000
FAET

Consideration: RE:
Cash B 2,405
Total consideration wRE 2,405
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

45 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 30th June 2015
(Continued)

(d) Acquisition of Fine Ocean Limited

(Continued)

45 WEEHM B~ 7 (@)

BHE_T—HAFA=1TH
IEFE (&)
o) WHESBAER AR (4)

The following summarises the total consideration
and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, as well as the amount of goodwill arising

TR IS B R 2 AR
BAKRKBEENMAEAR
MEeR WERRAZRBERELZ

from the acquisition recognised at the date of e
acquisition:
HK$’000
FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yzt W B 347
Current assets RBEE
Accounts receivable FEUAR K 8
Inventories FE 2,471
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEeZEEY 5
2,484
LIABILITIES afE&
Current liabilities RENEE
Other payables and accrued charges E b sIE R ER (1,370)
Deposits received BT & 97)
(1,467)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAFEFEZAIHRFEERE 1,364
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR R = (2793)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WWEBEE s HE 1,314
Total consideration BB 2,405
HK$'000
FHET
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WEEHEEZZHEHTHBHE:
Fine Ocean:
Cash consideration paid ERERE (2,405)
Net cash acquired from the subsidiary EGIEYNGIE: i E- 5
(2,400)

—ER-AFFR ETERSRERARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

45 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

45 WEEHM B~ 7 (@)

For the year ended 30th June 2015 HE_ZT—HFA=+H

278

The non-controlling interests recognised at the
acquisition date were measured by reference to the
non-controlling interests proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

The transaction costs of approximately HK$60,000
have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and included in “administrative expenses”
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30th June 2015.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Fine Ocean
is attributable to the future growth and profitability
expected to arise from the business combination.
None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

If the acquisition of Fine Ocean had been completed
on 1st July 2014, the Group’s revenue and income
and profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$304,268,000 and approximately
HK$161,263,000 respectively. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of the total revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved
had the acquisition been completed on 1st July 2014,
nor is intended to be a projection of future results.
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(Continued) IEFE (%a';
(d) Acquisition of Fine Ocean Limited o) WEEBERAA (®
(Continued)

RUHE B BRER 2 R A aR )Y
DEFEREREEREESTA
BREEFECHEATHE LD

s

#)60,000 T2 X 5K AL B FT
BEAETIR ARBE_T
—EFANA=ZTRLEFEZES
EHMRERZITTHRER] AT
BE

AEBEERELE BENRER
HE A ff T8 IS &5 2R A0 R 2K IE

REANEEN °Fﬁ§5?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%$ﬂﬁﬁ
RINBFT SR A&

WERZT—NFLA—HR
KBS AEBIREZFE
Wz B U A BA K BR R 12 s A
2 Bl A& #1304,268,0005% 7T K& 49
161,263,000/ 7T 5 & & RH& 4#
SEAZ - MIEERMZWEEE
EF:%—@itH—E%&'K

EraXBireERl cBER
é@ﬂ&m&%éEZh% "MIEBEE
B AR IREELR o
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47

48

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBRRME

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 46 HE—FEMEB LT
For the year ended 30th June 2015 HE_ZT—RFA=+H
Jﬁi&‘
On 10th September 2014, Mutual Faith Investment Limited, RZZE—MFLA+TH ARA—RHHE
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, BE2ENBRRIEEHREBR AR MK
disposed the entire issued share capital in Ever Rainbow Qﬁif%#ﬂﬁ%%% NRSEHERER
Corporation Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary AE—HEAEZENBARIETAERA
of the Company, to Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil, the A2 2B BITRA - RER/RIET-
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company for a
consideration of HK$1.
The aggregate net assets of the disposed entity at the date REEBR FILEERZEEFER
of disposal were as follows: REIN T
2015
—RF
HK$'000
FHT
Consideration RE S
Less: Net assets W EEFE
Other current liabilities HitmBaE ©)
®)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHBARZWE 6
BANKING FACILITIES 47 SRITRLE
At 30th June 2016, the banking facilities of the Group RZBE—XFRNA=Z1+H RAEBEZR
are secured by trading securities held by the former TREDAR —BEWEB AR AR
shareholder of a subsidiary. Such banking facilities EZRGBHIERER -ZFRITHME
amounted to HK$8,000,000 (2015: Nil) were utilised to s %EF%S 000,000 7T (—Z T —H%F:
the extent of HK$4,020,000 at 30 June 2016 (2015: =) T—RNFANA=Z+EBEHH
Nil). 4,020, ooo,%yz(_EE HFE) -
PENDING LITIGATIONS 48 KiRFRFA

(@) A court action was commenced in the Court
of First Instance of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region on 17th April 2002 by The
Star Overseas Limited (“Star”), an independent
third party, against Universe Entertainment Limited
(*UEL”"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

@ MN-TET_FWA++EH BUE
=HEBBINBRAR([2E])
BARBZ —HBE2ENB A
AETREBER QA ([EFR
LR EBRHITHRERAERE
R —TRREFRA

TE-REFR EFRRERERERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

48 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(@)

(Continued)

By the above action, Star alleges that a sum
of US$935,872 (equivalent to HK$7,299,799)
was payable by UEL to Star as its share of the
revenue of the movie entitled “Shaolin Soccer” (the
“Movie”).

Pursuant to an Order (the “Order”) made by the
High Court on 21st February 2003, the UEL
was ordered and had paid to Star a sum of
HK$5,495,700, being part of the licence fee of
the Movie received by UEL from Miramax Films
(being the licencee of the Movie) and which was
also part of the sum claimed by Star. Pursuant to
the Order, UEL is also liable to pay Star interest
in the sum of HK$350,905 and some of the costs
of the application leading to the making of the
Order, all of which have been settled. As the Order
has not disposed of all the claims of US$935,872
(equivalent to HK$7,299,799) by Star, UEL is
entitled to continue to defend the claim by Star
for recovering the remaining balance in the sum of
approximately HK$1,804,099 (HK$7,299,799 less
HK$5,495,700).

On 30th April 2002, UEL issued a Writ of
Summons against Star for the latter’s wrongful
exploitation of certain rights in the Movie co-
owned by both parties. UEL claimed to recover all
losses and damages suffered by UEL as a result of
the wrongful exploitation.

On 9th September 2002, Universe Laser &
Video Co. Limited (“ULV”"), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, issued a
Writ of Summons against Star for the latter’s
infringement of the licensed rights in the Movie
held by ULV. ULV claimed to recover all losses and
damages suffered by ULV as a result of the said
infringement.
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48 RREREA (@)

(@)

(%)

ERTEAFRFREEBEFRE
FE A H % 4935,872% T (AE R
7,299,799 7L) EADF —WH
BIIMRER] Z2EY ([ZEF])
BB UL o

BESSEENR _ZEETE=ZF=
AZ+—BE#2ES ([ZE
2] BEFRELERSKERE
18 S 115,495,700/ 7T BI B F 1R
#4578 3% T 52 M % Miramax Films ( B
REEIIREREAN) W 2D
REBREBREZH S
BEZES EFREAMNE
18 ¥ 1+ £ 8350,9057%8 7T 2 F B &
HEZESHRENSSER 4
ERAYEIN BRZESLE
iR SR 2 18 5 81935,872% 7T (M E
M7,299,799%8 L) 2 B R (& -
HMEEFREEHREBRHERE
88T A 8491,804,0007%8 7T (D
7,299,799/ JTH5,495,7007% 7T )
ZHRIBREITIR

R-BT-FMA=+E BFR
REEMEHEASHK HEET
Bl AEN ST RARE 2%
BY 2B TN ETREEH
EE T EERENRS L%
— ALK RIEE

R-ZFEZE-_FAANR -KARQFZ
—HREE2ENB QR ET &S
BEERABD([EFEH])REE
EBERLETRIAZER T
B RF R RE RN T A EL B E R SR
ETFESENA LR RETRM
SHERRZ—BAKEE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(@)

(Continued)

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature to
predict the outcome of the claim against UEL. The
Board is of the opinion that the outcome of the
said claim made against UEL will have no material
financial impact to the Group for the year ended
30th June 2016.

On 1st September 2008, Koninklijke Philips
Electronics N.V. (“KPE”) issued a Writ of Summons
against among other persons, the Company,
ULV and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (one of the
Directors), being three of the defendants named
therein, in respect of damages arising from alleged
infringement of the patents regarding Video
Compact Disc owned by KPE.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature
to predict the outcome of the said claim made
against the Company, ULV and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming,
Daneil. The Board is of the opinion that the outflow
of economic benefits cannot be reliably estimated
and accordingly no provision for any liability that
may result has been made in the consolidated
financial statements.

On 8th January 2010, KPE issued a Writ of
Summons against among other persons, the
Company, ULV and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil (one
of the Directors), being three of the defendants
named therein, in respect of damages arising
from alleged infringement of the patents regarding
Digital Video Disc owned by KPE.

In June 2012, the action was discontinued against
the Company and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil. The
claim made against ULV has been agreed with
KPE and settled by ULV and appropriate legal
costs provision was recognised accordingly in
the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30th June 2012.

REVBRRME

48 RREREA (@)

(@)

(%)

RIPEEBREZER B RN
BRETFTREN LB REERWE
RBEF EXERRURETRE
MERREZERTEREE
T-RNEXNAZTHLEFEHA
SEBKREATBTE -

RZZEZENFNLA -8
Koninklijke Philips Electronics
N.V. (TKPE]) A (KK B3E) "R
a - BEFES RM/NREE (Ep
—RER) (BASHRLEzHEF=
EHE)BEEBEEBRFEILKPE
FHBEET S TN ENEmE
EZERZ BRI

REBZZBREZER BB
HARE BEFEG RMNALE
MERREERDBRFER -E

ERREEMKEN R LR
BEF] MM AT AL MR A W15
BRAAEELENTIMNEERF
B

RZZE—ZFF—ANA KPER (X
FERE) ARG BFEE RN
BB (B —RESE) (FmM2
MEZEP=2WE)BHEBE
BREERILKPENH MBI T S
HENENEMEEZIBLRZE
ML

RZTF—ZFRA  BARF XM
NREEZ RBEMERLIL-HETFT
8T 2 REC BEKPEZE K % &
EHETENGES AEREBE—
T—ZFRNA=ZTRHLEFEZE
EMBHBRABRLEREE N
ERERBME-

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

48 PENDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(©

(Continued)

No additional provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30th June 2016. Based on the consultation
with legal counsel, no further material outflow of
economic benefits will be incurred for ULV.

Universe Artiste Management Limited (“UAM”)
commenced Court of First Instance Action
against Kwong Ling and Oriental Prosperous
Int'l Entertainments Limited (collectively the
“Defendants”) on 30th June 2014 claiming inter
alia for a declaration that UAM is entitled to
extend/renew the term of the Artist Management
Contract of the Defendants with UAM (the “Artist
Management Contract”) for 5 years as from 3rd
May 2014 to 2nd May 2019.

The Defendants filed their defence and
counterclaim on 29th September 2014. By
such counterclaim, the Defendants claiming
against UAM inter alia for a declaration that
the Artist Management Contract was void and
unenforceable, the Artist Management Contract
to be rescinded, damages for breach of the Artist
Management Contract and for breach of fiduciary
duties, a declaration that UAM is liable to account
to the Defendants and an order for payment of all
sums found to be due by UAM to the Defendants.

In the opinion of legal counsel, it is premature
to predict the outcome of the said claim against
UAM. The Board considers that the amounts of
counterclaim by the Defendants against UAM is
insignificant to the Group as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th June 2016, no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
directors to be pending against either the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.
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48 RREREA (@)

(c)

(%)
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HAip s - RIBARBERNB AR
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R-ZE-—WNFANA=1TH EF
BAEBARARA([EFTEAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49 COMMITMENTS

(@) Operating leases commitments

As at 30th June 2016, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

e VB HRRNEE

49 K

RETHE A

R-ZE—XREXNA=TH K&£E
BETAIHE  LEREMBER
RAREMN e HEHENKBEN
T

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Land and buildings THREF
Not later than one year BB —F 8,609 5,594
Later than one year and not BR—F R ERR
later than five years 6,506 5,980
15,115 11,574
Certain department store counters and retail stores ETEERARERBEEEEERA

include payment obligations with rental varied
with gross revenue. The additional rental payable
(contingent rents) is determined generally by applying
pre-determined percentages to future revenue less
minimum lease payment of the respective leases.

Other commitments

As at 30th June 2016, the Group had commitments
contracted but not provided for in these consolidated

B 7 R 7 0 48 A 77 81 32 R R
ENNRET - BABEIES (K
ﬁifﬂ‘f)*ﬂxbﬁﬁkﬂﬁl]\ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ

DHEEHENKERSIRE

TFo

B FHE

RZE—XREXNA=TH K&£E
BEIAERR LSRG M BHRE

financial statements as follows: BBz AERT
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Purchase of film rights and BEETRENLE
production of films (Note i) (MI&ED) 59,002 64,844
Licence agreement h HE 1h 786 -
Note i: Included in the commitment of purchase of film izt AFARZE—AREANA=+AH
rights and production of films, an amount of FHREETY v e B
HK$13,633,000 related to the joint operation BEEXRERE: @d’ﬁ%a“%‘@
arrangements of film production as at 30th June %813,633,0008 T (ZF—H
2016 (2015: HK$29,739,000). £ 129,739,000/ 7T) ©

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

50 FUTURE OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS

51

Universe International Finance Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

As at 30th June 2016, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating

leases as follows:

50 RARZEEHELH

RZB-—REXNA=ZTRH AEERE
TR 2 A TG T A T AR SRR 2
RIEBEFEAEMNT

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Not later than one year THB—F 743 935
Later than one year and not BR—F R TBERBRAF
later than five years 126 527
869 1,462
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 51 AEATZX S
(@) Tenancy Agreements @ HMEWm=
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET FHET
i) Rental expenses paid to i) MEBFMERER
Universe Property Investment PRAF (AARAF
Limited which is wholly owned —REZDER
by a director of the Company B) X HEH
(Note a) % (Kizta) 2,928 2,928
i) Rental expenses paidto Sam i) [ =#RIKEARLD
Fung Global Limited which is Al (BAERRAE—%
wholly owned by the spouse BEERBE2ER
of a director of the Company B)ZFzHeH
(Note b) = (P &ED) 740 -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

51 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(@) Tenancy Agreements (Continued)

Note a:

Universe Digital Entertainment Limited (“UDE”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a tenancy agreement with Universe Property Investment
Limited (“UPI”), a company owned by Mr. Lam Shiu Ming,
Daneil, the executive Director of the Company, for renting (1)
an industrial unit and (2) 5 carparking spaces of an industrial
building for warehouse, ancillary office and carparking uses
in Kwai Chung from 1st February 2014 to 31st January
2017, with a monthly rental of HK$244,000 (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) which were arrived at following arm’s length
negotiation between the Group and Mr. Lam Shiu Ming,
Daneil with reference to the renal valuation performed by
Roma Appraisals Limited as at 30th November 2013 which
reflects the then market rent.

As at 30th June 2016 and 30th June 2015, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments to UPI under non-
cancellable operating lease falling due as follows:

REVBRRME

51 MEATZX T @)

(@)

HE W ®
Mita :

ARBIHEEZENBRAREFHIER
BERNA ([BEFHBIIRE])EA
ARMITESEW ) BEEBEB 2 A A
EFMEREERQAR([EFWE
RENDHREBE-_ZE—ENF_A—HBHEZE
—E—+F—A=+—BLUAES
244,000 T — BT EEMNK(Q)
PERER—RAERE EEHAQ
EREESHNIEREZSEFEEN
SIVHERE ([HEWHE])  Zs
AASEEENNAEEEL2ERFH
RAEAERARR-_E—=%F1+—A8
=+ BRHEENESEE (RRERH
BHS)ERATFHEEETE -

RZE-—REAA=Z+HER=ZZ—A
FARA=ZTB AEERET A HH
KEMBERNETOEREZARARK
EEENFERE I HBERDT

2016 2015

ZE-RE —EHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFERT FET

Not later than one year TBBE—F 1,952 2,928
Later than one year and not later BB—FRTEBAASF

than five years - 1,952

1,952 4,880

Note b:

Win Fung Securities Limited (“Win Fung”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy
agreement with Sam Fung Global Limited, a company
owned by the spouse of Ms. Cheng Hei Yu, the executive
Director of the Company for renting an office unit in Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong from 1st November 2015 to 31st October
2017, with a monthly rental of HK$100,000 (the “Win Fung
Tenancy Agreement”) which were arrived at the arm’s length
negotiation by the relevant parties with reference to the
market rent. During the period, Win Fung has incurred a
total rental expenses of approximately HK$740,000 (2015:
Nil) in accordance to the Win Fung Tenancy Agreement
for the period from 18th November 2015 (the date of
acquisition of Win Fung by the Group) to 30 June 2016.

fi&tb :

ARRBE2EHB AR KEESE
RAGE ([kig]))EBARQNRHITEBE
ERZL2RBHESZ AR ZEIIRIR
ERAAMBE_ZET—AE+—A—8H
BEZZ—+tF+A=+—HIEUA
100,000 LA N ES LR
— MW AEEMT A E R (K
HEWHZ]) ZHaBEBETOFE
REMBHELBATERET - A
BEA-_ZEZ—AF+—A+NB (K
EEKEXE B E-_T—XRF
ANAZT BBz KERE RS
K20 E A ¢ F X8R AI740,00078
T(ZE—RF ).

TE-REFR EFERERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REFBRRMEE

51 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(@) Tenancy Agreements (Continued)
Note b: (Continued)
As at 30th June 2016 and 30th June 2015, the Group had

total future minimum lease payments to Sam Fung Global
Limited transactions under non-cancellable operating lease

51 MEATZX T @)

(@ ME®= @

Bisto - (#&)

RZE—RNEXA=THEZ=Z—1
FRA=ZTH XEEBRET O HE
KEHERN=82RERAFZRK

falling due as follows: REEBEENRBEZHHEROT
2016 2015
—~E —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Not later than one year BB —F 1,200 =

Later than one year and not later BR—ERTHBRASF

than five years 400 -
1,600 S

(b) Details of key management
compensation
Key management personnel are those management
with responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group.

b) T2EEERMF15

TBEEABRARE BHITRK
RHIRNEEES C EEE -

2016 2015
—ZE—RE —HE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET

Salaries and other short-term FehkEMEHES
employee benefits 1& ) 10,195 7,112
Post-employment benefits & BiRIKE R 72 72
Share-based compensation F% 1 = B 2,993 4,496
13,260 11,680

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, no other
material related party transactions have been
entered into by the Group. The transactions were
carried out after negotiations between the Group
and the related parties in the ordinary course of
business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

52 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE
SHEET DATE

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated
13th June 2016, Fragrant River Entertainment
Culture (Holdings) Limited, a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, the Company as a
guarantor and a purchaser entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“AP Disposal Agreement”)
on 13th June 2016 to dispose 51% equity interest
of AP Group Investment Holdings Limited (“AP
Group”) at a consideration of HK$20,400,000,
subject to a downward adjustment in respect
of the guaranteed profit as described in the AP
Disposal Agreement.

The AP Disposal Agreement was completed on
1st July 2016. The results of AP Group under
the segment of training and coaching has been
presented as discontinued operation during the
year ended 30th June 2016 and AP Group was
classified as disposal group held for sale on the
consolidated balance sheet.

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated
12th July 2016, the Company’s circular dated 12th
August 2016 and Company’s prospectus dated
9th September 2016, the Company proposed to
raise not less than approximately HK$213.3 million
and not more than approximately HK$220.4
million before expenses by issuing not less than
355,548,184 and not more than 367,399,760
new shares (“Second Rights Shares”) at the
subscription price of HK$0.60 per Second Rights
Shares on the basis of two (2) Second Rights
Shares for every one (1) share in issue held on the
8th September 2016 (“Second Rights Issue”).

The Second Rights Issue was not completed
yet. The Company will announce the result of the
Second Rights Issue in early October 2016.
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52 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE

SHEET DATE (Continued)

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated
15th July 2016, the Group acquired 240 million
shares of Interactive Entertainment China Cultural
Technology Investments Limited (“IE China”), a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability, the
shares of which are listed on GEM (Stock Code:
8081) at the average purchase price of HK$0.105
per share of IE China. The aggregate consideration
of this acquisition was HK$25.2 million (excluding
stamp duty and related expenses).

Prior to this acquisition, the Group held an
aggregate of 63,000,000 shares of IE China. Upon
settlement of this acquisition, the Group held an
aggregate of 303 million shares of IE China. All
shares of IE China are held by the Group as long-
term investment, representing approximately
6.15% of the total issued share capital of IE China
on 15th July 2016.

On 24th June 2016, Honest Novel Holdings
Limited (“Honest Novel”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary and the independent third party vendors
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
acquire 100% issued shares of Ample Capital
Limited (“Ample”) at a total consideration of
HK$30,000,000. The consideration shall be
settled by way of (i) the Company issuing the
promissory note in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$18,291,025 to one of the vendors upon
completion; and (ii) Honest Novel accepting the
novation of the amount advanced by Ample to
the vendors prior to the date of the sale and
purchase agreement and remains outstanding
as at the date of this announcement, amounting
to HK$11,708,975. The acquisition was not
completed up to the date of issue of these
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REVBRRME

53 COMPANY - LEVEL BALANCE 53 KRIBEEHEE&RER

=]
SHEET
2016 2015
—E—RK —FE-hF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
M5 TFET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MERRIRE 72,096 72,096
72,096 72,096
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE LT Bt B8 X R SR 1A 573,043 251,711
Deposits paid BffaT & 567 -
Prepayments and other receivables B F0 18 &
H fth fE U 3R I8 198 383
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEeEEY 656 113
S . 574,464 252,207
Total assets ~~ @m&E 646,560 324,303
EQUITY HE=
Equity attributable to YN Z=DN
the owners of the Company FE 1 ¥ 25
Share capital A& A 25 1,778 2,984
Share premium B tn 4 (B 27(b) 532,910 213,630
Other reserves H A 27(b) 123,100 191,200
Accumulated losses 25 EBE 27(b) (27,608) (96,057)
Total equity ABHE R 630,180 311,757
LIABILITIES  &&
Non-current liability ERBERE
Borrowings BE - 9,200
- 9,200
Current liabilites ~ w®&a#g
Amounts due to subsidiaries RN E S 5,062 341
Accrued charges EET X 2,118 3,005
Borrowings P 9,200 -
16,380 3,346
Total liabilites ~ #&& 16380 12,546
Total equity and liabilities BEZRERE 646,560 324,303
Net current assets RHEEFE 558,084 248,861
Total assets less current liabilities AEERTTAR 630,180 320,957

ST-AFFER ETERSRIERERAT 289



290

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REFBRRMEE

53 COMPANY - LEVEL BALANCE
SHEET (Continued)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30th September 2016.

Lam Shiu Ming, Daneil Lam Kit Sun
Director Director

L7 W B
EE EE
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES
FERERABZEEYR

HONG KONG it

Location Lot number Type Lease term

i B 1y wmE HEES

Woodland House 1 - 5, Woodlands Villa, Lot numbers 1510 remaining Residential 2047
121 Tong Fuk Village, Tong Fuk, part, 1511, 1516, 1518,
Lantau Island, New Territories, Hong Kong 1519, 1522 and 1523 in
Demarcation District 328

BB R KB L L E X FE3284I M EL x= —EMEF
BERERN1215% 151058805 - 15115% -
RHb Bl B MRk B 1 =555 15165% » 1518%% » 15195% -
15225 K& 15235%

ZEREFR BFARSRIERARAR
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEUBRE

RESULTS E4

Year ended 30th June

BERAZ+HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Z5-R"Ef ZT-hf —T-OmE —T-=F ZE-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiET TR TR TR TR

Revenue and income e L ON 7,469 300,208 233,215 79,106 75,881
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETERA (BR),/EH (166,453) 198,296 (18,472) (4,890) (17,523)
Income tax (expense)/credit EE (BR) /D& 26,179 (37,366) (5,855) 213 154

(Loss)/profit attributable to the equity AR BIEZEHAE A

holders of the Company B (B8B),/aH (140,790) 161,956 (24,327 4.677) (17,369)
Special cash dividend BRRERE - - - - -
Proposed final dividend BRRERE - - - - -
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE

As at 30th June
RAB=+H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

ZE-Nf -—T-hHF —F-NE —T-=F —T-——-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TEL TEL TEL FTAET

Total assets BEE 1,150,731 739,628 394,764 396,457 307,819

Total liabilities waE (398,810) (167,361) (94,865) (155,304) (72,969)
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